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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 8" Annual General Meeting of the Members of Zomato Media
Private Limited (“Company”) will be held on Tuesday, the 31* day of July 2018 at 10:00 A.M. at
the Registered Office of the Company at Ground Floor, 12A, 94 Meghdoot, Nehru Place, New
Delhi-110 019, to transact the following business{es):

ORDINARY BUSINESS(ES):

1. To receive, consider and adopt:

(a) the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended March
31, 2018, together with the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; and

(b) the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year
ended March 31, 2018, together with the reports of the Auditors thereon;

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Date : May 28, 2018 For Zomato Media Private Limited
Place: Gurgaon . s

NOTES:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTES IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT
A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON POLL ON HIS/HER BEHALF AND THE
PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. Pursuant to Section 105
of the Companies Act, 2013, a person can act as a Proxy on behalf of not more than
fifty members holding in aggregate, not more than ten percent of the total share Capital
of Company. The instrument of Proxy, in order to be effective, should be deposited at
the Registered Office of the Company, duly completed and signed, not later than 48
hours (Sunday is included in computation of 48 hours) before the commencement of
the Meeting. A Proxy Form is annexed to this report. Proxies submitted an behalf of
limited companies, socicties, etc., must be supported by an appropriate
resolution/authority, as applicable.

ZOMATO MEDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Registered Address: GF-12A, 94 Meghdoot, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019, India
CIN: U93030D1.2010PTC198141



Corporate members intending to send their authorized representative to attend the
meeting are requested to send their certified copy of the board resolution authorizing
their representative to attend and vote on their behalf.

Members are requested to sign at the place provided on the attendance slip and handover
the same at the entrance of the Meeting,. :

All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice of the AGM and the Explanatory
Statement shall be open for inspection without any fee at the Registered Office of the
Company duting normal business hours (9:00 am to 5:00 pm) on all working days, except
Saturday, up to and including the date of the AGM of the Company.

The register of director’s and their shareholding, register of contracts with the related
party and contracts with bodies corporates in which directors are interested and register
of proxies would be available for inspection by the members at the meeting.




Zomato Media Private Limited
CIN — U93030DL2010PTC198141
Regd. Office : Ground Floor, 12A, 94 Meghdoot, Nehru Place,
New Delhi-110 019

ATTENDANCE SLIP
(TO BE SIGNED AND HANDED OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING
HALL)

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 8t Annual General Meeting of the above named
Company held Tuesday, the 31st day of July, 2018 at 10:00 A.M. at Ground Floor, 12A, 94

Meghdoot, Nehru Place, New Delhi-110 019,

NAME(S) OF THE Registered Folio
MEMBER(S)

No. of Shares

Name of Proxy (in block letters)
(To be filled in, if the Proxy attends instead of the Members)

Member’s/Proxy’s
Signature

<

Zomato Media Private Limited
CIN - U93030DL2010PTC198141
Regd. Office: Ground Floor, 12A, 94 Meghdoot, Nehru Place, New Delhi-110 019

PROXY FORM
L e s of o
......... being a Member(s) of Zomato Media Private Limited hereby
appoint......ooii OF or failing
himo. o OF e or failing
him... of e

as my Proxy in my/our absence to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the
8th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held Tuesday, the 31st day of July 2018
at 10:00 A.M. at Ground Floor, 12A, 94 Meghdoot, Nehru Place, New Dethi-110 019,

AS WITNESSED under my/our hand(s) Re. i
this...... e e dayof............l. 2018 Revenue
Signed by the said.......................... O PR Stamp
Regd. Folio NO....coooii i




NOTES:

1. This Proxy need not be a member.

2. The Proxy form must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less
than 48 hours before the time fixed for holding the aforesaid meeting,

3. Please affix Re. 1.00 revenue stamp on this form and the member should sign across

the stamp.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR THIC FINANCIAL YEAR 2017-18
To,
The Members,

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the 8" Annual Report along with the Audited Standalone and
Consolidated Financial Stagements for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2018.

FINANCIAL REVIEW ON THE BASIS OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The highlights of your Company’s Financial results on a standalone basis for the Financial Year ended on
March 31, 2018 are as follows:

Particulars For the Yor the
Financial Year | Financial Year
ended on ended on
March 31, 2018 | March 31,2017
(% Mn.) (% Mn)
Total Revenues Earned (including Other Income) 3,884.55 3,099.70
Less : Total Expenses 4,602.48 3,696.72
| Less: Exceptional Items 67.00 5,255.62
Proft/Loss before Tax (784.93) (5,852.04)
Tax Expense - -
Proft/Loss for the year (784.93) {5,.852.64)
Other comprehensive income:
1) Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent 0.10 1.90
periods:- '
a. Re-measurement gains/(Losses) on defined benefit plans
2) ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent 13.43 12.11
periods:- '
a. Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
Total Comprehensive Income/(loss) for the period (771.40) (5,838.03)

STATLE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK OF THE COMPANY

Consolidated Financial Statements of your Company includes the performance of its subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates. Preparation and presentation of such Consolidated Financial Statements depicts the
comprehensive performance of Zomato and its group of companies and is relevant for understanding the
overall performance of Zomato across the globe. )

The Standalone Financial Statements of Zomato excludes the performance of its subsidiaries, joint ventures

and associates.

N
//)

ZOMATO MEDIA PRIVATE LIMITED ‘
Registered Address: GF-12A, 94 Meghdoot, Nehru Place, New Delhi — 110019, India
CIN: U93030DL2010PTC19814]




The Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2018 have been prepared in
accordance with IndAS prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India.

During the year, the total revenue of your Company, on a standalone basis, has increased to 3 3,884.55 Mn.
from < 3,099.70 Mn. in the previous vear, recording a growth of approx. 25%. The total expenses during the
year have increased from 3 3696.72 Mn. to T 4602.48 Mn. in the current year.

During the year, your Company has incurred a loss after tax of 3 784.93 Mn. as compared to previous year
loss after tax of ¥ 5,852.64 Mn. as a result of growth in revenue and the expenses have not increased
corresponding to the increase in revenue.

On a consolidated basis, the revenue of your Company is I 4,850.94 Mn. as compared to T 3,993.50 Mn. in
the previous year recording a growth of approx. 21%. The Loss after Tax for the year has been substantially

decreased from < 3,899.07 Mn. to % 1,003.12 Mn, in the financial year under review,

OPERATIONS REVIEW

While the other businesses are gaining traction, your Company’s primary revenue source is through Ad Sales
and Online Ordering business segments. The new line of business started during the year under review was
Zomato Gold, which proved to be a success in a short span of tine.

Long Term vision

Your Directors expect that with increased focus on the relevant geographies and closure of the non-operative
business entities including subsidiaries and branches, along with focus on increasing the operational
efficiency, the overall business of the Company will improve in the coming years.

DIVIDEND

In view of the losses during the year, your Directors do not recommended any dividend for the year under
review.

AMOUNTS TRANSFERRED TO RESERVES

During the year under review, the Company has not transferred any amount to Reserves.

CHANGES IN CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year under review, following are the changes in Authorised / Subscribed /Issucd / Paid-up Capital
of the Company:




Changes in Authorised Share Capital

During the year under review, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company was increased from 3
1,31,43,44,341 (Rupees One Hundred Thirty One Crore Forty Three Lakh Forty-Four Thousand Three
Hundred Forty-One Only) to ¥ 1,94,62,21,341 (Rupees One Hundred Ninety Four Crore Sixty Two
Lakh Twenty One Thousand Three Hundred Forty-One Only) as under:-

e I 1,31,43,44,341 (Rupees One Hundred Thirty One Crore Forty Three Lakh Forty-Four
Thousand Three Hundred Forty-One Only) to 3 1,38,72,73,841 (Rupees One Hundred Thirty
Eight Crore Seventy Two Lakh Seventy Three Thousand Eight Hundred Forty-One Only) by
adding 10,885 Class G 0.00000015% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares
(“Class G CCCPS”) of face value of F 6,700 each, vide shareholder’s resolution dated December
12,2017.

* T 1,38,72,73,841 (Rupees One Hundred Thirty Eight Crore Seventy Two Lakh Seventy Three
Thousand Eight Hundred Forty-One Only) to & 1,94,62,21,341 (Rupees One Hundred Ninety
Four Crore Sixty Two Lakh Twenty One Thousand Three Hundred Forty-One Only) by adding
83,425 Class H 0.00000015% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares {(“Class H
CCCPS?”) of Tace value of T 6,700 each, vide shareholder’s resclution dated February 16, 2018,

"The Authorised Share Capital as on March 31, 2018 is ¥ 1,94,62,21,341 (Rupees One Hundred Ninety
Four Crore Sixty Two Lakh Twenty One Thousand Three Hundred Forty-One Only) consisting of:

‘ Equity Shares ,00,

Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares 1,00,000

Class B 0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative 12 800 L0/
Preference Shares (*Class B CCCPS”) ’

Class C 0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative 57 397 10/
Preference Shares (“Class C CCCPS”) ’

Class D 0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative 58.460 10/
Preference Shares (“Class D CCCPS8”) '

Class E 0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference

3,05,51,391 1/
Shares(*Class E CCPS™) 73,05,51; /
B 1) . <F1 A
Class I 0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares 19,06,53,540 5.
(“Class F CCPS™)
5 . — -
Class G 0.00000015% Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible 10,885 6700/
Preference Shares (“Class G CCCPS”)
5 — : —

Class H 0.00000015% Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible 83,425 67001-
Preference Shares (“Class H CCCPS”)




. Changes in Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital

The Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of the Company was changed from 3 1,31,38,39,777
(Rupees One Hundred Thirty-One Crore Thirty-Eight Lakh Thirty-nine Thousand Seven Hundred
Seventy-Seven Only) to 3 1,744,087,733 (Rupees One Hundred Seventy Four Crore Forty lakh Eighty-
seven Thousand Seven Hundred Thirty-three Only) during the year under review.

The issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Company as on March 31, 2018 is
1,74,40,87,733 (Rupees One Hundred Seventy Four Crore Forty lLakh Eighty-seven Thousand Seven
Hundred Thirty-three Only) consisting of:

Equity Shares 3,37,694 i
Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares ' 78,7'91 10/-
Class B 0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative 6 396 iO/
Preference Shares (“Class B CCCPS™) ’
Class C 0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative 13,664 - Lo/
Preference Shares (“Class C CCCPS™) - ’
Class D 0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative 18 460 Lo
Preference Shares (“Class D CCCPS™) ’
Class E 0.0001% Compulserily Convertible Preference 72.91,92,849 1.
Shares(*Class E CCPS™)
3 Y Or ible Prefer '

Class F 0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Sharcs 19,06,53,540 5/
(“Class F CCPS™)

uo N L] - . i N
Class G 0.00000015% Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible 10,885 6700/-
Preference Shares (“Class G CCCPS”)

- ‘
Class H 0.00000015% Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible 83,425 6700/~
Preference Shares (“Class H CCCPS”)

Conversion of Preference Shares info equity

During the financial year under review, 16,395 Class B CCCPS, 13,663 Class C CCCPS and 201,358,542
Class E CCPS held by Naukri Internet Services Limited (NISL) have been converted to 30,078 equity shares,
which ranks pari passu with the existing equity shares.

SUBSIDIARY (1ES), ASSOCIATE COMPANY(IES) AND JOINT VENTURE(S) / ACQUISITIONS

As on March 31, 2018, the Company had 38 (Thirty-eight) subsidiaries, and 1 (One} Jeint Venture within the
meaning of Section 2(87) and Section 2(6) respectively of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”). There has been
no material change in the nature of the business of the subsidiaries.




As per the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Act a statement containing salient features of the Financial
Statements of the Company’s subsidiaries (which includes associate companies and joint ventures) in the
prescribed Form AOC-1 forms part of the Financial Statements of the Company is attached as Annexure — 1.

Closure of Subsidiaries:

The following step down subsidiaries of your Company have been closed during the year under review
since these were non operational:

SLNo. | Name of the Subsidiary(ies) | Country
1 Zomato Sweden AR Sweden
2 Zomato Spain SL | Spain

ACOQUISITION

During the year under review, the Company had acquired, 80.20% stake in the Carthero Technologics Private
Limited (“Carthero™), a private limited company incorporated and registered under the laws of India and
having its registered office at No.93, 4th floor, Salarpuria Business Center, 4th B Cross, Block-5,
Koramangala Industrial Layout Bengaluru Bangalore KA 560095 IN for cash and consideration other than
cash i.e through swap arrangement, by purchasing Carthero’s shares from its existing shareholders in
consideration of the Company’s shares in the swap ratio of 1:0.27 subsequent to which it became the
Subsidiary of the Company w.e.f February 16, 2018, Subsequently, the Company has raised its stake in
Carthero to 84.45% through investing in Right Issue.

FUND RAISING

During the year under review, the Company had raised a fresh round of funding from Alipay Singapore
Holding Pte. Ltd. for an amount of $150 million.

Your Directors believe that this funding will contribute to the Company’s overall development and expansion
of business operations.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS

During the previous financial year under review, 12 (Twelve) Board Meetings were convened and held viz,
April 10, 2017, May 25, 2017, May 27, 2017, (Adjourned Meeting of the Board Meeting dated May 25,
2017), July 17, 2017, September 27, 2017, October 12, 2017, November 21, 2017, January 09, 2018, January
30, 2018, February 5, 2018, February 15, 2018, February 24, 2018 and February 28, 2018. The intervening
gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under Companies Act, 2013 read with Secretarial
Standards as notified. ‘

BOARD COMMITTELS & OTHER COMMITTLEES

The Board has the following Committees:




a) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was constituted pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company for the
following:

* To review the conduct of the Company's business;

* To review all books and rccords pertaining to the Company and the conduct of the Company's
business; and

* To review all management letters, filings, reports and other information provided by the auditors
(statutory or internal) of the Company.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee met Five (5) times during the financial year on April
10, 2017, May 25, 2017, May 27, 2017 (Adjourned Meeting of the Audit Committee Meeting dated May
27,2017), July 17, 2017, October 12, 2017 and January 09, 2018.

1) Compensation Committee

The Committee was constituted pursuant to the Shareholders Agreement and is responsible for the

following;:

* To decide number of options to be given to each Employee/ Associate
» To decide the terms of options to be given to each Employee/ Associate.
* To decide/ intimate the vesting period of the said options.

During the year under review, the Compensation Committee met 6 (six) times i.e. on April 1, 2017, June
30,2017, September 30, 2017, December 31, 2017, February 16, 2018 and March 31, 2018.

¢) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

The Corporate Social Responsibility Comimittce was formulated pursuant to the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013,

During the year under review, no meeting of CSR Committee held.

Composition of the Committees: The composition of various committees of the Company as on March
31, 2018 is as under:;

Committee Member

Audit Committee Mr. Deepinder Goyal
Ms. Ireena Vittal

Mr. Kaushik Dutta

Compensation Committee Mr. Deepinder Goyal
Mr. Pankaj Chaddah
CSR Committee Mr. Deepinder Goyal

Mr. Pankaj Chaddah
Advisory Committee Mr. Akhil Gupta




KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND DIRECTORS

During the financial year under review, there have been following changes in the composition of Board of the
Directors of the Company:

*  Mr. Sudhir Bhargava, Nominee Director on behalf of Info Edge (India) Limited has resigned as
Nominee Director w.e.f. June 14, 2017,

¢ Mr. Chen Yan and Mr. Douglas Lehman Feagin have been appointed as a Nominee Directors on
behalf of Alipay Singapore Holding Pte. Ltd. w.c.f. February 28, 2018.

*+  Mr. Zheng Liu was appointed as an Alternate Director to Mr. Douglas Lehman Feagin w.e.f.
March 05, 2018.

* There was change in designation of Mr. Pankaj Chaddah from Director to Nominee Director of
the Founder w.e.f. March 31, 2018,

STATUTORY AUDITORS & AUDITOR’S REPORT

M/s S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLLP, Chartered Accountants (FRN-101049W/E300004) were appointed as
Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 4" Annual General Meeting of the Company 1o hold office until the
conclusion of Annual General Meeting for the FY 2018-19. In terms of Section 139 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies Act Rules, 2014, and all other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time
being in force), M/s S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants (FRN-101049W/E300004) shall
continue to be statutory auditors until the conclusion of Annual General Meeting for the FY 2018-19. The
Company has received a certificate from the Auditors to the effect that their re-appointment is within the limit
prescribed under the Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and that they are not disqualified for such re-
appointment within the meaning of the said Section.

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remark in the report of Auditors provided for the financial
year ended on March 31, 2018

INTERNAL AUDITOR

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has confirmed the
appointment of Mr. Deepak Ahluwalia as Internal Auditor of the Company at the meeting of Board of
Directors held on January 30, 2018. Mr. Ahluwalia is associated with the Company for the last three years and
is designated as VP — Internal Audit & Internal Control and currently taking care of the Internal Audit and
Internal Controls techniques in the Company.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS PLAN

The Company has an Employee’s Stock Option Plan with the name “FoodieBay Employee Stock Option Plan,
2014”7 (the “Plan™).




The details regarding issue of Employee Stock Options is required to be furnished, as per the provisions of

Rule 12(9) of Companies (Share Capital and Debenture Rules, 2014) are as under:

Total number of options in force outstanding at the beginning of the Year 23,724.21
Options granted 8,901.00
Options vested 3,869.97
Options exercised None
The total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of option None
Options lapsed 5,759.35
The exercise price None
Variation of terms of options None
Money realized by exercise of options None
Total number of options in force 26,865.86
Employee wise details of options granted to:
(1) Key Managerial Personnel: None
(i) . Any other employee who receives a grant of options in any one year of option amounting to five

percent or more of options granted during that year:

Sl. No. | Name of Employee

Number of grants

1 Mr. Deepak Gulati

1,713

(ili)  Identified employees, who were granted option, during any one year, equal to or exceeding one per
cent of the issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and conversions) of the Company at the

time of grant: None

Further, details for Employee Stock Options forms part of the Notes to Accounts of the Financial Statements.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act 2013, your Directors confirm that:

a) In the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2018, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material

departures;

b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018 and the statement of the of the profit /toss of the

Company for that period;




¢) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) The Directors have laid down adequate internal financial controls with respect to Financial
Statements.

f} The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has a Policy on "Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace" and matters
connected therewith or incidental thereto covering all the aspects as contained under the "The Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prohibition, Prevention and Redressal) Act, 2013". The Internal
Complaints Committee (hereinafter referred to as the ICC) has been constituted for timely and impartial
resolution to complaints of sexual harassment. It consists of following members comprising of sznior
employees of Zomato:-

Name ' | Members
Daminee Sawhney S Presiding Officer
Rohin Thampi o | Member '
Upasana Nath o Member

Rxternal Advisor - Devika Singh, Advocate of Cohere Member
Consultants

During the financial year under review, the ICC has received NIL complaints for sexual harassment.

PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

All Particulars including disclosures, as specified under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules
made thereunder, forms part of the Notes to Accounts of the Financial Statements of the Company.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the Financial year under review, the details of related party transactions forms part of the Notes to
Accounts of the Financial Statements of the Company.




MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY,
Strategic Investments

The Company, as a part of strategic investment, had invested an amount of % 165 Mn. in Loya! Hospitality
Private Limited, a company registered in India and engaged inter alia in the business of owning, operating and
managing restaurants and kitchens (hereinafter referred to as “LH”), thereby acquiring 25% of the total stake
of LH, by virtue of this investment and thus, LH has become an associate company of the Company.

Further, Vicinia Retail Private Limited, a company registered in India and engaged in the business of home
cooked meal delivery in which the Company has invested in the previous financial year had a fresh round of
investment by the Company for an amount of 3 12.98 Mn.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The extract of Annual Return, in format MGT-9, for the Financial Year 2017-18 forms a part of this Report
and enclosed as Annexure- 2.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The disclosure with respect to the details of top 10 employees in terms of remuneration drawn during the

financial year 2017-18 and the statenment containing the names of employees, who-

(i) if employed throughout the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for that year which, in
the aggregate, was not less than one crore and two lakh rupees ;

(ii) if employed for a part of the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for any part of that year, at
a rate which, in the aggregate, was not fess than eight lakh and fifty thousand rupees per month;

(i) il employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of remuneration in that
year which, in the aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate, is in excess of
that drawn by the managing director or whole-time director or manager and holds by himself or along
with his spouse and dependent children, not less than two percent of the equity shares of the company.

in accordance with the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5 of the

Companies {(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is available at the

registered office of the Company for inspection by members and a copy of same shall be made available,

without any fee, if required.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Since the Company is a service sector company and does not own any manufaciuring facility, the other
particulars in the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of the Board of Directors) Rules, 1998
are not applicable.

The particulars regarding foreign exchange earnings and expenditure are furnished below-




a) *Foreign Exchange Larnings/ Qutgo:

(T Mn)
Earnings 1,025.08
Outgo 771.34

*Foreign Exchange Barnings and Outgo are on Accrual Basis.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Risk Management is the process of identification, assessment and prioritization of risks followed hy
coordinated efforts to minimize, monitor and mitigate/control the probability and/or impact of unfortunate
events or to maximise the realization of opportunities. The Company had laid down a comprehensive Risk
Management Policy which is reviewed by the Management of the Company from time to time, Lo ensure that
executive management controls the risks through properly defined framework for the said purposes. The major
risks have been identified by the Company and its mitigation measures have been discussed in the areas such
as- risk intrinsic to the nature of tasks to be undertaken, risk associated with management approach, external
risk that could affect the activity, the company or the assumptions on which the business plans were made.

The Company has not accepted any Deposits under section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with The
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. There were no unclaimed or unpaid deposits as on March
31,2018,

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) POLICY

The extract of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities for the Financial Year 2017-18 forms part of
this Report and enclosed as Annexure- 3.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

Your Company has also put in place adequate systems of internal Control to ensure compliance with policies
and procedures, which commensurate with size, scale and complexity of its operations. The internal Audit of
the Company is regularly carried out to review the internal control systems and processes. The internal Audit
Reports along with implementation and recommendations containcd therein are periodically reviewed by
Audit Commitiee of the Board.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Your Directors take this opportunity 1o place on record their sincere appreciation for the co-operation and
support extended by all regulatory and Governmental authorities, Bankers and the shareholders of the
Company. We look forward to their continuous suppert in the future.




Your Directors also wish 1o express their deep appreciation for the valuable contribution made by the entire
management team and the employees of the Company. Your Directors took optimistic approach for the future.

Date: May 28, 2018
Place: Gurgaon

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Zoma!:g Mgdia Private Limited

Deepinder Goyal °
Director ~Nominee Director
DIN: 02613583 DIN: 02625858x
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Part “B”: Associates and Joint Venlures

Annexure 1(v)

Statement pursuani to Sectiou 129 (3) of ihe Companies Act, 2013 related (o Associate Companics and Joint Ven (ures

Name of Associates/Joint Zomato Media WLL

Ventures

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet

Date 31-Mar-18

2. Date on whick the Associate or

Joint Venture was associated or 27-Mar-14
acquired

3. Shares of  Associate/Joind

Yentures held by the company on
the year end )

No. l 98
Amount  of  Investment  in

Associates/loinl Venture - 16,31,077
Extent of Holding % 49%

4. Deseription of how there i3
siguificant influence

5. Reason why the associate/joint :
veinture fs_not conselidated Not Applicable
6. Networth  attributable  to ’
Sharcholding as per latest audited

Joint Venture

Balance Sheet -1,76,86,391 .
6. Profit/ (Loss) for the year

i. Considered in 'Ck_msqlidation ) 90,23,519

ii. Not Considered in Congolidation | 0 '

1 Nemies of a:ssgéigtiﬁ’f» OF joint ventures which are yet 1o commence operations.
2. Netnes of assogiates or joint ventures which bave been liquidated or sold ‘during the year.

Note : Th is Fonn is td be eettified in the same inanner in which the Batance Sheet is to be certified.

»

- For and on ‘behalf of the Board of birecitors of
- Zomato Media Private Limited

Oyt !

(Director)
(DIN-02613583)

{Company Secrelary} s
(F-6348)

Place: Gurgaon
Date: May 28, 2018




Annexure-2

FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on financial year ended on 31.03.2018

Pursuantto Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company

(Management & Administration ) Rules, 2014,

REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

CIN

US3030D12010PTC198141

Registration Date

18 January 2010

Name of the Company

ZOMATO MEDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Category/Sub-category of the Company

Company Limited by Shares

Address of the Registered office
& contact details

Ground Floor 124, 94 Meghdoot, Nehru Place, New Delhi-

110019.

Whether listed company

No

vii

Name , Address & contact detalls of the
Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any,

Not Applicakle

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

J

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated

SL No

Name & Description of main
products/services

NIC Code of the
Product fservice

% to total turnover
of the company

Advertising

7310

94.33%

PARTICULARS OF HOLDING , SUBSIDIARY & AS

SOCIATE COMPANIES

L

SINo

Name & Address of the Company

CIN/GLN

HOLDING/
SUBSIDIARY/
ASSOCIATE

% OF
SHARES
HELD

APPLICABLE
SECTION

Zomato Midia Brasil Ltda

Avenida Paulista No. 2444, 18 andar, conjunto
181, Bairro Cerqucira Cesar, Sao Paulo, CEP
01310 - 300

-N.A.-

Subsidiary

100%

Section 2{87)

Zomato Media Portugal, Unipessoal, Lda
Avenida 24 de Julho N192 I, 1200- 870
Lisboa

“N.A -

Subsidiary

100%

Section 2(87)

PT. Zomato Media Indonesia

DEA Tower I, Level 12, Suite 1201, ). Mega
Kuningan Barat Kav. E.4.3, No. 1-2, South
Jakarta

NA-

Subsidiary

160%

Section 2(87)

Zomalo Media (Privale) Limiled
2nd Floor, Mclarens Building, 123, Bauddhal
Qka, Mawatha, Colombo 04

“N.A-

Subsidiary

100%

Section 2{87)

Zomato Chile SpA

Av. Andrés Bello 2711 - Pisos 8 y 9 — Torre
Costanera — CP 75500611 — Las Condes —
Santiago — Chile

-NLAL-

Subsidiary

100%

Seclion 2(87)

Zomato NZ Media Private Limited

Alliott NZ Limited {Charlered Accountants),
Level 2, 142 Broadway Newmarket, Auckland
1023, NZ

-NLAL-

Subsidiary

1002

Section 2(87)

Zomato Ireland Limited

6, The Courtyard Building, Carmanhall Road,
Sandyford, Dublin-18,

Ireland

NA-

Subsidiary

100%

Section 2(87)




Zomalo Middle Bast FZ-LL.C
Executive Desk No. 17, Ground Floot,
Building No. 16, Dubai, United Arab Emirates

“N.A-

Subsidiary

100%

Section 2{87)

Zomato Canada Inc.

366, Adelaide Street Bast, Suite 437, Toronto,
Ontario M5A 3X9,

Canada

-NA.-

Subsidiary

100%

Section 2(87)

10

Zomato UK Limited
Devonshire Fouse, 60 Goswell Road, London

NA -

Subsidiary

100%

Seclion 2(87)

11

Zomato Colombia SAS
Calle 100, No. 8A-33, Torre C, Officinia 714,
Bogota DC, Colombia

NA-

Subsidiary

100%

Section 2(87)

12

Zomato Malaysia Sdn. Bhd.

Suite 1005, 10th Floor, Wisma Hamzah-
Kwong Hing, No. |, Leboh Ampang, 50100
Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

NLA-

Subsidiary

100%

Seclion 2(87)

13

" |Zomato Australia PTY Limited

1198, Toorak Read, Camberwell, VIC, 3124

N.A.~

Subsidiary

100%

Section 2(87)

14

Lunchtime.cz s.r.o,
Udolni 326/11, Brno-mésto, Postcode 602 00
Brno, Czech Republic

-N.A.-

Subsidiary

100%

Seclion 2(87)

15

Zomalo Siovakin 5.r.0.
Prazska 11 Bratislava 811 04 Slovak Republic

“NA.-

Subsidiary

100%

Section 2(87)

16

Gastronauci Sp 7.0.0.
11, Listopada 2, 44-300 Jastrzgbie- Zdrdj,
Polska (Poland)

“N.A.-

Subsidiary

100%

Section 2(87)

17

Zomato Hungary Korlétolt Felelbsségii
Térsasdg (Zomato Hungry Kft.)

1163, Budapest, Cziraki utca. 24-32 A/ 1.
11.em, 122 Hungary

-N.A.-

Subsidiary

100%

Section 2(87)

18

Zomato Finland Oy
C/o Astanajotoimisto MK-Law, oy
Hirasalantine 11 02420 Jorvas, Findand

-N.A .-

Subsidiary

100%

Section 2(87)

19

Zomato Peru S.A.C.
Av, D¢ la Floresta No. 497, 5th Floor, district
of San Borja, Lima, Pert

NA-

Subsidiary

[00%

Section 2(87)

20

Zomato International RO SRL

District 1, Jon Campineanu Sireet, no. 11, 4th
floor, room 410, module “87, zip code 010031,
Bucharest

-N.A.-

Subsidiary

100%

Section 2(87)

21

Zomalo Austria GmbH

¢fo Interexpert Thd Stb GmbH & Co
OG,Gierstergasse 6, 1120 Wien (Vienna),
Auslria

N A~

Subsidiary

100%

Section 2{87)

22

Zomato Trefand Limited- Jordan
Amman — Mammdoh Al-Sarairch St Bldg, 11-
Um Al Summag, PO Box- 926497 Jordan

-N.A-

Subsidiary

100%

Section 2(87)

23

Cibando Limited
Devonshire House, 60, Goswell Road, London

-N.A-

Subsidiary

100%

Scction 2(87)

24

Zomato, Ine.
601 S. Cedar Street #111, Charlotle, NC 28202

NA-

Section 2(87)




25

Zomato Netherlands BV,
Jan van goycn kade 8, 1075, HP Amsterdam

-M.A -

Subsidiary

{00%

Scction 2{87)

26

"[Zomato Norway AS

Hicronymus Heyerdahls, Gate 1, 0160, Oslo,
Norway

-N.A -

Subsidiary

100%

Scction 2(87)

27

Zomato Media Private Limited
1 Rafflcs Place, #28-02, one Raffles Place,
Singapore (048616)

-N.A-

Subsidiary

100%

Section 2(87)

28

Zomato South Africa (Pty} Ltd

Lynnwood Bridge, 4 Daventry Street,
Lynnwood Manor, Gauteng, 0081, South
Africa

-M.A-

Subsidiary

100%

Seclion 2(87)

29

Zomato Philippines Inc.
Honda Cars Building- #2 President Serglo
Osmefia Highway Magallanes

MNA-

Subsidiary

100%

Seclion 2(87)

30

Zomato Denmark ApS
¢fo Lexsos Lawyers Jernbanegade 4, DK-5000,
Odense C

“NA -

Subsidiary

100%

Section 2(87)

31

Zomato Vietnam Company Limited
Floor 2, 2A/12 Nguyen Thi Minh Khai, Da Kao
Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

NA-

Subsidiary

100%

Section 2(87)

32

TZomato Internet LLC

Regus Doha Downtown, 1st Floor, Al-Jaidah
Square Building, Airport Road, Doha, PO Box
55743

-N.A.-

Subsidiary

100%

Section 2(87)

33

|Zomata internet Private Limited

Ground Floor 12A, 94 Meghdoot, Nehru Place,
New Delhi- 110419,

U74900D1.2015PTC286208

Subsidiary

100%

Section 2(87)

34

Zomato USA, LLC
601 5. Cedar Street #111, Charlotte, NC 28202

“N.A.-

Subsidiary

N.A,

Scetion 2{87}

35

Nextable, Inc.
601 5. Cedar Street #111, Charlotte, NC 28202

NA .-

Subsidiary

N.A.

Scetion 2(87)

36

Zomato Internet Hizmetléri Ticaret Anonim
Sirketi

Esentepe Mah, Talatpaga Cad. No:5 K:3 Sisli,
ISTANBUL

NLA-

Subsidiary

N.A.

Section 2(87)

37

Delivery2l inc.

3F 2283 Manila Memorial Park Bldg., Pasong
Tamo ext. Magallanes, Makati City,
Philippines

“N.A.-

Subsidiary

52.20%

Scetion 2{87)

38

Carthero Technologies Private Limited
No.93, 4th Floar, Salarpuria Business Center,
4th B Cross,Block-5, Koramangala Industrial
Layout Bengaluru Bangalore KA 560095 N

UT74900KA2015PTC079652

Subsidiary

84.45%

Section 2(87)

39

Zomate Media WLL

56, Sector 2, Palm Tower B, Plot Number
113439, West Bay, P.O. Box: 82365, Doha,
State of Qatar

“NA -

Joint Venture

49%

Seelion 2(6)
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VIl " PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPPOUNDING OF OFFENCES
Type " |Section ofthe  |Brief Description |Detals of Authority’ "|Appeall made if any (give details)
Companies Act Penalty/Punishm [{RD/NCLT/Court)
ent/Compoundin
g fees imposed
A, COMPANY
Penalty " NIL TNIL NIL NIL T NiL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL Nil.
Compounding NIL NIL NII, NIL NiL
B. DIRECTORS ' B
Penaity NIL NIL NIL NIL T NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NI
I | _ [
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty NIL TNIL NIL T NIL T TNIL
Punishment NIL. NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors
of Zomato Media Private Limited
Date: May 28, 2018
Place: Gurgaon
\o
Deepindel Goyal " Pafitaj Chaddah
Director Director

DIN: 02613583

DIN: 02625858




1.

REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

A brief outline of the company's CSIR policy, including overview of projects or programs
proposed to be uudertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and
projects or programs —

Zomato Media Private Limited’ CSR Policy strives for the betterment of society and has a
vision of promoting an inclusive and sustainable development of the environment it operates,
The CSR policy of the Company strives for the economic development that have positive
impact on the society at large with special focus on addressing hunger, malnutrition, poverty,
education and health apart form other areas through its activities. Zomato CSR’ Policy is

responsibility

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee —
The CSR Committee composed of:
S1. No. | Name of Member Designation
1 Pankaj Chaddah Chairman
2 Deepinder Goyal Member
3. Average net profit of the company for last three financial years - NIL
4. Preseribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 ahove) — NIL
5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year —
(a) Total amount to be spent for the financial ycar; N1L
~ (b) Amount unspent , if any; NIL
(c¢) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below.
(1) (2) 3) (4) 3) (6) (N (8)
S | CSR Sector in | Projects or Amount outlay | Amount spent | Cumulative | Amount
No. | project or which programs (budget) project| on the projects | expenditure | spent: Direct
activity the (1) Local Area | or programs OT programs up 1o the or through
identified project or other wise Sub Heads: reporting implementin
is (2)Specify the (1) Direct period g agency
covered | State and district Expenditure on
where projects or projects or
programs was programs
undertaken (2) Overheads:
] NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL




Give details of implementing agency:
6. In view of the losses, the Company has not spent any amount on the CSR activities.

7. The implementation and monitoring of the CSR Policy is in compliance with the CSR
objectives and policy of the company

| Q
P02
Deepindér Pankmml

Dvirector Director
DIN - 02613583 DIN - 02625858
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Part “B”: Associates and Joint Venlures

Annexure 1(v)

Statement pursuani to Sectiou 129 (3) of ihe Companies Act, 2013 related (o Associate Companics and Joint Ven (ures

Name of Associates/Joint Zomato Media WLL

Ventures

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet

Date 31-Mar-18

2. Date on whick the Associate or

Joint Venture was associated or 27-Mar-14
acquired

3. Shares of  Associate/Joind

Yentures held by the company on
the year end )

No. l 98
Amount  of  Investment  in

Associates/loinl Venture - 16,31,077
Extent of Holding % 49%

4. Deseription of how there i3
siguificant influence

5. Reason why the associate/joint :
veinture fs_not conselidated Not Applicable
6. Networth  attributable  to ’
Sharcholding as per latest audited

Joint Venture

Balance Sheet -1,76,86,391 .
6. Profit/ (Loss) for the year

i. Considered in 'Ck_msqlidation ) 90,23,519

ii. Not Considered in Congolidation | 0 '

1 Nemies of a:ssgéigtiﬁ’f» OF joint ventures which are yet 1o commence operations.
2. Netnes of assogiates or joint ventures which bave been liquidated or sold ‘during the year.

Note : Th is Fonn is td be eettified in the same inanner in which the Batance Sheet is to be certified.

»

- For and on ‘behalf of the Board of birecitors of
- Zomato Media Private Limited

Oyt !

(Director)
(DIN-02613583)

{Company Secrelary} s
(F-6348)

Place: Gurgaon
Date: May 28, 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUMTOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Zomato Media Private Limited
Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Zomato Media Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
s policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
p Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial
o statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
[ comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act., read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
.. preventing and detecting frands and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
[ accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fa_u' view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on
our audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder. We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS-financial statements in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,
as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirgments and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to frand or etrot. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control
relevant to the Company’s preparation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the standalone Ind AS financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial
statements.

SR, Ralltwel & Associales P, 2 Limiled Liabiity Fartnership wilh LEP dentity No, ASE /1295
Food, Oflice @ 22, Cameac Sircck, Block 'C, 3rdl Flaor, Kelkata-ioo ole
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Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018, its loss including other
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

i 1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11} of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure
1 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

{c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the boeks of account;

{d} In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e} On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2018, and taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2018,
from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and the operating
o effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies {(Audit and Aunditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company doesnot have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ke ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts includin g derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;
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iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Asscciates LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

=

b per Yogesh Midha

w Partner

i Membership Number: 94941
Place of Signature: New Delhi
[ Date: May 28,2018
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Anmexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and
regulatory requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Zomato Media Private Limited (‘the company’)

(1) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) All fixed assets bave not been physically verified by the management during the year
but there is a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No materldl
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

£ (¢) According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no
) immovable properties, included in property, plant and equipment of the company and
accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

() The Company’s business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the
requirements vnder paragraph 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company,

(iii) (a) The Company has granted loans to a company covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the terms and conditions of the grant of
such loans are not prejudicial to the company's interest.

{b) The Company has granted loans to a company covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. The schedule of repayment of prineipal and
payment of interest has been stipulated for the loans granted and the repayments are
regular.

(c) There ace no amounts of loans granted to companies, firms or other parties listed in the
register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 which are overdue
for more than ninety days.

{iv) Tn our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not advanced loans to directors / to a company in which the Director 1s
interested to which provisions of section 183 of the Companies Act, 2013 apply and
hence not commented upon. The provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 in respect of loans and advances given, investments made and, guarantees, and
securities given have been complied with by the company.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of
the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Ruies, 2014 (as amended).
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

(vi) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not
specified the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1} of the Companies
Act, 2013, for the products/services of the Company..
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(vii) (a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed

statutory dues including provident fund, income-tax, service tax, sales tax, value
added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it,
though there has been a slight delay in a few cases of professional tax and labour
welfare fund. The provisions of duty of custom, duty of excise are not applicable to
the company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, employecs’ state insurance, income-tax, service
tax, sales tax, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other material
statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of
income tax, sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, goods
and service tax and cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

(viii) The Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowing dues in respect of a
financia! institution or bank or to government or dues to debenture holders during the
year.

(ix) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer / further public offer
/ debt instruments and term loans hence, reporting under clause (ix) is not applicable
to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(%) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and
fair view of the financial statements and according to the information and
explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud by the company or no
fraud on the company by the officers and employees of the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act is not applicable to the
company and hence reporting under clause 3(xi) are not applicable and hence not
commented uporn.

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of
clanse 3(xii) of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

(xiii)  According to the information and explanations given by the management,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of Companies
Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the
financial staternents, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The
provisions of section 177 are not applicable to the company and accordingly reporting
under clause 3(xiii) insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to
the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xiv)  According to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has complied with provisions of section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 in
yespect of the private placement of shares during the year. According to the
information and explanations given by the management, we report that the amounts
raised, have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised. The
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Chartered Accountants
company has not made any preferential allotment of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review.

{xv) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not entered inte any non-cash. transactions with directors or persons
connected with him as referred to in section 192 of Compantes Act, 2013.

(xvi)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section
45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004
Chartered Accountants

=

per Yogesh Midha
Partner
Membership Number: 94941

Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: May 28, 2018
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ANNEXURE 2 TQ THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPCRT OF EVEN DPATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ZOMATO MEDIA PRIVATE LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls nnder Clause (1) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Aect, 2013 (“*the Act”)

b We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Zomato Media Private Limited (“the
Company™) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalonc financial statements of the
[74] Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Respoasibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible tor establishing and maintaining internal fizancial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
‘Reporting issued by the Institute of Charfered Accountants of India. These responsibilities incliude the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal finanecial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safzguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and crrors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013, '

Ll Anditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's iaternal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these standalone financial statements based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repotting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section [43(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both {ssued by the Tnstitute of Chartered Accountants of
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
contrals over financial reparting with teference to these standalone financial statements and their operating
effectiveness, Qur audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone linancial statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
eror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obfained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
epinion on the inlernal tinancial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial
staternents, '

Meaning of Iaternal Financial Controls Over Financizl Reporting With Reference to these Finanecial
Statements :

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial
statements is a process desipned to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of tinancial reporting”
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes i accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference o these standalone
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financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2}
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessaty to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasenable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Standalone Financial Statements

Becanse of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or impreper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projeciions of any
gvaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with veference to these standalone financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with
reference to these standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, ot
that the degree of compliance with the policiss or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financlal statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018,
based on the internat control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FCAI Firm Registration Number: 101 049W/E300004

per Yogesh Midha

Partner

MMembership Number: 94941
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: May 28, 2018

&




Zomaio Medin P*rivale Limited
Standalone Bulanee Sheet as at 31 March 2018
CIN : V330300 LI010PTC I 954

Asar As ar
Noles 31 March 2018 51 March 2017
(T N (T KIn,)
Assels
Nou-corrent azsets
Propenty, plani end equipment 3 arzi L17.48
Capitsl work-in-prowress 745 -
Orher Imangible assets 4 4.77 9.75
Intangible assets under de velopment S0k 633
Financiol asscts
Invesiments i 417591 Z.165.66
Uyiher Financial aoset LE 50234 4254
Prepayments and oflicr asscls 13 4.57 10,09
4,737.66 2,402,35
Current nsgels
Fivecial azsels
Investmants G & 190.63 34193
Trade receivables ] 7 100,40 133,03
Cash & cash equivalents . 2 al.oz 27047
Bunk hulances other than "Chale & cosl cquivalents” o 1,075.44 571.00
Loang . 10 0.20 it
Oher Aoameiut wsset 11 45.70 476.08
Current Tax asscis (Met) 12 R4.40 348
Propayimenis and oflier assels 13 405,06 131.52
10385896 199615
Total assets 15,120.62 4,398.50
Equity and liabilitiea
Kty
Equity shire capital 14 0.30 0.27
Instrunents enkively equity in nature ' 14 1.7453.75 1.515.53
Onler Equity : 15 12,47 40 2,526.42
Total equity 14L191.45 1BdLT2
Now-cwrrend labilities
Fiogmeinl liabililies
Trnde payables 6 25,32 36.19
Prowision for emploves enefils 17 5710 5709
82,42 03,28
Curreat inbidities
Finameiol liphilities
Tuade pravahles i 515,49 25819
il Gaainednl ligbilities I8 [.89 632
Other current lighilities £ 314,06 170,16
Prtywision far cployes benefits . [ 17.31 ] 2083
852,75 dind, 50
Total Rabilitiey #35.17 551,78
Totad cowity nad Linbilities . 15,124,462 430850
Surnmiary o siguificant nccounting plicies 22
The weoompanying notes sre an integral pat ok siandalone financisd
slatements.
Az per gut tepurt uf cven dafe
For SR.Bathbol & Associates LLFP ot and on helalf of the Bourd of Diractors o
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1 Zomato Media Private Limited
Standalonc statement of profit and loss for the year ended 3§ March 2088
CIN : U¥3030DL2010PTC158141

Natcs 31 March 2418 31 parch 2017
(T Min.) (Z Mn,)
" neome
Revenue fenm operations 20 371030 2.451.1¢
3 Other income 21 174.25 548,54
Total Incomc 3,884.55 3,090, 7)
Expenses
 Employee benefits expense 22 1,945.14 i.865.87
| Finance Costs 23 © 24130 146,78
" Depreciation and amortization expense 24 123.09 17929
| CHier expenses 25 2.286,95 1,504.78
* Total Lxpenses 4,602.48 3.696.72

Loss before exceptional items and tax (717.93) (A07.402)
feeptional items 26 67.00 525562
Luss before tax (7HL.93) {5,852,6d)
" Current tax - -

- Deferred tax - “
. Ingome tax expense - -

Loss for the year {784.93) (3.852.64)

Other comprehensive income:
items that will not be reclassilfed io profil or loss Jn subsequent periods:
. Re-measurement gains/losses) on defined benelil plang 0.10 1.9

Items that will be reclassilicd 10 profil or loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange diffcrences on translation of foceign operations 13.43 1201
Other comprehensive income for the year 13.53 14.01

Total compreliensive loss for the year (77E.40) (5,838.63)

i Loss per equity share 27
- Bagic & Diluted {r00) (&02)

Summary ol signiltcant acconnting policies 1.2

i) The geeom panying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial
statelnents.

As per our report of even dute
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per Yogesh Midha ' Dbcpmder m}'al \'ankaj Chaddah
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FZomaro Media Privare Timited
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- Standalone Cash Flow Sintemment for (he year endled 31 March 2018

=CIN ; U93030DL2CI0PTC198141

31 March 2013

31 March 2017

(F Ma.) (T Mn.)
A)  Operating activitics

Laoss belore tax (764.93) {5.852.04)
Adjustment fo reconcile loss before tax to nef cash Aows
Liabilitics written back {0.67) (3.30)
Execss provision written back (11.8%) (14.63)
Depreciation of property, plant and squipment 114.94 163.00
Amaortization of intangible sssets 1015 16,29
Provision for doubtful debs 51.06 23.86
Provision lor doubtful Advances 4.91 -
Allowance lor credit loss an trade recsivahle written back {2.¢0) {14.22)
Unroalised Gain on Investment at Fair Yalue through Profis and Loss (67.27) (4.51)
BGad debls written off 788 1.42
Adviances Written otf - 554
Gain on salg of current investments (27.85) {24.65)
Provision for diminufion in value of investment in subgidiary company 67.00 5,255.62
Share Based Payment Expense 4371 177.95
Loss/{protif} on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net) {141} 1.09
Finance income (including fair valus change in financial instmments) - {423.77)
Finance costs {including thir value change in finaneial inshraments) - 27970
Re~-measurement gaing/(lnsses) on defined benefit plans 010 1.5
Exchange differences on translation of forcign operations 13.43 i2.11
Iuterest expense 0.03 38.65
Interest income (61.57) (L18.8)
Opervating Loss before Working Capital Changes (646.4%) (477.41)
Maovements i working capital ;
{Incroase) in lrade receivables (108.39) (65.53)
Deerease (Increase) in lnancinl assets 2181 {3352.64)
{Inerease) in other assels (257.5%) (52.22)
Deereasefs (Increase) Increase in Lomss 11.01 (3.1%)
Increased{ Decrease} in Other financial tahilities - (Ch28)
Inercase in provisions 10.36 71.95
Inercase in Other Liabilities 135.58 873
Increase in ade payables 251.43 [15.35
Cash used in nperations (5§2.28) [755.24)

" bicome taxes paid {34,48) (22.24)
Net eash nsed in operating activities (A) (616.68) (777.48)
Investing agtivities !
Purchase of praperty, plant & cquipment (including capital work in progress and capital advances) {48.81) (52.9%)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment 2.23 623
Investment in bank deposits (with matugity mwore than toree months) {1.612.8) -
Purchase of ntangible Asscts including Intangible Assets under Development (3.74) -
Maturily of bank deposils (having original malurity of more than 3 months) 109634 1,125.05
Proceeds on gale of linangial assets - Liguid mutual fund unis 221041 3,149.60
Payment to acquire financial assels - Liguid mutual fund uniis {9.976.U0 (2,978.50)
[pvesiment in subsidiarics [204.3(h) {304.00
[nvestment in Mon currenl imvestinent (5.00) -
Payment towards acquisilion of business [479.43) -
Interest recerved §1.67 115.82
WNet easly flow fromf(uzed in} investing activities (B) (8.952.63) 973.22
Einancing activitics
Repayments of shorl term borrowings - {1917

- Proceeds from issuance of shaec dapiial 9,699.5¢ 0.01
I'ransaction cost an isswe of sharcs (9707 (1.31)
Interest paid (0.03) {38.65)
Net eash flows from/(nsed in} financing activities (C) 9,689:-86 (59.12)
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+3+C) t20.55 136.62
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of (he year 270.47 133.85
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the vear (refler Note 8) 381.02 27047




Zomato Media Private Limited
|'| Standakone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 Mareh 2018
CIN G USM30DLINOFTCIYE141

31 March 2018 31 Mavek 2017
 Mn,) (2 Mn.}

MNon-cash investing transaclion
Acquisition of Carthere Technologics Pyt Ltd. by issue of Compulserily converible 1.284.02 -
cumulative prelerence shares

Amendment to lod AS 7

Effective April 1 2017, the Company adopted the amendmens (¢ lad AS 7, widch requires fho entities ta provide disclosures (hat coable nsers of financial stafemenls to
evaiuate changes in liabililies arising from financing activities. including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash chunges, suggesting inclusions of a
reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the Balance sheet for liabilities arising fran fimancing activities, to meet the disclosure requircnaenl. The
adaption of amendment did nol have any impact on the financial statements.

Summiry of sigpificant accounting palicies 1.2

g As per oar ceport ol even daile

For 8, L. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behall of the Board of Dirsctors of
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Zomato Media Private Limited
Notes to standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2048
CIN: U93030DL2010PTC198141

1. Corporate [nformation

Zomato Media Private Limited (‘the Company” or ‘Zomato’), including branches, primarily operates as an
internet portal providing multitude of information, including but not limited to details of menus, contacts,
discount offers, quality of service and food w.it restavrants and caterers and other service providers, online
ordering of food from select restaurants, to be availed by users of the website in making informed decisions ahout
their dining options and related facilities and by restaurants, hotels and other caterers to advertise themselves to
the target audience in India and abroad.

The company is domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in
India, The registered ofice of the company is located at GF — 12A, 94, Meghdoot, Nehru Place, New Delhi -

110019,
The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018, were approved by the Board of Directors and
authorized for issue on May 28, 2018.

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements and Significant Accounting Policies

24 Bagis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS), under
the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except certain financial instrument which are measured at fair
values, the provisions of the companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) {to the extent notified). The Ind AS are prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with rule 3 of the companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and
<o relevant amendment rules issued thereatter. '

Effective April 1, 2016, the company has adopted all the Ind AS standards and the adoption was carried out in
accordance with Ind AS 101 First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standard, with April 1, 2015 as the
e transition date. The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting Prineiples generally accepted in India as
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) rudes, 2014 (IGAAP),
| which was the previous GAAP.

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
R statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all amounts disclosed in the financial statements and
notes have been rounded off to the nearest Million (as per the requirement of Schedule III), unless otherwise
stated.

2.2 Summary of significant acceunting policies

1 Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of 1Ind
AS requires the management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that etfect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting
period. Although these estimates are based on the tnanagsment’s best knowledge of curvent events and actions,
uncertainty about these

Assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets or liabilities in future periods.

Pt
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Zomato Media Private Limited
Notes to siandalone Financial Siatements for the year ended 31 Maich 2018
CIN: U93030DL2010PTC198141

fi. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An
asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting petiod

=
1
Lo o

All other assets are classified as non-current,

A lability is current when:

a. It s expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

b. Itis held prirmarily for the purpose of trading -

<. Itis due to be settled within twelve months afier the reporting period, or

d. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

The Company classifies all other Liabilities as non-current,
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-cirrent assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisaiion in cash and
cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle,

iif. Foreign currencies

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees. For each foreign branch the Company
determines the functional currency and items included in the financiat statements of each entity are measured
using that functional carrency, which is the currency of their countries of domicile,

Transactions and balances
Transactiens in foreign currencies are injtially recorded in the functional currency spot rates at the date the

(I transaction first qualifies for recognition, However, for practical reasons, the company uses an average rate ifthe
i average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction,

Monetary assets and liahilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot
rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss with
the exception of the following:

a. Exchange differences arising on monetary itetns thar forms part of a reporting entity’s net investment in a
foreigm operation are recognized in profit or loss in the separate financial statements of the reporting entity or the
individual financial statements of the foreign operation, as appropriate. In the financial statements that inciude
the foreign operation and the reporting entity (¢.g., financial statements when the foreign operation is a branch),
such exchange differences are recognised initially in OCI. These exchange differences are reclassified fiom
equity to profit or loss on disposal of the net investment.

o
3

s




Zomate Media Private Limited
Notes to standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
CIN: U23030DL2010PTC198141

b, Tax charges and credits atiributable to exchange differences on those monetary ttems are also recorded in
CClLL

Non-inonetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are transtated using the
6 exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair valus in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value (s determined. The gain or loss
S arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
£ain or [0ss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
foss is recognised in OC) or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

Foreign branches

On consalidation, the assets and liabilitics of forsign operations are translated into Indian Rupees at the rate of

_ exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their statements of profit or loss are translated at exchange rates

! prevailing at the dates of the transactions. For practical reasons, the company uses an average rate to translate
income and expense items, if the average rate approximates the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.,

il The exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation are recognised in OC1. On disposal of a foreign

o operation, the component of QCI relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Cumulative currency translation differences for all foreign operations are deemed to be zero at the date of
;| transition, viz., | April 2016. Gain or loss on a subsequent disposal of any foreign operation excludes translation
' ditferences that atose before the date of transition but includes only translation differences arising after the
o transition date

iv. Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial insteuments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

) Fair valug is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
il between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the ransaction ¢o sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

#. Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
h. 1nthe ahsence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liabikity

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company

o ' The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
: when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use,

|

|
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable nputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assetg and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised

within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, hased on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement as a whole:

a. Level I — quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
b. Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable




Zomato Media Private Limited
Notes to standatone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
CIN: US3030DLZ016PTC193141

¢. Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based
on the lowest level input that is signiticant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

The Company’s finance tearn determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement,
such as deeivative instruments and unguoted financial assets measured at fair value, The team comprises of the
¥P Finance and Director Finance.

External valuers are jnvelved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities, Involvement of external valuers
is decided on the basis of nature of transaction and complexity involved. Selection criteria include marlcet
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.

At each reporting date, the finance team analiyses the movemenis in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the team
verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valvation computation
to contracts and other relevant documents. A change in fair value of assets and liabilities is also compared with
relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and labilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and tisks of the asset or fiability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value, Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
relevant notes.

v. Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impaitment loss, if any

Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment. When significant parts of plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them

Separatefy based on their specific useful tives. Likewise, whep a major inspection is performed, its. cost is
recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are
satisfied, All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Capital work ih progress is stated at cost, net of aceumulated impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation on all property plant and equipment are provided on a straight line method based on the estimated
useful life of the asset, which is as follows.

Property, plant and equipment Useful lives as per Schedule II | Useful lives estimated by
o T S management o
Air Conditioner 5 years 3 years o
Electrical Equipment’s 3 years years .
Furniture & Fittings [0 years | 3 years
| Computers 3 years i 2 years
Motor Vehicles 8 years Syears
Telephone Instruments 5 years 2 years




Fomato Media Private Limited _
MNotes to standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
CIN: US330DL2OEPTCI981410

Leasehold Improvements are amortised over 4 years or kife based on lease period, whichever is lower, Based on
the expected useful lives ofthese assets, the Company has considered below mentioned useful lives for different
classes of assets:

2 The usefill lives of electrical equipment’s, furniture and fittings, computers, air conditioners and felephone
instruments are estimated as 3,3,2,3 and 2 respectively. These lives are lower than those indicated in
schedule 1I to Companies Act 2013,

«  Improvements to leaschold buildings not owned by the Company are amortized over the lease period or
estimated useful life of such improvements, whichever is lower.

The management has estimated the useful lives and ‘residwal values of all property, plant and equipment and
adopted useful lives based on management’s assessment of their respective economic useful lives. The residnak
values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Depreciation on the assets purchased during the year is provided on pro-rata basis from the date of purchase of
the assets, Individual assets costing less than INR 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or dispesal. Any gain or loss arising on
-derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset) is included in the income staiement when the asset is derscognised.

vi. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost, Following imtial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economie life
being 2 years and assessed for impairment whenever ihere is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an Intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to medify the
amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite {ives is recognised in the statement of profit and Joss unkess
such expenditure fosms part of carrying value of another asset.

Giains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the staternent of profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.

¥ii. Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains} a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement
at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or containg, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent
on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that
right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

For arrangements entered into prior to | April 2013, the Comipany has determined whether the arrangement
contain lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition.

Company as a lesses

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transters
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance fease,

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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viii.

iX.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the ecomomic benefits will flow to the company and
the revenue can be reliably measured regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the
fair value of the consideration received or receivable, iaking into account contractually defined terms of payment
and excluding taxes or duties collected on beha!f of the government. The Company has concluded that it is the
principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has
pricing latitude and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks. Revenue in excess of billings is recognised as
unbilled revenue in the balance sheet: to the extent billings are in excess of revenue recognised, the excess is
reported as unearned and deferved revenue in the balunce sheet.

Service Tax/Sales tax/ value added tax (VAT Goods and service tax {GST) is not received by the ccompany an
its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the services/commadity by the seller on behalf of
the government, Accordingly, it is excluded from revenuc.

The specific recognition criteria deseribed below must also be met before revenue is recognised.
Rendering of Services
Advertisement income

Revenue from operating an internet portal providing all sorts of information about restaurants and caterers for
display of adveriisements are recognized on display of advertisements.

Subscripfion revenne

Revenues from subscription contracts are recognized on accrual basis in accordance with terms of agreement
entered into with customer.

Online Ordering

Revenues from Online Ordering are recognized in the form of comniission income on accruai basis in accordance
with the terms of agreement entered into with customers,

Interest

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method. Interest income is included under the head
“other income ™ in the statement of profit and loss.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the forms of provident fund social scourily is a defined contribution scheme. The Company
has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fundfsocial security. The Company
recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme/ social security scheme as an expense, when an
employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received betore the
balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a
liability after deducting the conteibution already paid. If the contribution atready paid exceeds the contribution
due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an assel 1o the extent that the
pre-payment wili lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

In case of other foreign branches, contributions are made as per the respective country laws and regulations. 'The
same is charged to statement of profit and loss on accrual basis, There is no obligation beyond the Company’s
contribution.

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India and Middle Fast.
The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit lability are recognised immediately in the batance sheet with a corresponding debit or eredit Lo
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| retained earnings through OCT in the period in which they occur, Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent peariods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the eatlier of:

a. The date of the plan samendiment or curtailment, and
b. The date that the Company recognises related reséructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit Hability. The Company recognises
the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

1 a. Service cosiz comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and Josses on  curtailments and non-
routine settlements; and
b, Netinterest expense

The Company afsc operates & leave encashment plan. The company treats accumulated leave, which is expected
to be utilized within the next 12 months, as shott-term employee benefit. The company measures the expected
cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has
accumlated at the reporting date.

i, Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authotities. The tax rates and tax laws used to cornpute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable
income.

|
| Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either
in ather comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
| returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented inthe balance sheet after off-setiing advance
tax paid and income tax provision arising in the same tax jurisdiction and where the relevant tax paying units
intends to scttle the asset and liability on a net basis, P

Dedeired taxes

Deferred tax is previded using the liability method on temporary differences hetween the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporiing purposes at the reporting <ate.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

a. When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is aot 2 business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss, :

b. Inrespect of taxable temporaty differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax eredits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that i¢ is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

a. When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible teraporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss,

b. Inrespect of deductibie temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets
are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the forcsceable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the terporary ditferences can be utilized.

B The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is

L no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit wiil be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to

i be utilised, Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
=5 comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correation to the underlying transaction
it either in OCI or directly in equity.

u Peferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
_ assets against current tax liabilicies and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
e anthority.

‘ xi.  Share based payment

Employees (including senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based

] payments, whereby employees render services as consideration for cquity instruments {(equity-settled
u transactionss).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an

appropriate valuation model.

o That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense.
b The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the number of
1 equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or credit for a period
represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is
recognised in employee benefits expense. :

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken inte account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company’s best estimate
of the pumber of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award
and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions,

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service
conditions have not been met. Where awards include & market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are
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treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that ail other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recogmised is the expense had the
terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense is recognised for
any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification, Where an award is cancelled by the entity or
by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through profit
or loss,

118 Segment reporting
Identification of segmenis

The Company’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the geographical
tocations of the customers, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that serves different markets.
The “Others® segment includes those segments, which are not separately reportable as per Ind AS 108,

Allecation of common costy

Commeon allocable costs are allocated to each segment according to the relative contribution of each segment to
the total common costs.

Unallocated items

Unallocated items include general corporate income and expense items which are not allocated to any business
segment.

xidi. Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the peried attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average numbey of
equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

xiv, Provisions and Centingent liabilities

i) Provisions

i Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a refiable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to & provision
is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the ime value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When dlscountmg is wsed, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

ey

ko i) Contingent Liability

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be
confirmed anly by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one are more uncerlain future events not wholly within
the control of the Institute, or is a present obligation that arises from past event but is not recognised because
either it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. Contingent liabilities are
disclosed and not recognised.
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Tv. Financial instrnments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assels

Inifial recognition and measurement

All financial assets ave recogmised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Trade
receivables are initially measured at transaction price. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (tegular way trades)
are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurentent
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two categories:

1. Financial assets carried at amortised cost
2. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL)

Financial assets af amortised cost
A “financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting  contractual  cash
flaws, and

b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPT} on the principal amount outstanding,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance
income inthe profit or loss, The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category
generally applies to trade and other receivables, -

Financial assefs at FVTPL
FVTPL is a residuat calegory for financial assets. Any financial assets instrument, which does not meet the

criteria for categorization as at ameortized cost or as FVTOCN, is classified as at FVTPL,

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in
the P&L.

Equity instrumenis

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 at fair value, other than
investments in equity instruments in subsidiaries, joint venture, which are carried at cost,

Devecoghition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets)
is ptimarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet} when:

i. The rights to receive cash flows fiom the asset have expired, or

L:%:] ii. The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through” arrangement;
and either {(a) the company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or {b) the
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company has neither transterred nor refained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transterred control of the assat.

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks snd rewards of ownership. When
it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transfecred control
of the asset, the company continues to recognise the transfesred asset to the extent of the company’s continuing
B involvement. In that case, the company also recognhises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the

" associated Hability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the company has retained,

Continning involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the company could be
required to repay.

i i Tmpairment of finnncial assefs

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) modet for measurement and
[ = recognition of impairment loss on the following financial asscts and credit risk exposure:

i. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost c.g., loans, debt securities,
R deposits, trade receivables and bank balance
) ii. Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
¥ transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 18

“The company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment Joss allowance on trade receivables.
The application of simplified approach does not require the company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
L. recognition,

[ .- i Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetimé ECL which results from default events that
[ are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance with the
y 1] contract and aftl the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.¢., all cash shortfatls), discounted at the original
EIR. When estimating the ¢ash flows, an entity is required to consider:

i. All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options)
i over the expected life of the financial instrument, Flowever, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial
- instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the
: | : financial instrument
Ll ii. Cash flows from the sale of collateral beld or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

|

; As a practical expedient, the company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on
S Y portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the
f expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the
‘ historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

In case any balance is disputed by the customer then it will be reviewed separately for creating the pravision and
amount up ta (00% of the balance may be provided on the basis of nature of dispute. Any disputed balance
which is considered separately will be excluded from the normal ageing bucket for making the provision,

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal} recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in

the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L, The
Bz balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:
i

i Financiol assels measured as al amortised cost, contractial revenue recefvables: BECL is presented as an
allowasnce, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance
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f reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-oft criteria, the company does not reduce
: impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

: For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the company combines financial instruments on the
- basis of shared credit rislc characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable
i significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financiaf liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
joans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts.

Subsequent measurenent
The measurement of Tinancial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

1. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities hekd for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. Financiza! liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS
109. Separated ermbedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as ctfective
hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabiltties held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such
at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as
FVEPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are vecognized in OCI. These gains/
joss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
The company has designated all financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss (except for loans and
borrowings).

ji. Loans and borrowings - Afier initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured ai amoriised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premiurs on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit
and loss. This category generally applies to barrowings.

Derecognition
@’fé A financial liability s derecognised when the obligation under the tiability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

& o
= Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid {combined} instrument that also includes a non-derivative
host contract — with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a
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standalone derivative. An embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be
required by the contract t0 be modified according to a specified interest rate, financial instrument price,
commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable,
provided in the case of a nonfinancial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract,
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the
cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through
profit or loss.

1f the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset within the scope of Ind AS 109, the company does
not separate embedded derivatives. Rather, it applies the classification requirements contained in Ind AS 109 1o
the entire hybrid contract. Derivatives embedded in alt other host contracts are accounted for as separate
derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those
of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or designated at fair value though profit or
loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss, unless designated as effective hedging instruments.

Offsetting of finnnciol instriiments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realise the assets and seitle the liabilities simultanecusly,

xvi, Impairment of non-financial assets

The company assesses, at cach reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the company estimaies the
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amourt is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's
(CGU) fair value less costs of dispozal and its value in nse. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGL exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to jts recoverable amount.

In asgessing value in vse, the estimated future cash flows are discounied to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset, [n determining fair vatue less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. Tf no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated
by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for pubiicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators,

The company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and
forecast calenlations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is
caleulated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond
periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the company extrapolates cash flow projections in the
budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In
any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industnies, or
couritry or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairtment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previonsly recognised impainment Josses ne longer exist or have decreased, I such indication
exists, the company estimates the asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the assef’s recoverable
amount since the lasl impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amcunt of the
asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that woukt have been determined,
net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is
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recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the

LA
Zomato Media Private Limited
reversal is treated as a revaluation increase,

Goodwill is tested for impaitment annually as at 31 March and when circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU {or group of CGUs)
to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its cattying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

xvii.  Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directty attributable te the aequisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended uss or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the
asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they oceur. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also
includes exchange ditferences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the bortowing costs,

xvili. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statsment of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits,
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts {if any) as they are considered an integral part of the
company’s cash management,




[yue]q 52 Sfeucuuiul Usaq sey aceds SIEL) -

TOURIQ W] |RIFIA-008] I UOISIIAU0D U utnpenidng 3Fuegixa wfaagy 1o Joaome juasadad pswgso iy,

TTEE [T ¥RT 9¢TT S6 1 95'T 010 £G°81 S1GT G3TEIN ISEC k¥
8F LI - 1T 0T’ 8417 £ (253 TL0 v ik B LINT YT ISEE 4V
HIOIE I
. 05 LLf a6 L0T #'L 18951 107 LTR 69°7 0L SU0T WIATIN 25TE 2
00 00 oo £00 L) Qo - 1600) 3133 TOlRRAN] ] aFungag
Lo o oo ] 030 000 - 100 (G0 $2432501 O0UETIAN]) STEYRT
(23°56} {60 - a091} (181} a9zl {970} [grreL) siesadsicy
FGFlL L0 gt IrD £L1E 1£°€ PET 059 LYY uangalag
TC19E 18758 Wl 01191 0981 P8 'L 0668 LIOT YT 516 3%
(1T} LT [GTE) 1550} 19570} 00} - (g ARIFEIY WOUTAIIN|J ITnERg
(g1} {11 {000} {roQ) (8o} (900} - {pz) (0] y2atasal aonenong sfuegsxg
eeeel ogo (r10} AR g ¥ {ptg} ol 0u'e pga) s|esarsg
66291 €9 £ LULL §5¢ 01e 5 96 6F uone s dacg
[[4:344 L0 gL §9°66 68791 (18] 051 STTF SEOT Bdy 1sp Y
afprpastag]
1Lty 9.°801 gTF 91°3LE 26707 €101 60 £C68 S10T YL BSIE 3%
o wo ) €00 100 000 - (00 so2ua1aHQ ATy
(ro'gl (c6'0} - {geon) {161} le0'c) (07'0} 8020 [esodsiy
- . . - . - - - <SIRLSOPY 22110
6F'SE ¥9'[2 - 0911 ELD LTl 310 L0 SUOTpEy
SL'RLE 50'8% 8TF 88781 1444 §6'T1 LTS £€°991 LTOT YT 5516 3%
(98T} tal'g) [FOT] e L [CTE {r10} - ern Sestaay sFuseNg
(LoFel (¥} (8¥'0) {1g'81) {8g7¢) oD - 87'8) [esadsiy
. - - - - - - - LEnsmsnlpy 9y
o1 or £5ET 16 6601 o $9°1 - 39t SUONIppY
Iy £9%5 LY 96° 161 FL9T ezl LTE S0TLT BLOE dy 18] 1Y
. : .._a_u.ﬂ___u.ﬂ.r L] .wm-unv

pLil b EL T SATITYR A, S0P seapnidia Ty Sumy pur aamymenyg  yummdmby JIUOTHPUOY A1y Jumeaaredour] PSR

suoqdaey, jexaeF

AT pue puefd Sasdoag €

[#I86 T LAOLOTTAOENEET F NI
SIOZ WMTIY [§ p2pud aead Sy J0] SHEAUSIELS fEEMTEUT] JUMTEDEENS 0) S8y

PR AeAllJ BpRR SwEmeE




Zomato Medio Private Limited
Notes to standal financial stas

Civ : U93050DL2010FTCI98141

t3 Tor the year ended 31 RMurch 24015

4. Other Entangible As=sets
Intangible Assets

At Lst April 2016

Purchagse

Duspasal

Exchange fluctzation reserve®
At 31st Mareh 2017
Purchase

Disposal

Exchange fluctuation reserve®
At 3lst March 2018

Amortfization

At Bst Apnd 2016

Charge for the year

Digpaosals

Exchange fluctuation * (OB
Exchange fluctuation reserve *
At 3st Marck 2087

Charpe for the year

Disposals

Exchange fluctation ¥ (OR)
Exchange flucteation reserve *
Av 3ist March Hi%

MNet Block
At 31st March 2017
At 31st March 2018

AAQIastment vepresent ansonne of foreien exchange cmiation on comversian aof Mon-ingegral foreign beanch.

(¥ Mn)
Software and website Trademarks
34,51 £.55 3906
1.54 6.58 812
(0.34) - {0.34)
(9.05) - {0.05)
3866 1113 44679
1.69 247 3,16
0.00 -
37.35 - 1480
17.08 4.0¢ 11.11
1385 245 16.30
{035 - (0.23)
(0.03) - (0.05)
(0.0} (0,007 0,00
30.55 6.4% 37.04
ST 498 10.15
0.00 - Q.00
(0.01} - {0.01)
3571 11.47 4718
511 4.64 9.75
1.64 313 437

{This space has been intentionally Ieft Hlanl)




Lomato bledia Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2418
CIN : U93030DL2G10PTC198141

5 Financial assets - Investments {(Non-current) 31 Murch 2018 31 March 2017
Investments at Cost {T Mn.} T Mn)
Investiment in Unguoted equity instruments {fully paid)

Tuwesiment in subsidiaries

Zomatn Media Portuga), Unipessoal LDA 132.07 1G7.95
1,620,000 (3} March 2017:1,340,000) equity shaves of Euro | each in Zomato Media

Portugal, Unipessoal LDA *

Zomato Midia Brasil, Ltda ) 19.94 1904
748,009 (31 March 2017749 999) equity shares of BRL | each in Zontato Midia Brasil,

Ltda

{Atcast less proviston for other than temporary diminution in value % 193,94 Mn. (31

March 2017: Tt9.94 M. 1)

Zomato Mew Zealand Media Private Lunted 23127 226.04
4,650,000 (31 March 2017: 4,650,000} equity shares of NZD 1 each in Zomato NZ Media Private Limited *

(Atcost less provision for other than temporary diminetion i value T 37.54 Mn, {31 March 2017; 337,54 Mn.))
Zomato Ireland Limitad 7,509.35 7.641.88

103,791,117 (31 March 2017:101,452,537) equity shares of Euro 1 each in Zomato leeland Limited *
{At cost Jess proviston for other than temporary diminution-in value T6,243.85 Mn, (31 March 2017 26,178 45

Mu.})

PT Zomato Media Indonesia 74.39 7801
1,223,145 (31 March 2017:1,223,145 equity shares of IDR 11,647 cach in PT Zomato Mediz Indonesia *

Zomato Media (Private) Limited 334 3134

7,00,000 {31 Warch 2017:700,000) equity shares of LKR ) cach in Zomate Media {Private) Limited

(At cost less provision for other then temponu}r diminution in value 73.35 Mo, (31 March 2017: € 335 M)
Zomato Chile Spa 5322 53,62

105,537 (31 March 2017:102,394) equity shares of CLP 5,600 cach in Zomako Chile SpA

(At cost less provision for other than temporacy diminution in value 7 5522 Mn, (31 March 2017:  53.62 Mo )}

Zomato Middle East BZ - LLC 23539 235139
13,000 (31 March 201713004} equity shares of AED 1,000 guch in Zanato Middle East BZ - LLC

Zomato loternet Private Limited 0.10 0.10
16,000 (31 March 2017:10,000) equity shares of INR 10 each in Zomato Internet Private leﬁed

Carthero Technologies Private Limited 1,773.45 _

54,275 (31 March 201 7:NIL) equity shares of INE. 10 €ach in Carthero Technologies Private Limited#
10,438.52 : §,366.27

Fnvestment in joint ventures
Zomato Madia WLL 163 1.63
98 (31 March 2017 : 98} equity share of QAR 1,000 each fully paid in Zomato Media WLL '

163 I )
Other Investments-lnvestment in Preference Instrumenis
3417 {31 March 2017.5417) 0.00001% of Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of
220 sach fully paid in Grab A Grub Services Private Limited 9066 9060
2,553 {31 March 2017 Nilj 0.01% of Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of ¢
cach fulty paid in Vicinia Relafl Private Limnited 481 -
T 4T L
Other Investments-Investment in Equily Tnstruments -
104 (31 March 2017 Nil) Equity Shares of 210 each fully paid in Vicinia Retail Private .
Limited 0.19 -
0.19 -
Total of Non Current Investments HL335.81 543836
Frovisien for impairment in valee of investment £,359.90 £,292.90
tIEITSSI 2,165,606
Apgregate amount of unquoled investments 4,175.91 . 2,165.66
Apgregate pravision for impainnent in value of investments £,359.90 6,202.90

# includes shares 1ssued for consideration other than cash
* includes cost of stock options allocated to subsidiary companies for stock oplions given
to employees of subsidiary companies

{Thiy space has been imtentianally left blank)




Zomato Mledia Privaéc Limited
Neoles te standalone financin] statcments for the yeur ended 31 March 2018
CIN = L93030DLZH0PTC1981 41

& Financial nsscts - Invesé ts (current)

31 March 2118

31 Mareh 2017

Unquotecd Mutual funds

PFlam

Na. of Uglis (2 Mn}  No. of Units {Z Mn.)
Investrments at fuir value throogh Profit & Loss
Axis Liquid Fond - Direct - Geowwth 144,784 201386 - -
Aditya Rida Sun Life Floating Rate Fund- Long Tenm- Growth- Direct Pam 25.78,733 555,27 - -
Invesco [ndix Liquid Fund-Direet Plan Growih (formerly known as Retipare Tavesco India 14,774 3534 GOl 21.27
Liquid Fund-Direct Plan Growth) '
SBI-Tdagnwn Invta Cash Eand-Direct Plan Growtly 7,805 36.34 11,168 40,18
Franklin India {ftra Shert Bond Fund Super Institutional Pian- Direct - Growth Plan 44 45 374 107,31 13,775,907 Kith)
1CIC] Prudential Flexible Tncome - Direct Plan Growth 14,37 257 55531 - -
Relance Liquid Fund-Treasury Plan-Tireet Grovwth Plan - - 24,731 94 45
Footak Low Dwuration Fund - Direck - Growth 2.53,695 55579 - -
Franklin India Treasury Management Account - Super Instilutional Plan - Direset Growth - - 8,685 21.12
Katak Floater Short Term - Direct Flan Growth 706,048 2013.62 - -
India Bubls Liquid Fimd - Direct Plan - Growtly - - 48703 7138
Indiabulis Ultra Short Term Fund - Direct Plan Growth - USGI 1,733 XL - -
L&T Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth - - 10,625 2370
Adilya Birla Sun life Cash Plus-Direct Plan — Growth Direet Plan 08 736 1758 64,845 16,55
Reliance Medium Tenn Fund- Direct Blan Growth Pran- Growth Option 14937403 55571 - -
Aditys Birle Sun Life Floating Rate Fund Short Teem Plan- Growth- Diirect Plan 75,15,574 1,743.50 74 496 16.16

8,196.63 34&

Aggregate smount of unguoted investments (¥ Mn.} 8,196.63 341.93

(This space has beew infenlfonally tefi bimk)




Zomato Media Private Lisnited
Notes fo stnndalone financial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2008
CIM : 1S3 030DI201 0FFC 198141

31 March 2018

31 Mareh 2017

7__Traie receivables (T ML) {Z Mn.}
Trade receivilles 13049 139.83
Totul traue receivablas 194,49 130.03
Breali-up of trade receivables
31 Mareh 2018 31 March 2017
T Mu) T Mn.)
Trade recelvables
Unsecured, considered gowd 10042 £39.00
Unsecured, vonsidercd doubrinl 713 27.53
263,61 L166.56
Impairntent AHowance (nllowance for bad and doubifil debts)
Unseeured, comsidersd pood ’ - -
Unsecured, congsidered doubctul {7213 (27.53
(7313 27.53)
Tatak Trade ceceivables 190.490 132,03

Trade receivables are non-iiterest bearing and are generatly on {erns of O to 90 days,

No trade or other receivable are due From direcloes or otber officers of the compary cither severally or jointly with any other person, Mor any trade oF olher receivable are
dug from Fros ar private companies respectively in which any directoris a partoer, & direetor or a member.

31 Wearch 2018

3t March 2017

v _ 8 Cash & cash equivalenis (T Mn.} (T ¥n,)
Balances wits beaiks:
— D eurrent gocounts 39058 262 46
-- Restricted Cash held in separate aconunis® - 751
Cash on hand .44 .30
391.02 270,47

? As per the directives of Reserve Bank of Indiu, the Company operares alt online payments received from customers through a4 Nodal account. Balsnee lying in such
aceonnt is T 8537 Mn, (31 March 2017: 7 30.65 M) and amomt due 1o merchants is T 86,72 Mo (31 March 2017; ¥ 2253 hin,) as at 31st March 2018, which is
payable hys been chisclosed under other current lisbility ' Moeney held in qost’ and balance as at 31 darch 2017 which iz available for use by the Company is disclosad as
"Restricied Cash held in separate acconnts™ in the financial statemments.

At 31 March 2018, the Company had available T 43,00 Ma. (31 Masch 2017; T 4500 Mn.) of undrawn committed borrowing, facilities,

For (e purpnse ol he statement of cash fuwe, cash and cash cquivalents comprise the following:

31 March 2018

¥ March 1017

T Mn.) (Mn}
Helarces with banfs.
— Om current aceounts 3a0.58 26246
-- Resltivted Cash held in separate accounts - 7.51
Cash on hand 044 0,50
J91.02 X047

31 March 2043

31 March 20t7

9 Qther bank balomees (T Mn,) (Z Mn)

Balances wiry bemks.

- Depusits with oniginal manerity of more dan three nonths 1075.dg 7100

— Deposits with orginal maturity of more than 13 months 451,62 43820

— Margin moncy deposits 0.97 318
152805 1,012.38

Amwsiime disclosed as "Other financdal asset” (452,59 _ {438
197546 571.00

Breakup of 3 bove-

Moa-curent A52.59 44138

Current 107546 371.00

Tukal 152403 1,012,348

(This space fn1r heen infeilionaily left Blauk)




Zemate Media Private Limited
Motes to standalene linancink statements for the year ended 31 Warch 2018
CIN | U3030DL.201CPEC198141

31 March 2018 31 Murch 2017
1l Enans (¥ Mn.) (% vln.}
Unsecured, considercd gooE
[.oans and advances to Telated partics ' 0.20 11.21
0.20 11.21
Breakuap of above-
Non-current
Unseeured, considercd good
Loans and advances ko related parties
Total non-current Loans - -
£
we Current
- Unsecured, considered gnod
i : 2 L.oans and advances Lo Telatud partivs (Refer Note-33) 0,20 11.21
Tainl current Lrans 0.20 11,21
31 March 2018 31 March 2117
11 Oiker finangial assets (T M) X Mm)
Margin money depesits* 0.497 318
Dieposits with prigingl manwity for moere thae 12 months 451.62 438.20
Interest accrued an fixed deposit with banks 1181 2843
Security deposits 1856 31.62
EE ’ l Advances recoverable in cash ot kind 354 7.03
’ Accrued Tneotne 154 0.14
£45.04 558,62
Impairment Allowance {ailowance for bad and doabiful balances)
Unsecured, considered good ) - -
Dunbtful - -
Toial other financial asset : 54804 538 .6}
Breahuy of above-
MNon-cuerent
Ungecured, sonsidered good
bargin money deposits 0a7 318
Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 menths 430,09 0.06
[nterest sccrued on fixed deposit 309 0.5
Security deposits 48.19 7939
Tutzl nun-current financial nssets S02.34 82.54
Current
Unsecured, considered good
Depnsits with original maturity for more than 12 inonths 1.53 438.14
Inierest ageried on fiscd deposits : 872 2R 44
Security deposit 3037 233
Advances recoverabls in cash or kind 354 7.03
» Accrued Income 1.54 .14
:;-'5 | Taotal curvent financial assets 45,70 476.08

‘. * Margin money depaosit includes pledged with mmunicipal 2uthorities of 3 0.09 Ma, { 31 barch 2017; # .05 ha.} and deposit with bank for vise gnarantes charges in
i Dubal amoenting to T 0.88 Mn. { 31 March 2017 € 3.09 M)

i Break up of financial asseis carried at amertised cost

Interest aceried on fised deposits represents accraed inlevest on (xed deposils as disclosed in note 9.

et 31 Mareh 20014 31 March 2017
: (T Mn.) ' € Mn)
Nua-corrent
Wlargin maney depasits {Refer Nate 11} 0a7 314
Security deposits (Refer Note 11) 48,19 79.29
Depasits with original maturly ftr nore than 12 months {Refer Note 11} 450.09 0.06
Interest accrued on Mxed deposit {Refer Nate 1 §) 309 TR
Total nen-current financial assels careied at nmortised cost 502,34 82,54
| Current
‘ Security deposit {Refer Note 1ty 3037 233
Trade receivables (Refer Note 7} 19044 139,03
Cagh and cash equivalents (Refer Hote 8 iv1.02 27047
Other bank balances (Refer Mate 93 ) L7548 S0
Deposirs with original analarily o miers than 12 months {Refer Mote 11) L33 438,14
» Loans {Refer Note 1) 020 FEZE
g;% Advances recoverable in cash or kind (Refer Note 1) 3.54 7.03
Interest averucd on fixed deposits (Refer Note 113 R.72 2844
Averued Ineome ’ 1.54 a0.14
Fokal current lingneial assets carried at amortised cost 1,757 140779
g Fotal {inangial nssets carried at amorkised cosr 2,205.21 1,550.33
‘ i
|
|



Zomato Media Private Limited
Modes to stundabene financial statesents for the year ended 31 March 20158
CIN : US330DL20I0PTC198141 )

12 Current tas assets

Advance tax / Tax deducted ot source

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
(T Mn.) T Mn.)

8.1 54.91

8d.41) 54,91

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

‘ 13 Prepayments and other assets {Z Mn) ¥ Mn)
: Staff lmprest 248 2.9
' Advances to supplier 3686 16,10
Frepaid expenses 2446 472 50
Capilal advattees 1.03 067
e Maney held in trust 276.73 77.71
Otther advance: 0.07 0.07
i Balance with statutory/povermment authonties T6 49 1970
. 418,14 160,11
: Impairment Ablowance {allowgoce frr Bad and doubtfal balances)
: Tinsecured, considered good - -
Droubtful {8.51) (8.50)
Fotal Prepayinenls 409.63 151,61
Brealap of above-
Mon-Current
Trepaid expenses 3.52 19.47
_ Capital advances 105 162
E Totak non-current 4,57 20,00
t Current
: Staff Imprest - ' 248 2.4
Less: -Allowance for doubt ful imprest (1.73) 173 [0.73) 220
Advance to supplier 3686 1610
5 Less: -Allowance for dowbt ol advances 7.78) 2808 [7.77) B.33
f Trepaid expenses 2094 23.5L
t Crher advances 0.07 .07
Money held in Tust # 32741 94 56
Less « liabilities sgainst money held in frust (50,68} 26T { 16,85 17,71
Balance with stattory’povernment authorilies 76 4% 19.70
Total current 405,05 131 .52

# Tepresents motey lying with Payment mieway

(This space har besrs entionaliy 1efd bawi}




Fomate Fedia Privaée Limited
Moles iu by lo-ne Tk inl sint 15 [ov the yem caded 31 March 2008
CIN : U930 DE2e 01 V138141

B M Maech ZULE 31 March 2417
14 Share cagritigt (T Mn) (T Mn.}
Authorisel Share Capitnd
BOULUC {31 March 2017 600,000} enuity shares af 2 | egch 0,60 0,60
185,587 (51 March 2017 188,583 0.0001% Compulsorly Converntible Cumulative 1.8 1.8%
Breference Shares ol 210 eqch « Class A, B, Cand D
930,551 291 (3150 Marel 2017 530,350,391 0.0001 % {omjpul poridy Convenibie 30,55 B30.55
Praferenue Shares of 7 1 ench - Class E
190,653,540 (3 |51 March 2017, 190,653,5400 0.04 0% Compulsorily Convertible 8131 LM
Profereace Shares ot 2 each - Class [
10,385 (31 Mlarch 201 7: NIL) 0.00000015% Compulsoily Coivertible Cumuladive 7103 -
Preference Shyres of 6,700 each - Cliss G
83,425 (31 Darch 2817 NIL] 00600001 5% Compulsorily Converlible Cumulutive 558.95 -
Freference Shates of TG, 700 cach - Class T
£.046.23 1 gm.as
Insued, subseribud ind Mlly prid-wp shares
337,694 (3| March 2017 107 6163 cquity shares of 2 1 cach 034 o
By 47,786 (31 Margh 20E7 1,766) Shares held by ESOP Trust ps et the year end of' T 0,01 0.0
| cRcl *
0,30 I 1
Instroments entirely enwity in patore
78,701 131 ddarch 2017: 75,7917 0.0001% Compulsarily Convertible Cumuladye D.7% 0.79
Preference Shares of T30 euch - Class A
16,396 {31 March 201 T: 32,7913 0.0001% Comypulsority Canvertible Cumulative 17 033
Preference Shares of 216 cach - Class B
13,664 (31 barch 2017 27,32730.0001% Compulboily Convertible Cunntlative I} K] 027
FPreference Shares of 270 sach « Clasy €
28 €60 (3] Nareh 2017: 28,4603 9.000 1% Compulsorily Convertille Cumulalive 028 0.8
Preferenog Shares of T10 each - Class D
PRENGT B0 {3 | March 2017, 936,551 301 ) 0000 1% Compulsarly Corvertibie T 430 55
Preforence Shares of £ 1 eael - Cloes 18 -
L9053, 540 (31 bdnrch Z017: 190,653, 5407 00001 % Compulsonly Canvertible 38131 351.38
Preference Shares of 2 2 spch - Class F
14,885 (31 March 2087 NI} O MOAMB| 5% Compulsorily Convertible Cupuletive 72.93 -
Prelzrenee Shares of Tts.. 6700 cach - Class G 44
82,425 {3} Mazch 20§ T NILY 00000001 5% Cotapulsarily Convertible Cutnlative 58845 -
Preference Shares of 26700 gach - Class H
§.743.75 1,513.53

* Includes 27,089 shires transterred by Decpinder Gayal to the trust on Ostober 25, 2014 withant cash consideration and 14,677 shares purchased (7 Rs. 1 from
Zomata dedia Frivate Limited. The shares are lying in the custody of the trustee.

“* In current year Zomato hedia Piivate Limited (ZMPLY has acquived Cartliero Technologies Private limited (CTPLY by way of swap slare i.e. 18,885 OCCPS of
ZMPL issued in Heu of 36,308 CCPS and 2,738 cquity share of CTPT. For fion-cash comsideration,

™

a) Reconcilintion of the shares onl g 2 1hie beginning and at 1be end of 1be

reporfing year
Eauiky shares
31 March 2015 31 Mycch 2017
Wi 7 M} N - (T M.
Ad Lhe begianing of lhe year 3u7.616 4.1 307616 0.3
Yzened during the year /CCCPS/CCES convered 1o Equity Shares ELN S 0.0 - -
Cutslanding nt Uie enwd of the yenr . 337,684 a4 107,616 3l
Lens: Shiares held by E30P Trusl as al ihe yeur end 41,766 0.4 41 766 104
DOatslanding nt the end ol the year 2,95 428 f.30 245850 . 27
Lnsleamenls endirely equidy in moluer (COCPS- Class A,BCDF&H)
31 March 2014 3 Moveh 2417
No. % Mo} No. 1% M.}
At the bepinning of te year- Class A 78,791 079 GERED [
Al the beginning of {he year- Class B 12,791 om 2,79l 33
Al the bepinning af the year- Clags O 27,317 .27 27327 27
At the hepinning of the yerr- Class D T, d60 028 2E 460 23
Insued during the year- {"lass G . i0,AR%S T2 0% - .
lssued during e peac- Class H B3,425 338 95 - -
Camverted ta Equity during the vear - Class 3 (16,393} 16} R
Converted b Equity dunng the year- Clnss O {12.663) [LAE - .
Cutstanding o€ ¢he cud of the year 231621 633.25 L,67.369 1,67
Instromenis enlively conity su naiure (CCTE- Cloazs ESFY
31 Movek Zi Y 3 March 2017
] Nao. L1 Nao, @ My
o At the beginning of the year- Clnes E 43,05.51.391 9A035 - -
weR AL the heginning of the yea- Clnss F 19,04,53, 540 38141 - -
Issucd during the vear- Clasy L . - - 93.05,51,391 210,53
E?XF Issued dunmg the year- Class F - - 141,006, 53, 340 181.31
g Conyerted v Equity during the year - Clnss E {260,13,58, 542 {301,383

Dutstinding al the end of the year 41,08 46,389 LI10s0 iz, 02,0493 LI311.66




Zomate Media Private Limited
Notes to standafone financinl sia 15 fur {be year ended 31 March 2018
CIN : 93030 DT.2010PTCI98141

b} Termw/rights aftached to equity shares

The Company has only one class ol equity shares having a par valoe of T | per share. Each holder of equity is entitled io one vole por shara,

In the event of liguidation of the Company, the hotders of cquity shares wili be eatitled to rescive remaining esscts of the Company, aller disitbution of all prefereatial amaounts. The
distibution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholder.

bn the evant of liquidutieon of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entifled o receive remnining assets of the company, afeer distribption of 4l pretferential amounts, The
disiibution will be in proportion to the sumber of equiry shares held by the sharehaldees.

) Terms of conversion/redemption of CCCPS- Class A

{13 Duning the yoar ended 31 March 2014, the Company isswed 78,791 COCPS-Class A, of 10 vach Tully paid-up ot a premium of T26,970 per share. CCCPE carry curnulutive dividend
@ 0.0001% pa. The compaoy declares and pays dividends in Indian mepees. The pretereatial dividend is comulplive and shall scene (rom year to pear wherher paid or not paid. All
agemied dividends shall ba paid im flt {topether with dividends acerved frown prior years) prior 1o and in preference 1o any dividend ar disinbution payable npon shares of any other elass
or serios in the same Noencial year. [n addition do and afler payment of the preference dividend, sech CCCPS would be enfiled fo participate part-pasau in eny cash or non-cash dividend
paid ig the bidders of share of any other claes (including ordinary share) or series on B pro-rata Bs if eonverted basis. Subject to the applicable Ly, the CCCPS holder shall be entitled 10
receive aotice of and vote on ol] matlers that are submitied to the vote of the shersholders of (he company (imekuchne the ordinaty shares). Each COTPS shall entitle tie holder () the
number of votes eyuel W the number of whole or freetional ordinary shares into which such CCCF 2 could then be convened.

(i) Breh holder of CCCPS are sntitled 1o convert the CCCPS iato ordinary shares at any time at the option of ihe hofder of the CCCPS o subjact to the compliance of appliceble laws
oach CCCPS avtomalically be converted into urdinary share, ad the conversiun prive then in effect, upon the easlier of (i} one day prier to the axpiry ol 20 years from the allotment or (i)
in eonnection with a [isting (or any listing of shares), prior to the fling of prospeemus (o equivalend document by whalever nime vulled) by the Company to the campetent autharity ar
such later dale as may be applicable under applicable lavs.

(i) (n the event of the Yquidation of the company, total proceeds from the such liguidation, shalf be distributed ficst to the holders ol COCPS, until the holders have received the
minimum refuen,

{iv) The company will issue ordinary share gursuant 1 the conversion of any COCPS shall be thal number obtained by dividing the total smount aclually paid by tha holder of DCCPS by
the applicabla comversion poce af the time in stfest for such CCCPS which will be as per provision of clavse 76 of Article of Associnfion. Mo fractional share shall be isaed upon
comversion of CCCPS and number of ordinary share 1o be (ssued shall de rounded Io the nearesl whole share.

d} Terms of conversien/redemption ol CCCPS- Class B

(i) During the year emded 31 tfarch 2015, the Company isswed 32,791 COCPS- Class B, of 210 each fully paid-up at & premitn of 297,703 per shara. OCCPS canry cumulatve dividend
@ 0.0001% p.a, The compary declares and pays dividends in Indinn rupees. The prefersuiial dividend iz cumulative and shutl scerue From year to year whether paid of not pad, All
acerued dividends shall be paid in Rl {iogether with dividends acerued from prior vearsh prioe tw and in preference to ray dividend or distmibution payshla upen sheres of any sther class
or series in the same financial year, In addiden to gnd afier payment of the preference dividend, each CCCES would be ¢nfitted to partieipats par-pasau In uny cash or non-cash dividend
paid tu ihe holders of share of any ather class (including ordinary shisrc} or serits on A proaia as if convenled bass. Subject io ihe apglicable |aws, the CCCPS halder shall be eaitled to
reeeive nofice of and vote on all matiers thal ave submitied to the vote of the shareholders of the company {including the ordinary shares). Each CCCPS chall entitle the halder to the
nuimber of vales equal to Lhe nugther of whule or fractional pedinary shaves into which such CCCPS could then e converied.

(ir) Each hulder of QCCPS are entitled to convert the CCCPS inte ordinary shares at any dme at (he option of the holder of the CCCPS or subject to the compliance of applicable lews
each CCCPS automatically be converted into ordinary share, at the conversion price then in oflect, upan the sarlier of (i) one day prior to the expicy of 28 vears from the alfoument or fii)
in canaection with a listing or acy lisfing of shares}, prior tu the Rling of prospechos {oe equivalenl document by whatever aame cafled) by the Company to the compatent autharity or
such faler date as may be applicable under applicable laws.

(i} [n the cvent of the liquidation of the campany, tolal proceeds fram the such liquidafon, shall be distributed frst to the bolders of CCCPS, until the holders have received the
indes s reluen,

{iv} The company wit! issue ordinary sharc purzuant to the cooversion of any CCOCFS shall be that sumber obiained by dividing the tutal amount actually paid by the bolder of CCOPS by
the applicable conversion price at the time in effect for such CCUPS which will be as pur pruvision of clause 77 of Article of Associntion, Mo fractional share shall he issued upon
canversion of CCCPS and number of ordinary share 10 be izsued shall be rounded to the nearest whale share.

¢} Terms of conversion/redemption of CCCES- Class O

(i) Duriny the yepr ended 31 March 2016, the Company issaed 27,327 CCCPS- Class C, of T10 cach fully paid-up at a preminm of 3113,729 per share. CCCPS carry cumuslative
dividend (@ 0.0401% p.& The company declases and pays dividends in Indign rupees, Tle prefevential dividend is cumulative and shalt accrue from year to year whether paid or nol paid.
All secrued dividends aball be paid in full {together with dividends accrued From prios years) prior to and in preference to any dividend or distribulion payable upon shaces of any ofher
atlasy or series in the sime Ananciat year.

{ii} Each holder of CCCPE are entitted to convert the CCCPE info equity sharas at any fime at the aption of the holder of the CCCPS subject to the campliance of applicabls laws cach
CCCPE awtomatieally he converled into equity share, at the zonversion price then in effect, upon the earlier of (i} coe day prior 1o the expiry of 20 years from the allotment or (i) in
connectian with & listing {or any listing of shares), prior o the filing of prospectua {or equivilem dacument by whatever nume called) by the Company to the competent authority or such
Inter deie &s may he applicable under applicable lavws, Eack COOPS shall be conyeried into Ordinary Shares at the conversion price determined as per detgiled temns and conditions of

CCCPE, .
{iii) The conversian price of each CCCPFS o be updated a1 dhe e of elosinp and shall be subject to adjostments from fme bo ime s provided bersin, including as provided Coe
furtherance of tha Articles. Any adj ef the eanversion pricas applicable furm time 1o Hme, shall be documented by the Board and notify 1o the holders of QOCPS,

1y Terms of conversion/redemption of CCCPS- Class Ib

i) Doring the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company issied 28,060 CCCPS- Class D, of 710 each Flly paid-up at a premium of #8,36,386 per share. CCCPS earry cumulative
dividend (@ 6.0001% p.a. The company declares and pays dividends in lodian rupees. The Preferential Dividend is cumuiative and shal) asenie from yenr 0 year whether o nol paid, and
scorved dividends shiall be paid in full {together with dividends actrued From prive years) par passy with the proferential dividend on the COCPS but prior sad in preference o any
dividend or distribulion payable upan Sharey of any ether class or senies in the same fiseal year. .
{1i} In addition to and nfter payment of the Preforential Dividend, each CCCFS wauld be entitled 1o participate past passu in any cash pr non-cash dividends paid to the holders of shores
oF any otler class (nchwding Ordinary Shares} or seides on 2 pro rata, an a Fully Diluted Basis,

{iliy Mo dividend or distibution shall be paid an aoy Share of any class er serics of the Company if nod to the exteat that as 2

|
; ) of such dividend or distribution any CCCP3
| wuuld be entided to a dividend hercunder goeater than the maximum amcutt pemitied o be paid in respeet of COTES of wn Indian company held by 2 non-resident under spplicable
| Laws {inchading withoul Hmitaiion, the Foreign Exchanye Management (Transfer ur [ysue of Secenty by a Person Resident Quiside India), Repulations, 2000).
(v} The holders of the COCPS shall be entided to vote on all mattcrs that are submitted to the vate of the Shareliolers of the Campuny (Including the holders of Ordinscy Shares).
i Subsertbers of the CCCPS will be able 1o exercise vodng fdplts on the Class D CCCPS as i the same were sonverted inte Ordipary Shares, Encl CCCPS shai! entitle the holder w the
nurber of voles equal 1 Lhe numher of whole ar fractional Ordinary Shares into which such CCCPS could then be converted.
\
|

(s srace Sk heen intentionally it henls)




Tomato Media Privaie Limited :

Node Lo standadone finnzci) st ts [ur lhe year endcid 31 & arch 2083

CIN; US3a3DL20L0PTCI4R14U
g} Terms of conversipn/redempticn of CCPS- Class E
{i) During the vear ended 31 March 201 7, the Company 15sued 930,531,391 Class E CCPS of %1 cach as bonus sheres eredited aa fillly poid-up Lo the «ligible prelerence shurehalders
whoae pame appeat in the Register of MetnbersiBenefioial Owners pogilion of the Campany an 31 Mareh 2017 in the propatlion of 1 ¢ 6609 i.e, 8699 new sheres have been issued for
evary | thara of the Company hald s on 38 Mareh 2017,
(i1} Class B CCPS camy preferentiel dividend (i (.001% p.a. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian mpees. The Preferential Dividend is non-eumblitive and dividends
ehell be paid par pacoo with the prefereatisl dividend on the other existing prefarence shares of all clawes, bet prior and i preferenca 1o ony dividend or disibugion peyable upon the
Ordinoy Bhares i the dame fiscal year.
tin} Class E-CCPY would not be entitled o participate in any cash or non-cash dividends paid to the halders of shares of Any other olass (inctuding Ordinary Shares) or saried.
{iv) Mo dividend or distribution shall be paid on eny Share of Wy elass of series of the Compaty if and Lo the extent that es & canssquatice of such dividend or distihulion any Class B
CCP3 would be entitled to a dividend heteunder sregier than the maximum smount permidled Lo be paid in respect of CCPY of an Indian comprny held by a4 aon-resident under
applicable Laws (including without hmitation, the Foereion Exehange Management { Transter or fssue of Securicy by 2 Person Resident Gutside India), Reauiations, 20007
{¥] The holders of the Class E CCPS shall not be cniilled fo any voting righls.
{vi) Class E CCPS shall only be translarable slong with ihe existing Class A COCPS, Class B CCCPS and Cluss O CCCPS 0 proporion af bonws issuance of CCPS Class E.
{wii Chags ECCPS will 2ol be mangfarshle on standalons basis.
{iil] Class E-CCPS shall mot b entitled to any Bquidation praference.
{ix} Class E-CCPS shall be converted 1o Oreinary Shares im the rafio of 1:0.000008 | (15,000,000 Class E CCPS to corvert into | Ordinary Share] in the following events; 13 upon tha
earlier of comversian of 100G 1% CCCPS, Class B-CCCPS, o Class C- CCCPS in proporiion of such converston; or 2) 1 day prior to expiry of 20 years from the date of ullutment; ar 3)
commencerent of iquidatron proceedings of the Compamy, or 4) Disselation or winding up of the affairs, business or asset of the Company.

h) Terms of conversien/redemption of CCPS- Class F

(i) Ducing the year ended 3t Barch 2017, the Company issued 191,653,540 Class F CCPS, of 32 each as honus shares credited as Bully paid-up Lo the eligible preference sharcholders
whose tame appenr i the Register off pdembersBeneficinl Ovmers pastlian of the Company on 33 March 2317 in the progortion of | 1 5699 1.0, 6639 new sharcs have becn issued for
every | shuee of the Company held as on 30 March 200 7.

(ii} Class F - CCPS oy preferential dividend @@ 0.0001% p.a The esmpany decleres and pays dividends in Indisn rupees. The Preferential Dividend is non-cumulative and dividends
shall be paid pars pasan with the prefereniial dividend on the Class D - COCPS, bug prior and n prefiecence o any dividend or digtmbution pryable upon Ordinary Shares in Ele sante
fiseal year, .

{1i1) Ctass F OCFS shall not be enfitled 1o participate in any cash or non-cash dividends paid ta Lhe holders of shares of any other claes (incloding COredinary Shares) or serics.

{ivy Mo dividend or distribuiion shall be paid on uny Share of any class or series of the Compuny if and 10 the extent thet ps 4 consequence of such dividend ar distribution any Class ¥
CCPS wmalid be enitled to o dividend hereunder greater than the maximom amount permitted to be paid in mespeet of CCPSE of en Indian company held by a non-resident under
rpplicable Lews (neluding withont limitation, e Foreim Bxehange Management (Transfer ot [2ae of Secutity by b Person Resident Ouside Indin), Regulations, 20005,

(v} The halders af he Clags I - CCPS zhall tot ha entitled o any vobing rishts.

{wi} Claga F - COPS shall oy be transfershle along with the existing Class D CCCPS in proporion of boans isswance of Class F CCPE.

{#n) These shares will not be transferable an standalone bazis.

{wiil) Class F-COPS shall aot ba entilled to any Bquidation praferénce.

{ix) Class F-CCPE shali be comverted ice Chrdinary Shares in the ratio of 1:0.0000000 { 10,000,000 Class F CCPS 1o convert into | Ordinacy Share) in the following events; 1) upon the
enriier of conversion of #0001 % CCCPS, Class B-CCCPS, or Class O- OCCPS in propocich of such conversion; ar 23 1 day prior ta expiry of 20 years from the dale of ollutment; or 3}
sommencement of liquidabon procsedings of the Company; or 4} Dissolulion oF winding up of Lbe ofTnirs, busiress or asset of the Company.

iy Tesms of conversionfredempdion of CCCPE- (Class G

(i} Duning the year ended 21 Mareh 2018, the Company iseued 10,885 CCCPS- Class G, of 26700 cach filly paid-up ara premazo of 2112181 per share, CCCPS camy comulative
dividend (i 6.000030015% p.a. The company declares and poys dividendain Indian rupeas, The praferental dividend is eamulative and shall seerue from year tovear whether paid er oot
pail. All aeerued dividendy shall be paid in full [together with dividends acorued fram prior vears) per passu with the preferential dividend an CCCPS and CCCPS but priar and in
preference to any dividend or disteibufion payable upon shares of any other clags or series in the same fiscal year. In addition 10 pod ofier payment of the preterence dividend, sach
CCCPS would be entitled o pailicipate pari-passu in any sash or non-cash diidend paid o the halders of shara o any other class (insthuding ordinary share) or series on e pro-mta os i
fally diluted busis. Subject fo the applicable taws, the CCOCPE holder shall be entitled to receive notice of and vaie an all matters that arc anbmitied jo the vaie of he sharehglders of the
company {inctuding the ordinary aberes). Each COCPS shall eatitle tha holdar to the number of voles aqual to the number of whole or fractional ordimary shares into which such CCCPS
colld then be converted.

{ii1 Each holder of CCCPS are entifled o canvert the CCCES Into ardinery shares at any time at the option of the biolder of the COCPS or subjeet b the complinnce of applicable laws
#ach CCCPS amomatically be conveited into ardinary share, at the gunversion retia then in effect, upan the garlier of (1) ore day prior o the expiry of 20 vears from the allotment or i)
in connection with 4 fisting (or any listing of shares), prior to the filing of prospectus {or equivalen: document by whatever nanie called) by the Company wilh the compeient aulhority or
such later date as may be pacritiod under applicable [aws, . :

{iii} knn he event of the liyuidation of the cumpany, tatal proceeds from the such Hiquidniion, shall be distribided o the holders in the manner provided in Aricles of Association of the
Company and Sharcholders Asreement.

{iv) Thie eompany will isue ordinaty share pucsuant to the sonversion of arty CCOPS shall be that number ohtained by mulfiplying the tatal number of COCFS held by the holder of
COCPS with ihe opplicabls conversion ratio ot the time in effect tor such COCPS which will be as per provision of clause 32 of Article of Assoeiston. No feactional share shall be issued
wpan convarsion of COCP S and member of ordinary share ta be jzsued slall be rounded to tha nearest whole shara.

it Terms of converyionfredemption of CCCPS- Class H

(i) Dunng the year ended 31 Mareh 2018, the Company issned 33 425 COUPS- Class G, of 26700 exch fully paid-up at a premium of THI2,567,19 {rounded off) per share. CCCPS cany
sumudative dividend @ .0000001 5% pe, The company declares and pays dividends in Indizn rupees. The pretersoial dividend is cumulative and shall acceus From year in year whether
paid ar not paid. Al seemed dividends shall be patd in full (opelher with dividends acerved from prior years) parl passu will he preferential dividend on CCCPS and CCCPS but prior
and in preference 1o ooy dividend or disttibulian payable upon shiares of any other slasd or senes in (be same Bseal year, o addifon to and atter pryment of the preference dividend, each
COCPS would be entitted o partivipate par-passw in any cash or non-cash dividend paid to the holders of share of any other class {including erdinary share) or serdes on a pre-rute on o
fully diluted basis. Subject to the applicable taws, the CCCES holder shall be entitled to receive netice of and vote on all inetters thal are submiled ta the vobe of the shareholders of the
compang {including e ordinary sheres). Bach COCPS shalk entitle the holder to the sumbar of votes equal to the number of whole or fractional ordinary shares into which such CCCPS
eoould than ba converbed.

. [ii} Fach holder of COCPS are entitled to canvert the CCCPS into ordinary shares at any tine ot the option of the holder af the CCOPS or sbjeet 40 the complianes of applicable lmvs
nach COCPS sutomaticoly be cotverled into ordinary share, ad the conversivn ratio then i eMecl, upon the eardier of [i) ame day priot 1o e expiey af 20 years from the allotment or {0
in conneetion with & listing (o eny listing of shares), prior to the filing of prospecis {or equivatent document by whatover orime called ) by the Cotmpany with the compelent guthonty or
such Iater date as may be permitted under apphicable laws,

(iti) 1o the event of the fiquidation of the cimpany, totel proceeds from 1he such Bguidation, shall be distributed te the holders in the manner provided in Articles of Association of the
Company and Shaceholders Agreement dated Febroary 01, 2018

[iv] Tha compaty will issue ordisary shoce pursuond to the conversion of any COCPS shall be thul number obtgined by mulliplying the tatal number of CCCPS held by the holder of
CCCPE with the spplicable conversion tatio At the time in eftect for such COCPS which will be as per provision of elsuse 83 of Anicle of Assacialion. No fraetional share shat] be issued
wpon conversion of COCPS and sumber of cedinary shara ta be issued shalt ba rounded o the neatast whols share,

{This space furs beos ingendionadl fof davk)




Zomato Media Private Linvited
Motes to standnlone linsinciad statements for the year ended 31 March 2013
CIN + U93630DLIM P TCT Y8141

K} Details of shareholders holding more ihan 5% shares in the company

Eiquily shares of ¥ ¥ each fully paid

3% Mnrch 2018 31 Marel 2017
Nume of Shurehalder Mo, % of Holding Bo. % of Holding
Info Edge (lndia} Limdted 1,064,451 45.70% 1,64 451 53.33%
Mr. Decpinder Goyal, Direotor 61,245 18.14% 61,245 19.91%
hir. Punkaj Chaddah, Enreior 20416 &.(k5% 20416 G.G4%
Faodiebay Emplayees ESOP Trusl q1, 760 12.37%

Mok Tnternet Services Limited

Instroments entively equity in onhre
CCCPS of T10 ench fully paid- Class A

33357 9.88%

41,7ab 115E%

31 Murch 2013

31 March 2017

Name of Shareholder Mo, <4 4f Holding No, % of Holdiog
Info Edgr (lodia} Limjted 21,225 26,34 21,22% 20444
SCI Growth lavestnents 11 37,566 T3.06% 57,566 T

LCCPS of €10 each fully paid- Class 13

Mume of Sharcholider

31 Mareh 20128

31 March 2017

No. *% of Holdinp, M. % uf Holding
Naukri Tnternet Services Limiked - - 16,393 J0.00%
Sequela Capital India Growth levestmend Holding 1 4,099 25.040)% 4,094 12.50%
VY Investnents iavritus Limited 12,207 T8, 00% 12,307 AT.50%

CCCPS of D10 each fully pnd- Class ¢

Nnme of Shareholder

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

Neo. % of Holding . % of Holding

Mauke lnlernet Services Linited - - 13,663 30005
Sequoia Capital Indin Growth Iovestnent [Tolding I 5,291 48, 00%, 2,19] Jd.ogts
VY Tovestments Mawntius Limited 1524 28,00, 3,825 14.00%,
COCPES of 110 each fully paid- Class D

31 March 218 31 Maech 2017
Name of Sharcholder Ne. %% of Hokdiog Mo, % uf Holding
VY Tnvestmenis haunitis Limited 3,033 20 Fd% 5,732 0. E4%
Dumearn Investments (Moorlius) Pla Lid. 22,724 T 35% 22728 75 86%
COPS of 31 ench filly paid- Class E

31 Musch 2018 31 March 20)7
Name of Shareholder No. % ol Halding Mo, % of Holding
51 Grnwth [nvsstments IT 38,56,34, 634 52,855 R%,56,34, 634 41.44%
Nankri Internet Services Limiled - - 20,13,58.542 21.684%
Infn Bdpa {India) Lunited 1d,2 186,275 15.50% 14,21 46,275 15.28%
Y Inveshoceis lawritiue Linuted 10,80,07,977 14,8 1% 10,503,07,977 L11.61%
Sequota Capital Indt Girowth Tvestment Haldimgzs 1 3.96,%5,610 12.30% £,96,99.610 3.64%

LCP3 of 21 each fully paid- Class F

Name ol Shareholder

31 Mawch 318

31 Mlarch 2007

Ne. % of Holiding Keo. % ol Holding
Dwinearn lovesunerts {hMauritiug) Pte Lid. 15,22,54, 872 7% 36% 15,22 54 872 70,265
VY Invesaments Mauritius Limied 1,83,0% 668 20, F4% 3.83,08. 468 20.14%,

CCCPS of T6, 704 ach Jully paid- Class G

Name of Sharehelder

3 March 2918

31 March 2017

No. % of Holbding No. %% ol Holding
Mexus Ventwes 111 Lid. 6,347 831 - -
Sequoia Capitsl India luvestments IV 2,154 19.79% -
Blume Yeatures Fund 11 {t&aoniios) 1,160 16.66% - -
CCCP3 of 76,700 each fukly paid- Class H

31 Mivch 3% 3 Mlarch 2047

Name of Sharehokder Na. % of Hutding M. % of Haldtag
Alipay Singapore Holding Pte, Bid. 33,925 100, 00%: - -

Ad per records of the company, including its register ol shareholdersmembers and oiher declorations reseived from shorehalders reparding heneficial mlerest, the shove sharehokding
represents boih legal and beneficlal ownership of shares.

£ I the peried of five years immedinicly preceding March 31, 2018:

The Company had allotted 53,05,51,3%1 tully paid-up shares of face valee T14- each nnd 19,06,53, 540 fully paid shares af fuce value T2(- esch diring the year ended March 11, 2017 1o
axizling COCPS helders, pussuand o banus issue appeeved by the board of direciers.

m} Shired reserveedl for issne under aphinns
For getails of shares reserved For Lssue unidar the employes stock option (ESOP) plan of the company, please refer note 31

(TTiz gaace Dee beew intenrionally loft blank)




Zomato Media Frivale Limited
Mrertes bo stondzlune Fnancial sta ts for the yenr ended 31 March 2018
CIN : U303 0 DL TC198 141

3 Murch 2014 3t Mnreh 2017
15 Cher equity % Mn.} (T Mn.)

Copital reseryve
Batanes a5 mrer the byl Fnanvial statements 26.10 26,10
Add: Transfer ducing the pear - .

2610 26,10
Securities Fremivin Beserye
Balange as per the lasi (uancial siatements 11,239.50 27161
Add: promium on issue of Class @ CCCPS 1,22 1.0 -
Addd: premiwm on 1ssue of Class H COCPS 914064 -
Addr prarium on conversion of Cluss B bonus shares indo equeity shares 0136 -
Add: precium on conversion of Class B & ¢ CCCPR inta equety shares 02y
Add: Trensterred from decivative [nstranent - fL.90
#dd: Trunsferred from Finnncial liability - 1,019.59
Less: Transaction cowl on izsue of honas shares - 3L
Less: Bonws issues of CCPS during the year - [1,311.8¢)
Legs: Transaction cost on isseance of CCCPS 2.70) -
11,393.68 11.8340.99
Emnployee Stock Optinns Cuistanding
Balanee as per the last fingncial starements 812 36439
Add: Employee stock opticn expense 43,71 17765
Add: Employee stock option expense sllocated to sbsidiary companics 24.51 43,78
T24.34 586,12
Retained enrnings
Balance as per fast finanoial statements (9,%24.71) (4,069.57)
Add: Lewss diodng the year (T84.04) {5,852.64)
Add: Re-measurement gains/(fosses) an defined benefit plans &14a 130
Net deficit in the statement of profit nod Inss ' {10,705 .54) 9206.71)
[teens ol Other Comprehensive Income
Frreign Cumrency Monetary Item Translational Difference Account £85 4.58)
: .85 ) {4.58)
Tutal 12,447.40 2:320.92

(This sppace furs oo aitentiairally lefl Dank)




Zemate Media Private Limited
Moles 1o kbandsl Mnancial stat 45 Tor the vear ended 31 Morch 21138

CIM : U43030D0L2018F 198141

3 March 2013 31 Mureh 2017
1¢ Trude payubles (2 Mny (T vin.}
Trada payables [ refer noe 36 For delails of dues to misto and siwall eneerprizes) 5435 31 194,38
545 81 194,38

Brealimp ol above-
Mati-current 2532 ECRL
Current STH0.49 258.1%
Tetal 345,81 29458

Trade payables are non-interest bearing ond are navmally setiled pn 0-60 days imrme,
For explunations on the Company's credit nsk management processes, refer tn nale 34,

31 March 20448

31 March 2017

t7 Provision For emistoyes henelits © {T Mo} M)

Provisions For gratuity {Refse Mole-30) 6600 &5.62
Prervisions for compensated absencos 841 3.3
Total ' 1441 ez
Brealinp of above-
[on-current
Provisioms for grainity 3574 70
Pravistons for compensaded absenves 135 -
Taial 87.1¢ 57.00
Chrrent
Provisians for gratuity 1026 11.53
Provvistans for compensated abeences 105 030
Tatal 17.31 20,53
Movement in above balawees =

Criduity Compeinsaied absences Tatal
As ol 31 March 2016 060 - 20.60
Arising during the year 5068 230 5598
Utilised (0.76) - [1.76)
Rerrcamrement gains{|osses) on liahiliyy £1.80) - {190
As a1 31 March 2017 68,62 2.30 T7.82
Arising during the year a.la 0,357 673
Uhtilised (8.64) {148 {1.14)
Remegsprement sains losses) on Liability 010 - (L]
Agal 3| March 2013 6,00 g.41 F4.41

31 March 200 &

31 March 2017

15 Qther inanciad linbilifies {€ Mn.} 1% Mu.)
Capiizl oreditors 047 G2
; 0,89 G.32
| Breaknp of above-
i Current
| Capital crediiors 039 6,32
| Total 0.89 £.32
|
] 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
; 19 Uther cierent linhilities (€ Mu.) (2 Mu.}
; Unexmed reveans 241.76 12746
f a5 Adlvancey from customers 3007 26,56
: E:‘?_fg bfoney hald in rust (payable ks merchants) 2672 3T
: 1.cs5: Asset against money beld in st (payahle lo merchanis) 83537y 133 113,77 -
Slatatory dues
Provident tund paysble 6,95 394
Einployee state imsurance payable nan PR 1Y
f - Profegaional tax payalle ol Botd
Egﬁ Tnx d:adur:ted at source payable 2132 1327
Equalizetion kv payable iz G.03
Otlers 0.3 0l
3446 17416




i
FZomato Media Private Limited

otes to standalone financial siatements for the year ended 31 March 2018

31 March 2018

31 Mareh 2017

(T Mn.) (€ Mn.)
Saule of services 3,664.50 242500
Royally mcome 45 80 26.16

3. 710,30 2.451.16

31 March 2018 31 Maxch 2017
1. Other income (T Mn.) {Z Mn,)
Ilerest income on

-Banlk deposits 5518 11024
-Income tax refund 0.¢1 L.59
~Chihers 6.49 704

Met gain on sale of current investinents 2748 24 .65
“air value gain on lovestment at faic vidue through profit and loss 6727 451

Fair value gain on financial instruments at (air value trough profit or loss 42397

| -+ Liabilities written back 0.67 3.30
¥ Exeess provision written back 1389 14.63
. Other Minanciad liability wrillen hack - 57.77
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment {Net) 141 0.36
Others 1.48 .72
174.25 648.54

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

32, Employee henefits ¢xpense (% B} (X Mn.)
[y Dalaties, wages and bonuys L,783.08 1,557.96
L35 Contribution to provident fund and other tunds * 4358 34.30

Share Baged Payment Lixpoense {Refer Note 31) 43.71 177.95

1 Gratuity expenses (Refer Noie - 30} 18,92 55.40

Staff welfare cxpenses 59.85 40.26
| 1,949.14 1,865.87
i Defined conleibution plan
31 bharchk 2018 31 Mareh 2017
23, Finance costs (T M} T ¥Mn)
Intevest
Rank Charges 612 9.68
- 1o others 0.03 38.605
ZOthers
-Payment Gateway Charpes 23390 98.23
-Cther Chavges {1,635 0,22
241.30 146.78
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
4, Deprecigtion and amortization expense (T Mo} (T ¥n,)
Deprecigtion of property, plant and equipmeni 1454 162.99
Amortization of intangible assels 10.15 16.3¢
125403 179.2%




Zomaro Media Private Limited
%4 Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
CIN : U9M3GDL20L0PTT198 L4

31 March 2018 3t March 2017
125, Other Expenses (T M) . {TMmn)
Fower & fuel 21.53 1741
Rent 22324 249.74
7 Rates and taxes . ] 2076 15.86
Repairs and maintenance 48 51 54.59
‘u Advertisement and sales proniotion 800.06 21851
Travelling and conveyance 123,91 103.10
-~ Server and communicalion cost 196,35 210.65
== 1T Support Services 149 67 24 66
- - Reeruitiment cost 7.93 732
Vo4 Insurance 1.69 1,78
Comnission and brokerags t45 . 235
Printing and stationary 7.53 1.83
Security expanse 772 7.54
it Legal aud professional fee 187 .08 101 81
" 7 Fees and subscriptions 0.12 0.01
-1 Paymment w auditors (refer detail below) : 3.82 5.74

" Bad debis written off 1140 2551
less: Bad Debts apainst opening provigion {3.52}) 7.88 (24.09) 1.42
Advaneces written off - 354
Loss on sale of fixed assels . 1.45
Postage and Courier Cost 562 -
Pronvision for doubtful debts and advances 53.96 2386
'+ Fixed Assets Written OFf . ' 0.01 -

Delivery charges 39441 62,16
Forzign exchange loss {net} 1542 £9.25
TFair value Joss on Ffinancial instruiments at fair value through prolit or loss - 27970
Miscellanecus expenses 6.28 12,52
2,256,95 1,504,78

A, Puyment to auditor 31 March 2018 31 Mareh 2017
(% Mn.) (T M)

Ag auditor
- Audit fee 5.00 5.4
In other capacity

- Qther services .34 052
Reimbursement of expenses (.44 0.22
582 574

& F1 Mareh 2018 31 Mureh 2017
26, Exceptional items (% Mn.) (X Min.)
Provisien for diminution in value of investments in subsidiary companies 67.00 5.255.62

' 67.00 §,255.62

7. Barning per Rquity Shave

Basic EPS amonnts are calculated by dividing the loss [or the year attribulable Lo equity halders of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares
outstanding during the year. :
The following releets thw income and share data used i the basi¢ and diluted EPS computations.

31 March 2618 31 March 2017

(X My % Mn.)

058 attributable to equity holders ol the company {784.93) (5.852.64)

~ Weighled average number of equity shares in calculating basic and diluicd LPS 3,122,066 3076106
s Basic and diluted loss per share * {0.00) {8.02)

There ave potential equity shaves ag ou 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017 in the form of CCCPS and Stock Opions jsgued. As these ne anlidilutive, they are
WY per share,

[ I* logs per share having value less than 3 10,000

gk &.I




Zomnato Medin Private Limited
Notes to standalome financial seatements for the year ended 31 March 2018
CIN: U23030DL2010PTC125141

28 Signilicaot accounting judgements, estinates and assumptions
The preparation ol the financial statements requires management ko make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of

revenues, expentes, assels and liabilitics, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabifities, Uncertainty about these asswmptions

and estimaies could resuft in outcomes that requite 2 material adjustmesnt I the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affevted fn future periods.
Juilgementy

In the process of applying the avcouniing policies, maragement has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amouis
recogmised in the financial statements:

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and gther key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk ol"causing a
material adjustment 10 the carrying amounts of assets and tiabilities within the next fnancial year, are described below. The Company based ity assumptions
and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepated. Existing circomstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due to markef changes or circumstlances arising thar are bevond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in (he assumplions
when they occur,

Sharve-based pryrnents

Cmployees (including senior executives) of the company receive remuneration in the form of share based payment transactions, wherchy cimplovees render
servicey as consideration for eqoity instrurments (equity-settled transactions). In sccordance with the Tnd AS 102 Share Based Payments, the cost of eguity-
settled transactions is measured using the Fair value method. The cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the cornpany’s best estimate of the oumber of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The expenss or credit recognized in the statement of profit and Iosgs for a period represents the movement in cumulbative expense recognized as
al he beginning and end of that period and is recognized in employee benelits expense.

Delined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuily obligation are determined using aciuarial valuations, An actuarial valuation
ayolvey making various assuenplions thal may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, fiure
salary increases and morflity rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nsture, 2 defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive
to changes in rhese assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporling dale.

The paramerer most subject to change is the discount rate. In detennining the appropriate discount rate for plans operaled, the management considers the
interest rates of government bonds in currencies congistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The: mwrialily rate is based on publicly available mortality table . The mortality lable tend 10 change only at interval in response (o demopgraphic changes.
Future salary inereases and gratuity increases are bised on expected future intlation rares. '
Further details aboul gratuily ebligaiions are given in note 30,

Fair value measarement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liahilities recorded in 1he balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markels,
their fair value is measured using valuation echniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as
Niquidity risk, credit tisk and volatility. Changes in assumptions ahout these factors could affect the reported Fair value of financial instruments,

29 Embedded derivatives
In the year ended March 2016, the company issued 28 460 CCOPS- Class D {refer note 14 () for more details). As per the terms of the Class 1D CCCES, the
CCCPS shall be converted intg such number of ardinary shares at the indtial conversion price of I 0.14 Mn per share (the “Ceonversion Price™), subject to the
cerlain adjustments, it accordance with Clause 78.6,1.3 of the Arlicles of Assaciation. Aceordingly, the CCCPS have embedded derivalives that are reguired
to be sepuraled,

These cmbedded derivatives have been sepuruted and are camied al faic valve through profit or loss until March 33, 207, As at March 31, 2017, the
conversion price adjustment variabitity is extinguished and accordingly the fimancial Hability and embedded derivative is reclassified as equity. The camying
valugs of the financial liability and embedded denivatives at 31 March 2017 amo unted o % NIL Mn (other financial liabilitics - Note 18). The effects on profit
o logs are reflected in other income, other expenses and {inrnce costs.

(Fhix spoce firs inlestionat(y beep fefl dlanf)
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Fomate Media Private Limited

E_;%:jotes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
“CIN: U93036DL2010PTCL98141

Sharc-based payments
General Employee Share-option Plan (GESP): Employee Stock Option Plan ~-ESCGP-2014

The Company instituted the Employee Stock Option Plan to grant equity based incentives to its eligible employees. The ESOP scheme-
FOODIEBAY Lmployce Stock Option Plan 2014 {“The Scheme™) has been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company at their
meeting held on 22 April 2014 {further amended at their board meeting held on 30 March 2017) and by the sharcholders of the Company by
way of special resolution passcd at their Annual General Mecting held on June 27, 2014 to grant aggregating 27,069 oplions {not exceeding
2% of the issned, subsctibed and paid up equity share capital of the Company as on March 31, 2014), representing one share for each option
upon exercise by the employee of the Company at an exercise price determined by the Board, The Scheme covers grant of options to the

specified permanent employees of the Company and Directors of the Company. The company further granted 14,677 options under the

ESOP scheme at the extra ordinary general meeting held on September 07, 2015,

The options granted under the Scheme shall vest not less than one year and not more than four years from the datc of grant of options,

Option can be cxercised at the time of fiquidity or upto 3 years from the date of ceazing of employment or upto 9 years from the date of

vesting, whichever is earlier. Once the options vest as per the Scheme, they would be exercisable by the Option Grantee at any time and the

5 equity shares arising on exercise of such oplions shall not be subject to any Tock-in period.

Movements during the year
The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and movements in, share options during the

year:

: 31-Mar-18 J1-Mar-18 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-17

besd Number WAEP Number WAEP
Quistanding at 1 April 23,724 INR 18,192 23,334 INR 60,453
Granted during the year - 8901 - INR1 4,825 INR 4,141
Forfeited during the year - - . .
Exetcised during the year . - . .
Euxpired during the vear 5,759 INR 17,814 4,435 INR 53,5641
Outstanding at 31 March 26,866 INR 13,217 23,724 TNR 18,192
Exercisable at 31 March 13,847 INR 17,606 10,272 INR 21,352

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the sharc options outstanding as at 31 March 2018 was 5.27 years (31 March 2017: 5,16
yeats). ’

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was Z 0.68 Mn (31 March 2017: 3 0.10 Mo},
The vange of exercise prices for options outstanding at the end of the year was INK. 1 to 3 0.1d Mn (31 March 2017: TNR 1t ¥ 0.14 Mn),

The following tables list the inputs to the models used for the GESP plans for the years ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017,
respectively:

31-Mar-18 31-Mae-17
GESP GESP

Drividend yield (%) 0.00% G.00%
Expected volatility {%4) 42.41% 44.69%
E% Risk—free intercst rate (%) . 1.50% 6.50%
Expecied life of share aptions 3 1o 6 years 5 to 6 years
% Weighted average share price (INR ) 80,5498 95,983

Model used Black Scholes valuation model

The expected life of the share options is based on historical data and current expectalions and is not necessarily indicative of exercise
patterns that may occur. The expecled volatility reflects the assumption that the histerical volatility over a period similar to the lifc of the
options is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual ovicome. 2

(This space hos heen intensionally left blank)
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imato Meddin Private Limitel

MNotes 1o standalone financial statements for the year ewded 3t Macch 2018

AN: US3630DE2010PTCI128141

; 35, Segarent biforation

.

The Group has identified geoaraphical segments as reporiahle sagmends. The gengraphical scpincots comprese:

ke 2 United Arah Emirates (UAE)

I Hhers such as Philippines and South Alricn

or ranagement purpases, the Groug is organised into business units based o its products and serviees and has theee veportable segments, as fllows:

aorating ssginents ore defined as componenta of an enterprise for which dizerete finuncial mfermetion is available thai is evaluaied regularly by the ciief aperalimg decision maker, in deciching how toe allocate
sources and asseasing pertbrmance, The Group's chief operating decision maker i3 the Cleef Execufive (Hficer and hanaging Dircotn.

Revenue snd expenses directly attribotable to sepmunts are reported under each repouiable segment. ANl néher expenses which ore not attributable or allacable o sepinents have boon disclosed as enallncable oxpenses.

sets and |iahilitics that are dircetly atiributable ar allncable to scaments are disclosed under tach reportable segment. Al other agssts and Habihties are disclosed a2 unallocable, Summansed segment information
- 'm{" the years ended March 31, 2012 and Marel 31, 2017 is as thllaws:

Year endod 31 Mareh 2018 (t tvin)
’ Adjustinents and
vhiculars Inikin UAE ROVY Tatal seaments Elirni nE C lidnted
Revenue
Fxlemal cusiomets 2,704.72 95978 - 1.564.50 - 3a6d 20
-inler-segment 4530 - - 43.80 - 4580
Hal revenoe 75052 555,78 - 3.710.30 - 331030
Inzomef{ Exprnses)
11340 1150 - 125.09 - 12509
{1,145.00} Jdg a2 EREH {797.293 1205 (784,93}
14.541.64 578,75 623 15, 12662 - 1513662
5X1.461 31543 9691 93516 001 35.L7
153 - - §.63 - 1.43
1409 5469 - 4058 - 4068
Year ended 3 1 biarch 2017 {5 M)
. Adiuabmewis ond
E_ irticulars Indin UAE ROW ‘To€uk segmenty Eliminations Consolidnted
e
| Enternal custormers 168258 71534 6,28 242500 - 242500
Inter-secmend 26.16 - - 3616 - 26,16
1,702.04 735.84 .28 245116 - 245116
Incvme/{Expenses}
| Depreciation wnd smortisation 15085 2102 T42 17929 - 179.2%
{3.931.21) 58.03 25192 (5,621 .26) {231.34) (5,852.64]
402643 147.43 11352 438738 11.12 430850
436,12 69,61 {205 557,74 B 53770
D{iler disclosures )
Mvesiments in 4 joing venture 1463 - - 1.63 - 1.63
Capnal expenditure 3974 846 - 4822 - 4822
er-ye g revenres are eliminated wpon consolidaiton and reflected in the 'mdfi fy stinf elininntione ' colnan,

A ather Jf

ljusbiments and efindwations

5 anef elfiimmtions are gt of desedled vecomeiostiony preseited Sy befme

juance meome and costs, and Fair value gains and lasses on Financial assets arc nok allocated to individual seuments us the imderlying inshruments ure manayed on a group bass.
sluren Laxes, deferred tares and cenian financial assels and Dabilities are oot allocated to those sepments as they are also managed on a group basis.
Cupltal expenditure consists ufadthmns of property, plant and equipment, inengible assets and invesanent properties ineluding assets from the acguisibon of subsidieries.
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Zbmaro Media Private Limited
Notes 1o standalone financial statements lor the vear ended 31 March 2018
N USBMBGLILIN P TCI 984

Segment infuromution (conid.)

L Hovoneilintions to amngunts reflected in the Nnancial t {T M)
Reconcilinlien of loss 31 March 2015 3 March 2017

Seornemt loss {797.98) £5.651.26}

:
| o
§ er-sepment sales {elmination) 13.05 (231.3%)
‘ (7R, 927 (5,852.64)
‘ {2 Bn)
| 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
f 10.338.76 1,985.03
0.3 1112
1058894 1,9%4,15
(3 ¥la.)
31 Ninrch 2418 31 Mareh 2017
gmenl operating Hahilities F315.14 557.71
silljusiments and Eliminationa [$1]3 -
| Totul liabilitics 93517 557.78
|
: (I )
cyeray rom extorngl customers 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
1w sidia 275052 E, 708 .00
T Outside [niia 95278 742.12
__Total revenue per consolidaled statament of profit o losz 3,710,34 . 145118
(Z_1¥Tn.)
31 March M1 & 31 March 2617
4,730,22 2194 85
744 207 41
4,737.66 T AN

¢Thes spepee hag been iwmeationatly lef Mank)

iy

HERET
T
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mate hedia Privote Limited

Nodes (v sladalose fimacial

s LOABMIDEMEOFTC 198141

Jur the yem ended 31 Macch 2016

36 Detadls of dnes to indero ind small as defined onder MSMED Aet 2006

Vptedy el Moreign curvency sXposure

The amount of fareign cloreney expreurs not hadgad by derivative insmoments or othervise is a5 undar:

The Compary. has during the year, not reosived any kndimalion [om any of its supphicrs ragarding ity statas mder The blicn and Small Enterprises Dovebopment Act, 2006 aod henes disdoseres, if any, relating to amoms unpaid as at
the: year end abong with imerest paid'payabls as required under the said Act hayve ot been given. Based oo the information available with the Company there ara no pricipalfinierest anounts due o micro, small and sediom citer prises.

Tha Comnpany does ot use denivative linancial frstruments such a fisrward exchanme conracts ar options b hedse (s risks associaed with fareign corrency Anchyations o for Fadingspeculation purposs.

M March 2018
¥ M)

3 Morch Tn?
[E Mo

Trink: reveivable

Cash and eash equivalents

Girer Finuncinl asscts_NC

Crher Kinonvinl assers

Cnevenl Tax assets (Med}

Cther Lurrant Assets

Provisions_pC

Other Financial hiabilities

Other Curraat Liabflides

Pravisions_t

Trade payables

AED 3.3 (@ 17,65 (2 58.25 Mo}
AER I3 T@I1765 (27710003
FHP 1.77 (@ .27 {2 2,24 vin)
Fur .01 & 7535 (2075 Ma )
HED 0.1 (3 4601 (T 6 Muln)
GIP @ B5.4 (70 M)

VED .06 @ 54.39 (T 3.06 Mn)
AUD 0,17 @ 4981 (T 3.47 tvln)
DR 826,74 ¢ 0 [T 0 b
ZARD L 7 496 (% 0.69 bin)
QAR 0.61 @ LT3R ([ 10.6hn)
AED 027 @ 17.53 {% 4.75 bdny)
QAR D (@ 1738 {T 0 Mn)

VST .04 (@) 64.39 (T 2.58 Mn)
Tur 1.0% &) 75.35 (F 226 Mu)
CZE 008 (7 291 42 0.17 Mn)
Tur [ (@ 73,35 (20 b0}

PLN O GR 17.84 (30 M)

TRY 003 & 17.55 4% 0,35 M)

ZARALLS (@ 5.46 (T 0.82 Mn)
AED 445 % 17.65 (T 7B.54 Mn)
AED .07 @ 1765 (T LE0.09 bdny
PHF 3.% G2 [.24 {7 4.9] hin}

AED .12 & 17,65 (Z2.12 Mn)
AED 019 (2 17,65 (2 3.35 M)

AED G (@ 1745 {20071 Mn)
AED G2 (R 1765 (2 3.51 Ma}

PHE .14 @ L24 {T0.17 Mn )

ZAR0.06 % 5.46 {2 0.33 M)
AED .18 @ 1 7.65 (2 3.1% Mn)
AED 0. @& 17,63 (T 706 Mn)

AED 016 @ | 7.6% (T 2.02 Mn)
AED ORD @& 17.65 (% 15.71 Mnj

AED 0@ 17,65 (20 Mn)

ARSI @ 5,46 (2 106 Mn)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Zomato Media Private Limited

Report on the Conselidated Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Zomato Media Private
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”), its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and
its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™) and a joint venture, comprising of the consolidated
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including other
comprehensive income, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement, the consolidated Statement of Changes
in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated Ind AS financial statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Conseolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated Ind
AS financial statements in terms of the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) that give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including
other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity
of the Group including its Joint venture in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of Directors
of the companies included in the Group and of its joint venture are responsible for maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Group and of its joint venture and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements by the Directors of the
Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated Ind AS financial statements based on
our audit. While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial
control relevant to the Holding Company’s preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and

S.R. Balliboi & Associates LLP, a Limited Liabilily Parlrership with LLP Identity No, AAB-4295
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the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Holding Company’s Board of Directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that the
audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their
reports referred to in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other
financial information of the subsidiaries and joint venture, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India of the consolidated state
of affairs of the Group, its joint venture as at March 31, 2018, their consolidated loss including other
comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Other Matter

(a) We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of 10
subsidiaries, whose Ind AS financial statements include total assets of Rs 410.53 Million and net
assets of Rs 140.45 Million as at March 31, 2018, and total revenues of Rs 361.86 Million and net
cash inflows of Rs 303.27 Million for the year ended on that date. These financial statement and
other financial information have been audited by other auditors, which financial statements, other
financial information and auditor’s reports have been furnished to us by the management. Our
opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of
Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the
reports of such other auditors.

Certain of these subsidiaries are located outside India whose financial statements and other financial
information have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
their respective countries and which have been audited by other auditors under generally accepted
auditing standards applicable in their respective countries. The Company’s management has
converted the financial statements of such subsidiaries located outside India from accounting
principles generally accepted in their respective countries to accounting principles generally
accepted in India. We have audited these conversion adjustments made by the Company’s
management. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the balances and affairs of such subsidiaries
located outside India is based on the report of other auditors and the conversion adjustments
prepared by the management of the Company and audited by us.

(b) The accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements include unaudited financial statements
and other unaudited financial information in respect of 18 subsidiaries, whose financial statements
and other financial information reflect total assets of Rs 25.17 Million and net assets of Rs 11.96
Million as at March 31, 2018, and total revenues of Rs 0.08 Million and net cash outflows of Rs
3.45 Million for the year ended on that date. These unaudited financial statements and other
unaudited financial information have been furnished to us by the management. The consolidated
Ind AS financial statements also include the Group’s share of net loss of Rs. Nil for the year ended
March 31, 2018, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of 1 joint venture,
whose financial statements, other financial information have not been audited and whose unaudited
financial statements, other unaudited financial information have been furnished to us by the
Management. Our opinion, in so far as it relates amounts and disclosures included in respect of
these subsidiaries/joint venture, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the
Actin so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries/joint venture, is based solely on such unaudited
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financial statement and other unaudited financial information. In our opinion and according to the
mformation and explanations given to us by the Management, these financial statements and other
financial information are not material to the Group.

Our opinion above on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements and other
financial information certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the
other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries, as
noted in the ‘other matter’ paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We / the other auditors whose reports we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination
of those books and reports of the other auditors;

(c¢) The consolidated Balance Sheet, consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement
of Other Comprehensive Income, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement and consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standard) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as
on March 31, 2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary
companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group’s companies incorporated in
India is disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy and the operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure 17 to this report;

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in -our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the
report of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial information
of the subsidiaries as noted in the ‘Other matter’ paragraph:

1. The Group and its joint venture does not have any pending litigations as at March 31, 2018
which would impact its consolidated financial position;




ii. The Group and its joint venture did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-term
contracts including derivative contracts during the year ended March 31, 2018.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India during the
year ended March 31, 2018.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

e

per Yogesh Midha ©
Partner 3 . /( ;
Membership Number: 094941 ‘Q%;;Wu\,J;JJi+-%?
Place of Signature: New Delhi A

Date: May 28, 2018



ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ZOMATO MEDIA PRIVATE LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Zomato Media Private Limited as of and
for the year ended March 31, 2018, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
Zomato Media Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”), which is the company
incorporated in India, as of that date. This report, however, does not include report on the internal financial
controls under clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act for the 2 subsidiaries, which are the companies
incorporated in India, since in our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the said
Report on Internal Financial Controls is not applicable to the aforesaid subsidiary companies basis the exemption
available to the companies under MCA notification no. G.S.R. 583(E) dated July 13, 2017 on reporting on internal
financial controls over financial reporting.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, which is the company incorporated in India, is
responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, both, issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial
statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Consolidated
Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Consolidated Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
consolidated financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over fimancial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal fmancial control over financial reporting with
reference to these consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company, which is the company incorporated in India, has, maintained in all material
respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial
statements and such internal financial controls over fmancial reporting with reference to these consolidated
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31,2018, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Yogesh Midha

Partner

Membership Number: 94941
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date; May 28, 2018




Zomato -Media Private Limited
Consolidated Batance Sheet as at 31 March 2018
CIN : U93030DL2010PTC198141

Notes As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
X Mn.) (X Mn.}
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 48.66 134.99
Capital work in progress 745 -
Goodwill 4 1,061.18 139.04
Other Intangible assets 4 602.12 10.98
Intangible assets under development 542 7.00
Financial assets
Investments 5 95.66 90.66
Loans 10 43.21 61.60
Other financial asset 11 522.38 100.70
Prepayments and other assets 13 3.33 18.61
2,391.41 563.58
Current assets
Financial assets
Investments 6 8,196.63 341.93
‘Trade receivables 7 260.84 191.07
Cash & cash equivalents 8 1,003.95 477.63
Bank balances other than "Cash & cash equivalent” 9 1,076.79 586.95
Loans 10 - 0.70
Otlier financial asset 11 65.03 484,91
Current tax asscts (nct) 12 97.42 56.68
Prepayments and other assets 13 405.09 154.27
11,105,758 2,294.14
Total assets 13,497.16 2,857.72
Equity aud liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 14 (a) 0.30 0.27
lustruments entirely equity in nature 14 (a) 1,743.75 1.313.53
Other Equity 1 (b) 10,366.10 727.97
Lquity attributable to equity holders of the company 12,110.15 2,041.77
Non-eontrolling interests 84.33 (37.33)
Total equity 12,194.48 2,004.44
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 15 13.25 13.25
Trade payables 16 25.32 54.39
Provision for employee benefits 17 71.72 59.57
Other provisions 18 0.36 1.96
[10.65 129.17
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 16 681.81 384.70
Other financial liabilities 19 0.89 0.55
Provision for employee benefits 17 25.30 28.08
Other cnrrent liabilities 20 484.03 310.78
1,192.03 724.11
Total liabilities 1,302.68 853.28
Total equity and liabilities 13,497.16 2,857.72
Summary of significant aceounting policies 23

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial stateinents.

As per our report of even date

For S.R.Batliboi & Associates LLP
Firm registration number: 101049W / £300004
Chartered Accountants

pgr Yogesh Midha

Partner
Mermbership No.: 094941

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 28, 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Direclors of

) e
DéepindeiGoyal
(Director)

(DIN-02613583)

"Seema Khanna

(Company Secretary)
(F-6348)

Place: Gurgaon
Date: May 28, 2018

Zomato Media Private Limited
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P
Pankaj Chaddah

(Director)

- (DIN-02625858)




Zomato Media Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 Rarch 2018
CIN : U93030DL2010PTC198141

Notes 31 March 2018 31 Mareh 2017
(X Mn.) (Z Mn.)
Income }
Revenue from operations 21 4,663.63 3,322.72
Other income 22 187.31 670.78
Total Income 4,850,94 3,993.50
Expenses
LEmployee benefits expense 23 2,904.93 2,869.16
Finance Costs 24 252.02 160.15
Depreciation and amortization expense 25 160.24 1,109.06
Other expenses 26 2,596.87 1,869.38
Total Expenses 5,914.06 6,007.75
Loss hefore exceptional items and tax (1,063.12) (2,014.25)
Exceptional items 27 - 1,884.82
Loss before tax (1,063.12) (3,899.07)
Current tax ) - -
Deferred tax - -
Income tax cxpense - -
Loss for the year (1,063.12) (3,899.07)
Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Re~measurement gains/(losses) on defined henefit plans (0.02) 1.90
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations : 28.38 0.29
Other comprehbensive income for the year 28.36 2.19
Total comprehensive loss for the year (1,034.76) (3,896.88)
Loss for the year attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent ) (1,030.73) (3,890.91)
Non-controlling interests (32.39) (8.16)
(1,063.12) (3,899.07)
Total comprehensive loss for the year attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent (1,002.37) (3,888.72)
Non-controlling interests (32.39) (8.16)
Total comprehensive loss for the year (1,034.76) (3,896.88)
Loss per equity shave ’ 28
- Basic & Diluted (2 Mn.) (0.00) (0.01)
Suwmmary of significant accounting policies 2.3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements,
As per our report of even date
For S.R.Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Firm registration number: 101049W / £300004 Zomato Media Private Limited

hartered Accountants
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Membership No.: 094941 (DIN-02613583) (DIN:02625858)

Place: New Delhi

Date: May 28, 2018 - Sjecma Khanna
(iiompany Secretary)
(F-6348)

Place: Gurgaon
Date: May 28, 2018
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31 March 2018 31 March 2017
(% Mn.) & Mn.)
A)  Operating activities
Loss befoxe tax ' (1,063.12) (3,899.07)
Adjnstments to reconcile loss before tax to net cash flows:
Liabilities written back (2.50) (3.57)
Excess provision written back (13.89) (15.56)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ' 128.33 204.22
Amortization of intangible assets 31.91 904.85
Impairment of intangible assets . : - 1,884.82
Provision for doubtful debts 45.89 42.49
Provision for doubtful advances 491 .
Bad Debts wrilten ofl 8.49 14.43
Share-based payment expense 140.26 221.73
Gain on sale of current investments (28.10) (28.52)
Advances wrilten off 6.25 4.48
Loss/(profit) on disposal of propeity, plant and equipment (net) (2.96) 6.86
Allowance for credit loss on trade receivable written back 2.0 (14.22)
Finance income (including fair value change in financial instruments) - (423.77)
Finance costs (including fair value change in financial instruments) - 279.70
Unrealised Gain on Investment at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (67.27) 0.64)
Foreign currency monetary item lranslation difference on foreign operations 28.38 0.29
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans (0.02) 1.90
Interest expense 57t 43.83
Interest income (65.02) (180.80)
Operating Loss before Working Capital Changes (844.77) (956.55)
Movements in working capital : .
Increase in trade receivables (118.77) (125.23)
Decrease in loans 19.09 049
Decrease/ (Increase) in other financial assets 13.81 (377.56)
Decrease/ (Increase) in other assets (193.18) 34.16
Increase/(Decrease) in other liabilities 37.93 (24.18)
Increase in provisions 21.66 - 60.13
Increasc in trade payables 266.65 66.80
Cash used in operations (797.59) (1,321.94)
Income taxes paid (45.65) (20.81)
Net eash used in operating activities (A) (843.23) (1,342.75)
B) Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant & equipment (including capital work in progress and capital advances) (53.24) (64.37)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment 13.54 32.38
Purchase of intangible assets (5.55) -
Investments in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than 3 months) (1,608.05) -
Redemption bank deposits (having original maturity of more than 3 months) 1,096.34 1,137.58
Proceeds from sale of financial assets — Liquid mutual fund units 2.254.96 3,149.61
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired (21.64) (50.18)
Payment to acquire financial assets - Liquid mutual fund units (9,976.00) (2,978.50)
Purchase of non-current investments (5.00) -
Interest received 65.02 141.92
Net eash flows from/(used) in investing activitics (B) (8,239.62) 1,368.94
C) Financing activities
" Proceeds from issue of Share Capital 9,699.59 -
Repayinents of long term borrowings (75.00) -
Transaction cost on issue of shares (9.70) (1.31)
Interest paid (5.71) (5.24)
Net cash flow from/(nsed) in financing activities ( C) 9,609.18 (6.55)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 526.32 19.64
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 477.62 458.00

Cash and eash equivalents at end of the year (refer Note 8) 1,003.95 477.63




Zomato Media Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2018
CIN : U93030DL2010PTC198141

31 Mavreh 2018 31 March 2017
(% Mn.) (X Mn.)
Non-cash investing transaction
Acquisition of Carthero Technologies Pvt. Ltd. by issue of Compulsotily convertible cumulative
preference shares 1.294.02 ‘ A

Amendment to Ind AS 7

Effective April 12017, the Company adopted the amendment to Ind AS 7, which requires the entities to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes, suggesting inclusions of a
reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the Balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities, to meet the disclosure requirement. The adoption
of amendment did not have any impact on the financial statements.

Summary of significant accounting policies 23
For S.R.Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of’

Firm registration number: 101049W / £300004 Zomato Media Private Limited
Chartered Aceountants .
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Partner (Director) (Director),
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Place: New Delhi
Date: May 28, 2018

Sgema Kiianna
(Company Secretary)
(F-6348)

Place: Gurgaon
Date: May 28,2018
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2.1

Zomato Media Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Mawrch 2018
CIN: U93030DL2010PTC198141

Corporate Information

Zomato Media Private Limited (‘the Company’ or ‘Zomato’), its subsidiaries (including branches), and a joint
venture (collectively referred to as “the Group™) primarily operates as an internet portal providing multitude of
information, including but not limited to details of menus, contacts, discount offers, quality of service and food
w.r.t restaurants and caterers and other service providers, online ordering of food from select restaurants, to be
availed by users of the website in making informed decisions about their dining options and related facilities and
by restaurants, hotels and other caterers to advertise themselves to the target audience in India and abroad.

The company is domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in
India. The registered office of the company is located at GF — 12A, 94, Meghdoot, Nehru Place, New Delhi -
110019,

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018, were approved by the Board of
Directors and authorised for issue on May 28, 2018.

Basis of preparation of financial statements and Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS), under
the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except certain financial instrument which are measured at fair
values, the provisions of the companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) (to the extent notified). The Ind AS are prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with rule 3 of the companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and
relevant amendment rules issued thereafter.

Effective April 1, 2016, the Group has adopted all the Ind AS standards and the adoption was carried out in
accordance with Ind AS 101 First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standard, with April 1, 2015 as the
transition date. The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles generally accepted in India as
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) rules, 2014 (IGAAP),
which was the previous GAAP.

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all amounts disclosed in the financial statements and
notes have been rounded off to the nearest Million (as per the requirement of Schedule III), unless otherwise
stated.

2.2 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company, its subsidiaries
(including its branches), and a joint venture as at 31 March 2018,

Subsidiaries

Control is achieved when the Company is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the
Company controls an investee if and only if the Company has:

B Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee)

B Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

B> The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns




Zomato Media Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
CIN: U93030D1L2010PTC198141

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
financial statement from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other
events in similar circumstances. If a member of the group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in
the consolidated financial statements for lilke transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate
adjustments are made to that group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial
statements to ensure conformity with the group’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date
as that of the parent company, i.e., year ended on 31 March.

Consolidation procedure:

i. Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of
its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets
and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.

ii. Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion
of equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to account for any related goodwill.
iii. Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between entities of the group [profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are
recognised in assets (if any), such as inventory, are eliminated in full]. Intragroup losses may indicate an
impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS12 Income Taxes applies to
temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of
the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to
bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and

" liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

i. Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary

ii. Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

iii. Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

iv. Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

v. Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

vi. Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

vii. Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or retained
earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities

Joint Venture

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence or joint control are similar to those
necessary to determine control over the subsidiaries.
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The Group’s investments in its joint venture are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method,
the investment in a joint venture is initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted
to recognise changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill
relating to the joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment
individually.

The statement of profit and loss reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of the joint venture. Any
change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and the joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the joint venture.

If an entity’s share of losses of a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the joint venture (which includes
any long term interest that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint venture), the entity
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint venture. If the joint
venture subsequently reports profits, the entity resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share
of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of a joint venture is shown on the face of the statement of
profit and loss.

The financial statements of the joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. When
necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment
loss on its investment in its joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective
evidence that the investment in the joint venture is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the
amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the joint venture and its carrying
value, and then recognises the loss as ‘Share of profit of a joint venture’ in the statement of profit or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises
any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the joint venture upon
loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

2.3  Summary of significant accounting policies

Use of estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement
principles of Ind AS requires the management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that effect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the
end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current
events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

Business combinations and goodwill

The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition
date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination,
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the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their
acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing
present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired
in a business combination are measured at the basis indicated below:

B Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively.

B Liabilities or equity instruments related to share based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share — based
payments arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree
are measured in accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-based Payments at the acquisition date.

B Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that standard.

B> Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining contractual term of the
related contract. Such valuation does not consider potential renewal of the reacquired right.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCI, as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of
Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. If the contingent consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance with the
appropriate Ind AS. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent
reporting dates and subsequent its settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate
consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and
all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the
acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the
aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital
reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in
equity as capital reserve, without routing the same through OCI.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit
is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit.
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Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is
not reversed in subsequent periods. Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete,
Those provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date. These adjustments are
called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement period does not exceed one year from the
acquisition date.

ii. Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An
asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

poos

All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is current when:

a. It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

b. Tt is held primarily for the purpose of trading

c. Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents. The group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

iv. Foreign currencies
The Group’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees. For each foreign subsidiary and branch the
Group determines the functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency, which is the currency of their countries of domicile.
Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency spot rates at the date the

transaction first qualifies for recognition, However, for practical reasons, the company uses an average rate if the
average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.
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Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency. spot
rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss with
the exception of the following:

a. Exchange differences arising on monetary items that forms part of a reporting entity’s net investment in a
foreign operation are recognised in profit or loss in the separate financial statements of the reporting entity or the
individual financial statements of the foreign operation, as appropriate. 1n the financial statements that include
the foreign operation and the reporting entity (e.g., consolidated financial statements when the foreign operation
is a subsidiary), such exchange differences are recognised initially in OCI. These exchange differences are
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the net investment.

¢. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in
OCI.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss
arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

Group companies

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into Indian Rupees at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their statements of profit or loss are translated at exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. For practical reasons, the group uses an average rate to translate income
and expense items, if the average rate approximates the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. The
exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation are recognised in OCI. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of OCI relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Cumulative currency translation differences for all foreign operations are deemed to be zero at the date of
transition, viz., 1 April 2016. Gain or loss on a subsequent disposal of any foreign operation excludes translation
differences that arose before the date of transition but includes only translation differences arising after the
transition date
\Z Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption

that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

a. Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
b. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
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A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

a. Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

b. Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

¢. Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Group’s finance team determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement,
such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value. The team comprises of the
VP Finance and Director Finance.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities, Involvement of external valuers
is decided on the basis of nature of transaction and complexity involved. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.

At each reporting date, the finance team analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Group’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the team
verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation
to contracts and other relevant documents. A change in fair value of assets and liabilities is also compared with
relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis
of'the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained
above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
relevant notes.

vi. Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any

Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment. When significant parts of plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based on their specific
useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the
plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance
costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, it any.
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Depreciation on all property plant and equipment are provided on a straight line method based on the estimated
useful life of the asset, which is as follows:

Property, plant and equipment Useful lives as per Schedule I | Useful lives estimated by
management
| Air Conditioner 5 years 3 years
Electrical Equipment’s 5 years 3 years
Furniture & Fittings 10 years 3 years
Computers 3 years 2 years
Motor Vehicles B - 8 years | 8years
Telephone Instruments 5 years 2 years

Leasehold Improvements are amortised over 4 years or life based on lease period, whichever is lower. Based on
the expected useful lives of these assets, the group has considered below mentioned useful lives for different
classes of assets:

e  The useful lives of electrical equipment’s, furniture and fittings, computers, air conditioners and telephone
instruments are estimated as 3,3,2,3 and 2 respectively. These lives are lower than those indicated in
schedule II to Companies Act 2013.

e  Improvements to leasehold buildings not owned by the Company are amortized over the lease period or
estimated useful life of such improvements, whichever is lower.

The mianagement has estimated the useful lives and residual values of all property, plant and equipment and
adopted useful lives based on management’s assessment of their respective economic useful lives. The residual
values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Depreciation on the assets purchased during the year is provided on pro-rata basis from the date of purchase of
the assets. Individual assets costing less than INR 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

vii. Goodwill and Intangible assets

Goodwill represents the cost of acquired business as established at the date of acquisition of the business in
excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or when events or
circumstances indicate that the implied fair value of goodwill is less than the carrying amount.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are
not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is
incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life
being 2 years and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
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pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes’ in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss uniess
such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised. ’

Intangible assets acquired in business combination, include brand, consumer contracts and relationship,
technology platform, content review and trademarks which amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated
useful life which is as follows:

Nature of Assets Life
“Brand 2 years
Consumer contracts and relationship 5 years
Technology platform 5 years
Content review 5 years
Trademarks 5 years

The amortisation period and method are reviewed at least at each financial year —end. If the expected useful life
of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement
at the inception ofthe lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent
on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that
right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

For arrangements entered into prior to 1 April 2015, the group has determined whether the arrangement contain
lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition.

Group as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Group is classified as a finance lease.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and
the revenue can be reliably measured regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the
fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment
and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. The Group has concluded that it is the
principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangeinents as it has
pricing latitude and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks. Revenue in excess of billings is recognised as
unbilled revenue in the balance sheet; to the extent billings are in excess of revenue recognised, the excess is
reported as unearned and deferred revenue in the balance sheet.
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Service Tax/Sales tax/ value added tax (VAT)/ Goods and Service tax (GST) is not received by the group on its
own account, Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the services/commodity by the seller on behalf of the
government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.
Rendering of Services
Advertisement Income

Revenue from operating an internet portal providing all sorts of information about restaurants and caterers for
display of advertisements are recognized on display of advertisements.

In case of Zomato USA, LLC, the display advertisement revenue is recognized on pay per click model. The
company generates third party service fee by displaying or promoting their services or product offerings on its
website. The revenue is recognized when number of users who click on the third party sponsored services or
product offerings and thereby successfully avail the services such as table reservation and online food ordering.

Subscription revenue

Revenues from subscription contracts are recognized on accrual basis in accordance with terms of agreement
entered into with customer.

Online Ordering

Revenues from Online Ordering are recognized in the form of commission income on accrual basis in accordance
with the terms of agreement entered into with customers.

Interest

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method. Interest income is included under the head
“other income” in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividends
Dividend income is recognized when the group's right to receive dividend is established by the reporting date.
x.  Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund social security is a defined contribution scheme. The group has
no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund/social security. The group recognizes
contribution payable to the provident fund scheme/ social security scheme as an expense, when an employee
renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet
date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after
deducting the contribution already paid. [f the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services
received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment
will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Retirement benefits in the form of social insurance premiums due to Turkey Social Insurance Institutions are a
defined contribution scheme in Turkey and the contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss under
personnel expenses of the year when the contributions to the respective funds are made. These payments are
calculated to a percentage of current gross wages and they are recognized as expense when they are incurred.

The group operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India and United Arab Emirates.
The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
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retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the eatlier of:

a. The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
b. The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability. The Group recognises
the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the consolidated statement of profit
and loss:

a. Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-
routine settlements; and
b. Net interest expense

The Company also operates a leaye encashment plan in India, United Arab Einirates and Australia. The company
treats accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, as short-term employee
benefits. The comipany measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to
pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

In case of other foreign subsidiary companies, contributions are made as per the respective country laws and
regulations. The same is charged to statement of profit and loss on accrual basis. There is no obligation beyond
the Company’s contribution.

xi. Taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable
income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either
in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented in the balance sheet after off-setting advance
tax paid and income tax provision arising in the same tax jurisdiction and where the relevant tax paying units
intends to settle the asset and liability on a net basis.

Deferred taxes

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:
a. When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a

transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss,
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b. In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

a. When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss,

b. Inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets
are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive inconie or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

xii.  Share based payment

Employees (including senior executives) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an
appropriate valuation model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or credit for a period represents the
movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in
employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award
and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.
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No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service
conditions have not been met. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are
treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense had the
terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense is recognised for
any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification. Where an award is cancelled by the entity or
by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through profit
or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted
earnings per share.

Segment reporting
Identification of segments

The Company’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the geographical
locations of the customers, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that serves different markets.
The ‘Others’ segment includes those segments, which are not separately reportable as per Ind AS 108.

Allocation of commion costs

Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment according to the relative contribution of each segment to
the total common costs.

Unallocated items

Unallocated items include general corporate income and expense items which are not allocated to any business
segment.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects
ofall dilutive potential equity shares.

Provisions and Contingent liabilities
i) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a provision
is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.
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ii) Contingent Liability

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one are more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Institute, or is a present obligation that arises from past event but is not recognised because
either it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. Contingent liabilities are
disclosed and not recognised.

Financial instrumenmnts

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Trade
receivables are initially measured at transaction price. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades)
are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurenment

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two categories:
1. Financial assets carried at amortised cost

2. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at amortised cost
A ‘financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash

flows, and

b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance
income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category
generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Financial assets af FVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial assets instrument, which does not meet the

criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in
the P&L..

Equity instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 at fair value, other than
investments in equity instruments in subsidiaries, joint venture, which are carried at cost.
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Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group’s balance sheet) when:

i. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

ii. The group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’

arrangement; and either (a) the group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b)

the group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control of the asset.

When the group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of
the asset, the group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that talces the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the group could be
required to repay.

Impairment of financial assefs

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

i. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities,
deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

ii. Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 18.

The group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables.
The application of simplitied approach does not require the group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the group in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.
When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

i. All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options)
over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial
instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the
financial instrument.
ii. Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to

the contractual terms.

As a practical expedient, the Group uses a provision matrix to deterthine impairment loss allowance on portfolio
of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected
life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.
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In case any balance is disputed by the customer then it will be reviewed separately for creating the provision and
amount up to 100% of the balance may be provided on the basis of nature of dispute. Any disputed balance
which is considered separately will be excluded from the nortal ageing bucket for making the provision.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in
the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The
balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

i. Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables: ECL is presented as an
allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance
reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the group does not reduce impairment
allowance from the gross carrying amount.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the group combines financial instruments on the basis
of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable
significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The group does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e., financial
assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

i. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS
109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such
at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as
FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/
loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The group
has designated all financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss (except for loans and borrowings).

ii. Loans and borrowings - After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the EIR ethod. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.
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Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit
and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings.

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non-derivative
host contract — with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a
standalone derivative. An embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be
required by the contract to be modified according to a specified interest rate, financial instrument price,
commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable,
provided in the case of a nonfinancial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the
cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through
profit or loss.

If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset within the scope of Ind AS 109, the group does not
separate embedded derivatives. Rather, it applies the classification requirements contained in Ind AS 109 to the
entire hybrid contract. Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives
and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or designated at fair value though profit or loss. These
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss, unless
designated as effective hedging instruments.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to seitle on a net
basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Xvil. Impairment of nou-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. 1f any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU)
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific’to the
asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated
by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Group’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and
applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered
by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady
or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth
rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in
which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.
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Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. 1f such indication
exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset
does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is
treated as a revaluation increase.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as at 31 March and when circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs)
to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

xviii. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the
asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

xiX. Cash and ecash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts (if any) as they are considered an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.
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31 March 20{&

31 March 2017

5 Financial assels - Investments (Non-current) (X M. X Mn.)
Investments at Cost
Other Investmeots
Investment in Unquoted instruments (fnlly paid)
Investment io joint ventnres
Zomato Media WLL
98 (31 March 2017 - 98) equity share of QAR 1,000 cach fully paid in Zomato Media WLL 1.63 .63
Less : Share of loss of a joint venture (1.63) - (1.63) -
Investment in Prefcrence Insirnmenis
5,417 (31 March 2017:5,417) 0.00001% of Compulsarily Canvertible P Shares of ¥ 20 eaeh fully paid 90.66 90.66
in Grab A Grub Scrvices Private Limited
2,553 (31 March 2017: Nil) 0.01% of Compnlsarily Couvertible Prefercnce Shares of T 10 eaeh fully paid in 4.81 -
Vieinia Retatl Private Limited
9347 90.66
Investment in Equity Instruments
100 (31 March 2017: Nit) Equity Shares of T 10 eaeh fully paid in Vicinia Retai} Privale Limited 0.19 -
66
A ate amount of d 95.66
Aggregate provision for hupairment in value of investments - -
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
6 Financial assets - Investments (current) No. of Units X Mu.} No. of Units I Mn.)
Investments at fair value throngh Profit & Loss
Unquoled Mutnal funds
Axis Liquid Fund - Dircet - Growth 1,044,789 2,013.86 - -
Aditya Birla Sun Life Floating Rate Fund- Long Term- Growth- Direet Plan 2,578,733 53527 - -
Inveseo India Liquid Fund-Direct Plan Growth (formerly known as Religare Invesco Tudia Liquid Fund-Direct
Plan Growth) 14,774 3334 9,011 21.27
SBI-Magnum Insla Cash Fund-Direct Plan Growth 7,895 30.34 11,168 40.17
Franklin India Ultra Short Bond Fund Snper Instilutional Plan- Direet - Growth Plan 4445374 107.32 1,375,907 30.72
ICICI Prudential Flexible Income - Direet Plan Growth 1,657,257 53532 - .
Reliauce Liguid Fund-Treasury Plan-Direcl Growth Plan - - 24,731 9445
Kotak Low Duration Fund - Dircet - Growth 253,693 35579 - -
Franklin India Treasury Managemeni Account - Super Institutional Plan - Dircet Growth Plan - - 8,685 2112
Kotak Floaler Short Term - Dircet Plan Growth 706,048 2,013.62 - -
India Bulls Lignid Fund - Direet Plan - Growth - - 48,703 77.38
Indiabulls Ulra Short Term Fund - Direct Plan Growth - USG1 1733 3.00 - -
L&T Lignid Fund - Direet Plan - Growth - - 10,629 23.70
Aditya Birla Sun life Cash Plus-Direct Plan — Growth Direct Plan 98,736 27.58 64,845 16.95
Reliance Medium Term Fund- Direct Plan Growth Plan- Growth Option 14,937,493 535.70 .
Aditya Birla Sun Life Floaling Rate Fund Short Term Plan- Growth- Direet Plan 7,515,574 1,743.49 74,496 16.17
8,196.63 34193
Aggregnte amonnt of unquoted investments ( 1n X Mu) 8,196.63 341.93

7__Trade reccivables

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

Trade receivables
Total trade receivables

Unseeured, considercd good
Doubtful

[ Mn.} X Mn.)
260.84 191.07
260.84 _ 191,07
1mpairment Allowance (allowance for bad aad doubtfol debts)
96.68
260.84 191.07

Tatal Trade receivables

No trade or other receivable are due fromn dircctors or other offieers of the company either severally or joinily with any other persou. Nor any trade or other reccivable are due from firms or privale companies respeetively in

which any direetor is a partner, a direetor or a member.

Trade receivables are non-intcrest bearing and are generally on terms of 0 to 90 dnys.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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31 Mareh 2018

31 March 2017

8 Cash & cash canivalents (& Mu.) (@ Mn.)
Balances with banks:
- On curvent accoimls 1,001,232 467.83
= Deposits with original maturity of less than (hree months 1.20 -
-- Restricted Cash lield in scparalc accounts* - 7.51
Cash on hand 1.52 229
100395 477.63
* As per lhe directives of Reserve Bank of India. the Company operalces all online poyments reccived from cusiomers hrough a Nodal accouat. Balance fying m such account is T 83.37 M. (31 March 2017: T30.03 Ma.) and amonot duc to merchants
is T 86.72 Mn (31 March 2017: T 22.33 Mn.) as al 31st March 2018, which is payable has beeo disclosed under other currcnt liability ' Money lield in trust' and balance as at 31 March 2017 whicl is available for nsc by the Company is disclosed as
"Restricled Cash held in separate accounts™ in the financial statemeats.
AL31 March 2018, the group had available T 45.00 Mn (31 Mareh 2017: T 45.00 Mn) of undrawn commiltcd borrowing facilitics.
For the purpose of the statement of cash lows. cash and cash cquivalents comprise the following:
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
¥ Mn.} {¥Mn)
Badances with banks
— On current accommls 1,001.23 467.83
- Deposits will original maturily of Jess than thrce months 1.20 -
-- Restricled Cash held in separalc accounts* - 7.51
Cash on hand 2.29
3{ March 2018 3t March 2017
9 Otlier banfc halances X Mn.) (¥ Mn.)
Balances with hanks:
- Deposits with original maturity of more (han three wonths 1,076.78 386.95
— Deposits with original maturity of more than 12 montlis 453162 423.08
— Margin money deposits 1ol 18.28
- 1.540.M L.028.31
Amoant disclosed as "Other linaacial assel" (463.23 (441.36)
1,076.79
31 Mareh 2018 31 March 2017
10 Loans X Mn.| (X Mun.)
Unseenred, considered good
Loans (o Rclatcd Parties 4321 62301
43.21 62.30
Breaknp of above-
Non-carrent
Unsecured, considered good
Loans to Relaled Partics
Total von-cucrent Loans
Cnrrent
Unsecnred, considered good
Loaus lo Related Partics -
Total cnrrent Loans -
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
11 Other fi ial pssels (X Mn.) {IMn,)
Margin moncy deposits* 1161 18.28
Deposits wilh original maturily for more than 12 month 451.62 423.09
Intcrest accrued on fixed deposil with banks 12.29 25.00
Iterext arcmed on Others 386 3175
Securify deposits 97.12 9843
Advanccs 1ecoverable in cash or kind 7.04 11.98
Acerned [ueome 3.87
587.41
[mnairnieat Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful balances)
Unsceured, considered good - -
Doubtful -
Total ether Gnancinl assel 58741
Breaknn of above-
Non-enrrent
Unsecured, considered good
Margiu moncy deposits* 11.61 18.28
Dcposils with original maturity for more than 12 month 450.09 0.06
futerest accrucd on fixed deposits 3.09 0.01
Sceurity deposils 37.59 78.60
Advance recoverable in cash or kind - 3.75
Total non-current financial assets 522.38 100.70
Current
Unscenred, considered goot
Deposils with eriginal maturily for more than 12 month 133 423.03
Tterest accrued on fixed deposits 9.20 24.99
Interest accrued vn Others 3.80 3.75
Sceurity deposil 39.53
Advyanccs recoverable in cash o kind 7.04
Accenied Incotne 2.87
Tatal crrent [nancin assets 65.03

* Margin moncy deposil includes pledged with municipal authoritics of T 0.09 Mn ( 31 March 2017: T 0.09 Mn), deposit with bauk for visa guaranlee charges in Dubai amounting (o T 0.88 Mn (31 March 2017: ¥ 3.09 Mn} and with other countries ¥

[0.63 Mn (31 March 2017: T 15.1] Mn)

(This space has been intentionally lofi blank)
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L Other Ginandcial assets(Contd)
Breato un of financial assets carricd at amortised cost _
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
(% Mn,} X Mn,)
[nvestment 95.606 90.66
Margin money deposits (Refer Note 1 1) 11.61 18.28
Deposits with original maturily for more than 12 months (Refer Note 11) 450.09 0.00
Interest acerucd on lixed deposit (Refer Note 1) 3.09 .01
Sceurily deposits (Refer Note 11) 57.59 78.6D
Advance recoverable in cash or kind (Refer Note 11) - 375
Loans (Refer Nole 10) 43.21 61.60
Total non-curcent financial assels cavried at amortised cost 661.25 252,96
Current
Sceurily deposit {Refer Note 11) 39.33 19.83
Trade receivables (Reler Note 7) 260.84 191,07
Cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note §) 1.003.93 477.63
Other Bank Balances (Refer Nole 9) 1,076.79 386.93
Interest acerued on fived deposits (Reler Note L) 9.20 24.99
Interest acerued on others (Refer Note 1) 386 375
Loans (Refer Note 10) . 0.70
Advanees recoverable in eash or kind (Refer Note 11) . 7.04 8.23
Deposils with original maturity for tnare than 12 wonths (Refer Note 11) 1.53 423.03
Accerued Income (Refer Note 11} 3.87 3.08
Total currewt financial assets carried at amortiscl cost 2.406.61 1,74
Total financial asscts carvied at wnortised cost 3.067.85 1,994.20
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
12 _Current Lix assets (X Mn,) (X Mn.)
Advance 1ax / Tax deducled al source (nel) 9742 56.68
31 March 2018 3t March 2017
13 Prepavments and other assets (X Mn) X Mn.)
Usisecured, cousidered good, unless stated atherwise
StafT [wprest 4.64 4.96
Advances Lo supplicr 42.55 21.23
Prepaid cxpenses 38.12 33.19
Mouey Held in Trust 276.73 77.71
Capital advavees 1.05 .62
Other advances 2.06 0.98
Balance will statutorv/goverament authoritics 58.55 22.69
423.70 181.38
Tnimairment Allowaace (allownace for bad and doubuinl balances)
Doublful 28

Tolal Prepayments

Breulap of above:
Non-Currenl
Prepaid expenses
Capilal advances
Total nen-currenl

Current

Stafl imprest

Less: -Allowance for doubtiul advances
Advanees lo suppliee

Less: -Allowance lor doubtful advavees
Prepaid expenses

Asscts held for sale

Other advances

Money held in trust #

Less : liabilitics against money licld in trust
Balance with statutonv/government authorities
Total current

# represents moncy lying witl Payment gateways

4.28 17.99
1.05 0.02
§.33 18.61
4.96
391 (1.73) 4.23
21.23
30.00 .77 13.46
3384 33.20
2.06 0.98
32741 94.56
(30.68) 276.73 16.85) 77.71
38.35 22.69
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Zomato Media Private Limited

Notes to

li d fi ial st for the vear ended 31 March 2018

CIN : U93030DL2010PTC198141

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
14 (a) Share capital - (T Mn.) X Mn)
Authorised Share Capital
600,000 (31 Mareh 2017: 600,000) equity shares of T | each 0.60 0.60
188,587 (31 Mareh 2017: 188,587) 0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preferenee Shares of
T 10 each - Class A, B, Cand D 1.89 1.89
930,551,391 (31st Mareh 2017: 930,551,391) 0.0001% C: Isocily Converlible P Shares of
%1 eaeh- ClassE 930.55 930.55
190,653,540 (315t Mareh 2017: 190,653,540) 0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Preferenee Shares of
Y2 eaeh - Class F 38131 381.31
10,885 (31 Mareh 2017: NIL) 0.00000015% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of
¥ 6.700 eaeh - Class G 7293 . -
83,425 (31 Mareh 2017: NIL) 0.00000015% C: {sorily Convertible C lative P Shares of
%6.700 eaeh - Class H 558.94 -
1,946.22 1,314.35

1ssued, subscribed and fuily paid-up shares
337,694 (31 Mareh 2017: 307,616) equity shares of T 1 each 0.34 031
Less: 41,766 (31 Mareh 2017: 41,766) Shares held by ESOP Trust as at the year end of of Z | eaeh * (0.04)

Instruments cutircly equity in nature

78,791 (31 Mareh 2017: 78,791) 0.0001% C. [sorily Convertible Cumulative Preferenee Shares of T 10 0.79 0.79
each - Class A

16,396 (31 Mareh 2017: 32,791) 0.0001% C: Isorily Converlible Cumulative Prefe Shares of ¥ 10 0.17 033
each - Class B

13,664 (31 Mareh 2017: 27,327) 0.0001% C: tsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of T 10 0.13 0.27
eaeh - Class C '

28,460 (31 Mareh 2017; 28,460) 0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preferenee Shares of T 10 0.28 0.28
each - Class D

729,192,849 (31 Mareh 2017: 930,551,391) 0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Preferenee Shares of X 1 each 729.19 930.55
- ClassE .

190,633,540 (31 Mareh 2017: 190,653,340) 0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Preferenee Shares of ¥ 2 each - 38131 381.31
Class F

10,885 (31 Mareh 2017: N1L) 0.00000015% Compulsorily Converiible Cumulative Preferenee Shares of 7293 -
% 6700 each - Class G **

83,425 (31 March 2017: NIL) 0.00000015% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulalive Preferenee Shares of 358.95 -

% 6700 each - Class H —_———
R T

* Ineludes 27,089 shares transferred by Deepinder Goyal to the trust on Oetober 25, 2014 without cash eonsideration and 14,677 shares purchased @ Rs. 1 from Zomato Media Private Limited on differcnt date. The sharcs
are lying in the enstody of the trustee.

** In current year Zomato Media Private Limited (ZMPL} has aequired Carthero Technologies Private limited (CTPL) by way of swap share i.e. 10,885 CCCPS of ZMPL issued in licu of 36,808 CCPS and 2,798 equity share of CTPL for non-eash.
consideration,

a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the cnd of the reporting year

Equity shares

31 Muarch 2018 31 March 2017
No. X Mn.) No.  Mn.)
At the beginning of the year 307,616 031 307,616 031
Issued during the ycar /CCCPS/CCPS converted to Equity Shares 30,078 0.03 - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 337,694 0.34 307,616 0.31
Less: Shares held by ESOP Trust as at the year end 41,766 0.04 41,766 0.04
Ontstanding at the end of the year 295,928 0.30 265,850 0.27
lostruments entirely cquity in nature (CCCPS- Class A,B,C,D,G&H)
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
No. (X Mua.) No. X Mn.)
At the beginning of the year- Class A 78,791 0.79 78,791 0.79
At the beginning of the year- Class B 32,791 033 32,791 033
At the begnming of the year- Class C 27,327 0.27 27,327 0.27
Al the beginning of the year- Class D 28,460 0.28 28,460 0.28
1ssued during the year- Class G 10,885 72.93 - -
Issued during the year- Class H 83425 55895 - -
Converled to Equity during the year - Class B (16,395) (0.16) - -
Converted to Equity during the year - Class C {13,663) (0.14) - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 231,621 633.25 167,369 1.67
lnstruments entirely cquity in naturc (CCPS- Class E&F)
31 March 2018 31 Mareh 2017
No. (X Mua.) No. (¥ Mn,)
At the beginning of the year- Class E 930,551,391 930.55 - -
At the beginning of the year- Class F 190,633,340 38131 - -
1ssucd during the year- Class E - - 930,551,391 930.55
Issued during the year- Class F - - 190,653,540 381.31
Converted (o Equity during the year - Class E (201,358,542) (201.36) - -
Ontstanding at the cad of the year . 919,846,389 1,110.50 1,121,204,931 1,311.86

b) Terms/rights attacbed to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par valuc of Z | per sharc Each holder of equity is entitled to one vote per share
In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the eompany, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held

by the shareholders.

¢) Terms of conversion/redemption of CCCPS- Class A

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Company issued 78,791 CCCPS-Class A, of ¥10 eaeh fully paid-up at a premium of T 26,970 per share CCCPS carry eumulative dividend @ 0.0001% p.a. The company deelares and pays dividends in
Indian rupees. The prefereutial dividend is cumulative and shall aecrue from year to year wlhether paid or not paid. All acerued dividends shall be paid in full {together with dividends aeerued from prior years) prior to and in preference to any dividend
or distribution payable upon shares of any other class or series in the same financial year. In addition to and after payment of the preferenee dividend, each CCCPS would be entitled to partieipate pari-passu i any cash or non-cash dividend paid to
the holders of share of any other class (including ordinary share) or series on a pro-rata as if converied basis. Subject to the applicable laws, the CCCPS holder shall be entitled to receive notiee of and vote on all maliers that arc submiited 1o the vote
of the shareholders of the company (including the ordiuary shares). Each CCCPS shall catitle the holder to the number of votes equal to the number of whole or fractional ordinary shares into which such CCCPS could then be converted.

(ii) Each holder of CCCPS are entitled to convert the CCCPS into ordinary sharcs at any time at the option of the holder of the CCCPS or subjeet to the compliance of applieable laws each CCCPS automatically be converted into ordinary share, at the
conversion price then in effeet, upon the carlier of (i) onc day prior to the expiry of 20 years from the allotment or (3i) in connection with a listiag (or auy listing of shares), prior to the filing of prosp {or cquivalent d by whatever name
called) by the Company to the eompetent authority or such later date as may be applicable under applicable lasws.

(iit) In the cvent of the liquidation of the company, tolal procecds from the such liquidation, shall be distributed first to the holders of CCCPS, until the holders have received the minimum return.

(iv) The cowpany will issue ordinary share pursuant to the conversion of any CCCPS shall be that number obtained by dividing the total amount actually paid by the holder of CCCPS by the applicable conversiou price at the time i effect for sueh
CCCPS which will be as per provision of clause 76 of Article of Association. No fractional share shall be issucd upon conversiou of CCCPS and number of ordinary sharc to be issned shall be rounded lo the nearest whole share

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Zomato Media Private Limited
Notes lo consolidaled financial statements for (he vear ended 31 March 2018
CIN : U53030D1.2010PTC198141

14 (a) Share eapital(contd.)
d) Terms of conversion/redemption of CCCPS- Class B
(1) During the year ended 31 Mareh 2013, the Company issued 32,791 CCCPS- Class B, of Z10 each fully paid-up at a premium of % 97,703 per share CCCPS earry ewnulative dividend (@ 0.0001% p.a. The eompany deelares and pays dividends in
Indian rupees. The preferential dividend is eumnlative and shall aecrue from year to year whether paid or not paid. All aeerued dividends shall be paid in full (logether with dividends aeerued from prior years) prior to and in preference to any dividend
or distribution payable upon shares of any other elass or series in (he same financial year. In addition to and after payment of the preferenee dividend, each CCCPS would be eutitled lo partieipale pari-passu in any eash or non-cash divideud paid (o
the holders of share of any other class (ineluding ordinary share) or serics on a pro-rata as if eonverted basis. Subjeet to the applicable laws, the CCCPS holder shall be entitled to reeeive notiee of and vote on all matiers thal are submitted to the vote
of the sharcholders of the pany (ineluding the ordinary shares). Each CCCPS shall entitle the liolder to the number of votes equal to the number of wlole or fraetioual ordinary shares into whieh sueh CCCPS eould then be converted.
(i) Each holder of CCCPS are entitled to convert the CCCPS into ordinary shares at any time at the option of the liolder of the CCCPS or subject to the eomplianee of applieable laws eaeh CCCPS automatieally be converied into ordinary share, at the
conversion price then in effeet, npon the carlier of (i) onc day prior to the expiry of 20 years from the allotment or (i} in eonneetion with a listing (or any listing of shares), prior to the filing of prospestus (or equivalent document by whatever name
called) by the Company to the competent authority or snch later date as may be applieable under applieable laws.
(iii) In the event of the liquidation of the company, tolal proceeds from the sueh liquidation, shall be distribnted first lo the holders of CCCPS, until the holders have received the minimum return,
(iv) The eompany will issne ordinary share pursuant to the conversion of auy CCCPS shall be that number obtained by dividing the tola) amount aetually paid by the holder of CCCPS by the applicable conversion price at the tine in effeet for sueh
CCCPS whieh will be as per provision of elause 77 of Article of Asscciation. No fraetional share shall be issned npon eonversiou of CCCPS and number of ordinary share lo be issued shall be rounded to the nearest wlhole share

e) Terins of conversion/redemption of CCCPS- Class C

(i) During the year ended 31 Mareh 2016, the Company issued 27,327 CCCPS- Class C, of 10 cach fully paid-np at a premium of ¥ 113,729 per share CCCPS earry eumulalive dividend (@ 0.0001% p.a. The eompany deelares and pays dividends in
Indian rupees. The preferential dividend is eumulative and shall aeerue from year to year whether paid or not paid. All aeerued dividends shall be paid in full {fogether with dividends aeerued fromn prior years) prior to and in preferenee lo any dividend
or distribntion payable upon shares of any other €lass or series in the same fmaneial year.

{ii) Eaeh holder of CCCPS are entitled (o eonvert the CCCPS mto equity shares at any time at the option of the holder of the CCCPS snbjeet lo the eomplianee of applieable laws eaeh CCCPS automatieally be eonverted into equity share, at the
eonversion priee then in effeet, upon the earhier of (i} one day prior to the expiry of 20 years from the allotment or (ii} in eonnection with a listing {or any listing of shares), prior to the filing of prospeetus (or equivalent doeament by whatever name
ealled) by the Company to the eompetent anthority or sueh later date as may be applieable nnder applicable [aws. Each CCCPS shall be converted into Ordinary Shares af the eonversion priee determined as per delailed terms and conditions of
CCCPs.

(iii) The conversion priee of eaeh CCCPS to be npdated at the time of elosing and shall be subject to adjustments from time to time as provided herein, ineluding as provided for furtheranee of the Artieles. Any adjustments of (he conversion prices
applieable form time to time; shall be doeumented by the Board and notify o the holders of CCCPS.

1) Terms of conversion/redemption of CCCPS- Class D

(i) During the ycar coded 31 March 2016, the Company issucd 28,460 CCCPS- Class D, of Z10 eaeh fully paid-up at a premium of ¥ 1,36,386 per share CCCPS earry cumulative dividend (@; 0.0001% p.a. The company declares and pays dividends in
Indian rupees. The Prefcrential Dividend is cumnlative and shall acerue from year to year whether or not paid, and aeerned dividends shall be paid in full (logether with dividends acerued from prior years) pan passu with the preferential dividend on
the CCCPS but prior and in prefcrenee to any dividend or distribntion payable upon Shares of any other elass or series in the same fiseal year.

(i1) In addition to and after payment of the Prefercntial Dividend, eaeh CCCPS would be entitled to partieipate pari passu m any eash or non-eash dividends paid 1o the holders of shares of any other class (including Ordinary Shares) or series on a pro
rata, on a Fully Diluted Basis.

(iii) No dividend or distribution shall be paid on any Share of any elass or series of the Company if and o the extent that as a eonsequenee of sueh dividend or distribntion any CCCPS would be entitled to a dividend hereunder greater than the
maximum amount permitied to be paid in respeet of CCCPS of an Indian company held by a ident under applicable Laws (ineluding withoul limiiation, the Foreign Exehange Management (Trausfer or Issue of Security by a Person Resident
Outside India), Regulations, 2000).

(iv) The holders of the CCCPS shall be entitled to vote on all matiers that are subinitied o the vote of the Sharchelders of the Company (inclnding the holders of Ordinary Shares). Subscribers of the CCCPS will be able to exercise voting rights on the
Class D CCCPS as if the sume were converied into Ordinary Shares, Each CCCPS shall entitle the halder to the number of votes eqnal to the number of whole or fractional Ordinary Shares into whieh such CCCPS eould then be converted.

) Tenns of conversion/redemption of CCPS- Class E

(1) During the year ended 31 Mareh 2017, the Company issued 930,551,391 Class E CCPS of 1 eaeh as bonus shares eredited as fully paid-up to the ehigible preferenee shareholders whose name appear in the Register of Members/Beneficial Owners
position of the Company on 31 Mareh 2017 in the proportion of I : 6699 i.e. 6699 new shares have becn issued for every 1 share of the Company held as on 30 March 2017,

(ii) Class E CCPS earry preferential dividend (@ 0.0001% p.a. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupces. The P ial Dividend is lative and dividends shall be paid pari passn with the prefereutial dividend on the other
existing preferenee shares of all elasses, but prior and in preferenee to any dividend or distribntion payable upon the Ordinary Sharcs in the same fiscal year.

(iii) Class E CCPS wonld not be entitled to participate in any cash or non-eash dividends paid to the holders of shares of any other class (ineluding Ordinary Shares) or series.

(iv) No dividend or distribution shall be paid on any Share of any class or series of the Cownpany if and to the cxtent that as a consequence of sneh dividend or distribntion any Class E CCPS would be eutitled to a dividend hereunder greater than the
maximum amounl permitied to be paid in respect of CCPS of un Indian eompany held by a sident under applieable Laws (ineluding withont limitation, the Foreign Exchange Management (Trausfer or [ssue of Seeurity by a Person Resident
Ontside India), Regulations, 2000).

(v) The holders of the Class E CCPS shall not be entitled to uny voting rights.

(vi} Class E CCPS shall only be transferable along with the existing Class A CCCPS, Class B CCCPS and Class C CCCPS in proportion of bonus issuance of CCPS Class E.

(vii) Class E CCPS will not be transferable on standalone basis.

{viii) Class E-CCPS shall not be enlitled to any liquidation preferenec,

(ix) Class E-CCPS shall be converled 1o Ordinary Shares in the ratio of 1:0.0000001 (10,000,000 Class E CCPS lo convert into 1 Ordinary Share) in the following events; 1) upon the earlier of conversion of 0.0001% CCCPS, Class B-CCCPS, or
Class C- CCCPS in proportion of snch conversion; or 2) I day prior to expiry of 20 years from the date of all or3) of liquidation pr dings of the Company; or 4) Dissolntion or winding up of the affairs, business or asset of
the Company.

h) Terms of conversion/redemption of CCPS- Class F

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company issued 190,653,540 Class F CCPS, of 32 each as bouns sharcs eredited as fully paid-up to the eligible preference shareliolders whose name appear in the Register of Members/Beneficial
Ovwners position of the Comnpany on 31 March 2017 in the proportion of | : 6699 1.e. 6699 new shares have beeu issued for every 1 share of the Company held as on 30 Mareh 2017,

(ii) Class F - CCPS carry preferential dividend (@ 0.0001% p.a. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The Preferential Divideud is non-cumulative and divideuds shall be paid pari passu with the preferential dividend on the
Class D - CCCPS, bul prior and in preference 1o any dividend or distribntion payable upon Ordinary Shares in the same fiscal year.

(iti} Class F CCPS shall not be cntitled lo participale in any cash or non-cash dividends paid to the holders of shares of any other class (including Ordinary Shares) or series.

(iv) No dividend or distribution shall be paid on any Share of any class or seres of the Company if and to the cxtent that as a eonsequenee of such dividend or distribution any Class F CCPS would be cntitled to a dividend hereunder greater than the
maximum amount permilied to be paid in respeet of CCPS of an Indmn comnpany held by a ident under applicable Laws (meluding without limitation, the Foreign Exehange Management (Transfer or Issuc of Secnrity by a Person Resident
Ontside India), Regulalions, 2000).

(v) The holders of the Class F - CCPS shall not be enfitled Lo any voting righis.

{vi) Class F - CCPS shall only be transferable along with the existing Class D CCCPS in proportion of bonus issuance of Class F CCPS,

(vii) These shares will nol be transferable on standalone basis.

(viii) Class F-CCPS shall not be entitled lo any lignidation preference.

(ix) Class F-CCPS shall be converted to Ordinary Shares in the ratio of 1:0.0000001 (10,000,000 Class F CCPS 1o convert ilo 1 Ordinary Shnre) in the following events; 1) upon the carlier of conversion of 0.0001% CCCPS, Class B-CCCPS, or
Class C- CCCPS in proportion of sueh conversion; or 2) 1 day prior 1o expiry of 20 years from the date of all or3) ¢ of liquid pr dings of the Company; or 4) Dissolution or winding up of the affairs, business or asset of
the Company.

i) Terms of eonversion/redempiion of CCCPS- Class G

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company issued 10,885 CCCPS- Class G, of 36700 cach lly paid-np at a premium of T 112,181 per share CCCPS carry cumnlative dividend @ 0.00000015% p.a. The company declares and pays
dividends in Indian rupees. The preferentinl dividend is enmulative and shall acerue from year {o year whether paid or not paid. All acerued dividends shall be paid in full (together with dividends acerued from prior years) pari passu with the
preferential dividend on CCCPS and CCCPS but prior and in preference to any dividend or distribution payable npon shares of any other class or series in the same fiscal year. In addition to and after payment of the preference dividend, each CCCPS
would be entitled to participate pari-passu in any cash or non-cash dividend paid to the holders of share of any other class (inelnding ordinary share} or series on a pro-rata as if fully diluted basis. Subject lo the applicable laws, die CCCPS holder
shall be entitled to reccive natice of and vote on all matters that arc snbmitied to the vote of the shareholders of the eompany (ineluding the ordinary shares). Each CCCPS shall entitle the holder to the number of votes cqual to the number of whole or
fraetional ordinary shares into which snch CCCPS could then be converted.

(ii) Each holder of CCCPS are cntitled to convert the CCCPS into ordinary shares at any time at the option of the holder of the CCCPS or subjeet to the eompliunce of applicable laws each CCCPS automatically be converted into ordinary share, at the
couversion ratio then in effect, npon the earlier of (i} one day prier to the expiry of 20 years from the allotment or (ii) in conneetion with a listing (or uny listing of sharcs), prior to the filing of prospeclus (or equivalent document by whatever name
called) by the Company with the competent authority or such laler date as may be permitied under applieable laws.

(iif) In the event of the liquidation of the company, total proceeds from the sueh liquidation, shall be distributed to the holders in the manner provided in Artieles of Assoeialion of the Company and Shareholders Agreement.

(iv) The company will issue ordinary share pursnant 1o the conversion of any CCCPS shall be that number obtamed by mnltiplying the total number of CCCPS held by the holder of CCCPS with the applicable conversion ratio at the time in effcet for
such CCCPS which will be as per provision of elause 82 of Artiele of Association, No fractional share shall be issued upon eonversion of CCCPS and number of ordinary share to be issucd shali be ronnded to the nearest whole share

i) Terms of conversion/redemption of CCCPS- Class H

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company issued 83,425 CCCPS- Class G, of T6700 each fully paid-up at a premium of ¥ 109,567.19 (rounded off) per share CCCPS carry cunmlative dividend {@ 0.00000013% p.a. The company
declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The preferential dividend is cumnlative and shall accrue from year to ycar whether paid or not paid. All aecrued dividends shall be paid in full (togelher with dividends aecrued from prior years) par passu
with the preferential dividend on CCCPS and CCCPS but prior and in preference o any dividend or distribution payable upon shares of any other class or scries in the same fiscal year. In addition to and after payment of the preference dividend, cach
CCCPS would be entitled to participate pari-passn in any cash or non-cash dividend paid to the holders of share of any other class (including ordinary sharc) or serics on a pro-rata on a fully diluled basis. Snbjecl to the applicable laws, the CCCPS
holder shall be entitled to receive nolice of and vote on all matiers that are submitled ta the voie of the sharcholders of the company (including the ordinary shares). Each CCCPS shall entitle the holder to the number of votes equal to the number of
whole or fractional erdinary shares inlo whieh such CCCPS conld then be converted.

(i) Each holder of CCCPS are cntitled to converd the CCCPS into ordinary sharcs al any time at the option of the holder of the CCCPS or subject 10 the compliance of applicable laws eneh CCCPS antomatically be converted into ordinary share, at the
conversion rafio then in effect, upon the earlier of (i) one day prior to the expiry of 20 years from the allotment or (ii) in connection with a listing (or any lisling of shares), prier to the fllmg of prospectus (or equivalent document by whalcver name
called) by the Company with the competent anthority or sueh later date as may be permitied under applicable laws.

(iii) In the event of the liquidation of the company, total proceeds from the such lignidation, shall be distribuled to the holders in the manner provided in Articles of Associalion of the Company and Sharcholders Agrecment dated February 01, 2018,
(iv) The company will issue ordinary share pursuant to the conversion of any CCCPS shall be iliat number obtained by mnltiplying the total number of CCCPS held by the holder of CCCPS with the applicable conversion ratio at the time in efTeel for
snch CCCPS which will be as per provision of clause 83 of Article of Association. No fractional share shall be issued upon eonversion of CCCPS and nnmber of ordinary share to be issued shall be rounded to the nearest whole share
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Notes to lidated financial st. for the vear ended 31 March 2018

CIN : U93030DL2010PTC198141

14 (a) Share capital(eontd.)

I) Details ol Shareholders holding more than 3% shares in the company

Equily shares of Z1 each fully paid up

Name of the shareholder

As at 31 March 2018

As at 31 March 2017

No. % holding No. % holding
Info Edge (India) Limited 164451 48.70% 164,451 53.46%
Mr. Deepinder Goyal, Direetor 61,245 18.14% 61,245 19.91%
Mr. Pankaj Chaddah, Direetor 20416 6.05% 20,416 6.64%
Foodiebay Employees ESOP Trust 41,766 12.37% 41,766 13.58%
Naukri Internet Serviees Limited 33357 9.88%
Instruments entirely equity in nature
CCCPS of ? 10 eaeh fully paid- Class A
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
N harch
ame of Sharcholder No. % of Holding No. % of Holding
Info Edge (India) Limited 21,225 26.94% 21,225 26.94%
SCT Growth Investment TT 57,566 73.06% 37,566 73.06%
CCCPS of Z 10 each fully paid- Class B
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Name of Shareholder No. % of Holding No. % of Holding
Naukri Internet Serviees Limited - - 16,395 50.00%
Sequoia Capital India Growth Investment Holding T 4,099 25.00% 4,099 12.50%
VY Investments Mauritius Limited 12,297 75.00% 12,297 37.50%
CCCPS of % 10 each fully paid- Class C
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Name of Shareholder No. % of Holding No. % of Holdiug
Naukri Internet Serviees Limited - - 13,663 50.00%
Sequoia Capital India Growth Investment Holding 1 9,291 68.00% 9,291 34.00%
VY Investmenis Maurilins Limited 3,826 28.00% 3,826 14.00%
CCCPS ol % 10 each fully paid- Class D
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
N h d
ame of Shareholder No. % ol Holding No. % ol Holding
VY Investments Mauritius Limited 5,732 20.14% 5,732 20.14%
Dunearn Investments {Mauritius) Pte Ltd. 22,728 79.86% 22,728 79.86%
CCPS of T 1 eaeh fully paid- Class E
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Name of Shareholder No. % of Holding No. % ol Holding
SCI Growth Investments 1T 385,634,634 52.89% 385,634,634 41.44%
Naukri Intemet Serviees Limited - - 201,358,542 21.64%
Info Edge (India) Limited 142,186,275 19.30% 142,186,275 15.28%
VY Investmenis Mauritius Limited 108,007,977 14.81% 108,007,977 11.61%
Sequoia Capital India Growth Investment Holdings T 89,699,610 1230% 89,699,610 ’ 9.64%
CCPS of 21 eaceh fully paid- Class F
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Name of Shareholder No. % of Holding No. % of Holding
Dunearn Investmeuts {Mauritius) Pte Ltd. 152,254,872 79.86% 152,254,872 79.86%
VY Investments Mouritins Limited 38,398,668 20.14% 38,398,668 20.14%
CCCPS of Z 6,700 each fully paid- Class G
31 March 2018 31 Muarch 2017
[ Sharehold
Name of Shareholder No. % of Holding No. % of Holding
Nexus Ventures 11 Ltd. 6,347 58.31% - -
Sequoin Capital India Investments IV 2,154 19.79% - -
Blume Ventures Fund IT (Mauritius) 1,160 10.66% - -
CCCPS of 26,700 each fully paid- Class H
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
N [ Sharehold
e o ShareoTder No. % of Holding No. % of Holding
Alipay Singapore Holding Pte, Ltd. 83,425 100.00% - -

As per records of the eompuny, ineluding its register of shareholders/members und other deelarations reeeived from shareliolders regarding benefieial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

1} Inthe period of five years immediately preceding March 31, 2018:

The Company had allotied 93,05,51,391 fully paid-up shares of face value Z 1/- each and 19,06,33,540 fully paid shares of faee value ¥ 2/- each during the year ended Mareh 31, 2017, parsuant to bonus issue, allotted to cxisting CCCPS holders,
approved by the board of direetors.

m) Shares reserved for issue nnder oplions
For details of shares reserved for issue under the employee stoek option (ESOP) plan of the company, please refer note 34,
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14 (1} Other equity

* The acquisilion of an additioual ownership interest in a subsidiary without a chauge of cenlrol is accounted for as an equity (ransaclion in accordance with Ind AS 110. Any excess or deficit of fair value of cousideration paid over (he carrying amowal of

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

X Mn.) (X Mn.
Canital reserve
Balance as per the last financial statements 26.1u 26.10

26.10 26.10

Securities Premiom Reserve
Balance as per the Jasl financial slalcwents 11,869.27 9,271.61
Add: premiuim on issue of cquify shaics - 2928
Add: premivim on issue of Class G CCCPS 1,221.09 -
Add: premium on issne of Class H CCCPS 9,140,64 -
Add: preminm on conversion ol Class E bonus shares into cquily sharcs 20136 -
Add: preminm on comvcrsion of Class B & C CCCPS inlo eqnity sharcs 0.27 -
Add: Transferred from derivative Instrument - 861.96
Add: Transferred from Financial liabiluy - 3,019.59
Lese: Bonus issue of Compulsorily Convertible Preference Sharcs “ (1,311.86)
Less: Transaciion cosi on issuc of sharcs . (9.70 (131

Stiawre-hased Pavinent Reserve
Balanec as per tic last financial stalements
Add: Sharc Based Paytuent Expensc (Refer Nole 34)

Retained carnings

Balancc as per last financial stalcmenls

Add: Loss for the vear

Add: Re-ineasurenient gains/Alosscs} on defined benefit plans
Add: Aeguisition of non-controlling inlercsis*

Nel deficit in the statement of profit and loss

Items of Other Commrchensive lucame
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations

Total reserves and surplus

22,2293

586.12
140126
726,38

(11.831.81)

(1.030.73)

(0.02)
5344
{12,916.00

106.69
106,69

10.366,10

11.869.27

364.39
221.73
586.12

(7.942.80)
(3890.91)
190

(he non-controfling interests is recognised in cquily of the parenl in transactions wherc (he non-controlling interests are acquired or sold without loss of control The Group has cleeted to recopnise this cffect in (he relained camings.

31 Murch 2018

31 March 2017

15 Borrowings (T Mn) (€ Mn,)
Non-current Borrowings
Term Loan
Firgm other parties
Loan [rom corporalc (unsccured)} 13.25
Totul non-current Borrowings
Aggregate Sceored loans - -
Agpregate Unscenred loans 1325 13.25
* This loan is uasecured and is repayable in 12 - 24 months (roru the reporting dale
31 March 2018 31 Mnreh 2017
16 ‘T'rade paynble (X Mn.) (T Mn.)
Trade pavables (refer note 40 for details of ducs lo micro and small coicrprises) - 707.13 439.10
707.13 439.10
Brealwp of above-
Non-current 2532
Current 681.31
Totnl 707.13

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally seitled on 0-61) day s ferms,

For explanations on the Company’s credil risk management processes, refer (o nolc 36.
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31 Marceh 2018

31 March 2017

17_ Provision for emplovee benefits (X Mn.) [X Mn.}
Provistons for grataity (refer note 33) 80.04 71.64
Provisions lor leave benefits 16.97 16.01
Total 97.01 87.65
Breakup of above-

Non-enrrent

Provisions for gratuity (refer note 33) 67.76 3937
Provisious for compensaled absences 396

Total 71.72

Current

Provisions for gratuity {refer note 33)
Provisicns for compensaled absences
Total

As at 31 March 2016

Arising during 1hc ycar

Utilised

Remeasurement gains/(losses) on liability
As at 31 March 2017

Arising during tlic year

Utilised

Remeasurement gains/(losses) on liability
As at 31 March 2018

12.07
1601

Gratoity (refer note 33 Coumensaled Absences Todal
21.83 169 23.54

5697 14.62 71.58

(5.29) (0.29) (5.58)

(190 - (1.90)

7164 16.01 87.65

3371 3941 75.12

(27.32) (38.45) 63.77)

0.02 - 0.02

80.04 16.97 97.01

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

18 Other provisions (X Mn,) (X Mn)
Provisions [or Olliers .36 L.96
1.96
Breala of abnve-
Non-current
Provisions for Others 0.36 1.96
Total 0.36 1.96
Provisions for Olhers - -
Totd _ ~
Nou-Current Current Tatal
As at 31 March 2016 3 - an
Arising during the vear - - -
Ulitised 1.75 - 1.75
As at 31 March 2017 1.96 - 196
Arising during {he vear - - .
Utilised 1.60 - Loy
As at 31 March 2018 0.36 - 0.36
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
19 __Other financial linbilities (X Mn.) R Mn.)
Capital Credilors 0.8Y 0.53
0.89 0.55
Brealup of above-
Current
Capilal eredilors 0.89
Total 0.89
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
20 Other linbilities (X D) (X Mn)
Unearned revenue 308.25 201.82
Advances [rom Cuslomers 91.75 43.09
Moncy hield in trust (payable (o merchant) 86.72 2377
Less: Assct against money held n trust (85.37) 135 {23.77) -
Statutory dnes
Providenl fund payable 17.04 12.59
Emiployee stale insurance payable 0.0Y 0.64
Professional tax payable 1.09 0.72
TDS Payable 3184 24.59
GST/VAT payable - 2047
Other statutory dues payable 1030 2.71
Others 2233 4.14
484,03 310.78
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21. Revenne from operations

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

(X Mn.) X Mn.)

Sale of services
Revenue from Services 4,652.98 3.322.07
Royalty income 10.65 0.65
4,663.63 3,322.72

22. Qther income

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

X Mn,) (X Mn.)
[nterest income on
-Bank deposits 56.01 110.57
-Income tax refund 0.01 1.59
-Others 9.01 10.88
Net gain on sale of current investments 28.10 24.65
Fair value gain on Investment at fair value through profit and loss 67.27 4.51
Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss - 42377
Liabilities written back 4.52 -17.79
Excess provision written back 13.89 15.56
Other financial liability written back - 57.77
Miscellaneous income 5.54 3.69
Profit on sale of PPE (net) 2.96 -
187.31 670.78

23. Employec benefits expeuse

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

(% Mn.) (X Mn.)
Salaries, wages and bonus 2.515.57 2,348.16
Contribution to provident fund and other funds * 116.03 12473
Share Based Payment Expense (Refer Note 34) 140.26 226.71
Gratuity expenses (Refer Note 33) 27.80 61.27
Staff welfare expenses 105.27 108.29

2,904.93 2,8609.16

* Defined contribution plan

24, Finance costs

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

R Mn.) (X Mn.)
Interest

- to banks 10.06 12,70

- to others 5.71 43.83

Others

-Payment Gateway Charges 235.61 103.40
-Other Charges 0.64 0.22
252.02 160.15

25. Depreciation and ameortization expense

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

(X Mn.) (X Mn.)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 128.33 204.22
Amortization ot intangible assets 3191 904.84
160.24 1,109.06
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26. Other Expenses 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
(X Mn.) (X Mn.)

Power & fuel 24.11 21.88
Rent 282.09 350.03
Rates and taxes 36.86 3651
Repairs and maintenance 58.60 69.02
Advertisement and sales promotion 814.71 233.66
Travelling and conveyance 152.62 135.66
Server and communication cost ‘ 21951 253.17
IT Support Services 152.78 94.66
Recruitment cost 14.93 8.04
Insurance 735 3.87
Commission and brokerage 1.59 9.54
Postage & Courier Cost 11.30 -
Printing and stationary ) 9.72 533
Secnrity expense 891 9.00
Legal and professional fee 24835 172.25
Fees and subscriptions 8.79 3.79

Bad debts written off 1831 41.12

Less: bad debt against opening provision (9.82) 8.49 (26.69) 14.43
Advances written off ' 6.25 448
Loss on sale of fixed assets 0.00 0.73
Fixed Assets written-off 0.11 6.13
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 50.80 42.49
Delivery Charges 439.53 62.16
Foreign exchange loss (net) 16.94 26.53
Fair value loss on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 0.15 279.70
Miscellaneous expenses 16.95 26.32
Investinent Written Off 0.52 -
Customer Support 4.92 -
2,596.87 1,869.38

27. Exceptional items 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
(X Mn.) (X Mb.)

Impairment of intangible assets - goodwill - 1,884.82
- 1,884.82

28. Earning per Equity Share

Basic EPS amounts are calcnlated by dividing the loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of Equity shares
outstanding dnring the year.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations.

31 March 2018 31 March 2017

(in X Mn) (in X Mn)

Loss attributable to equity holders of the company (1,030.73) (3,890.91)
Weighted average nuinber of equity shares in calculating basic and diluted EPS 312,066 307,616
Basic and diluted loss per share* (0.00) (0.01)

There are potential eqnity shiares as on 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017 in the form of CCCPS and stock options issued. As these are antidilutive, they are
ignored in the calculation of diluted earning per share and accordingly the diluted earning per share is the same as basic earning per share.

* loss per share having value less than ¥ 10,000
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29 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosurc of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in
future periods.
Judgements

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company
based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions
about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Share-based payments

Employees of the company receive remuneration in the form of share based payment transactions, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions). In accordance with the ind AS 102 Sharc Based Payments, the cost of equity-
settled transactions is measured using the fair value method. The cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at each reporting
date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the company’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The expense or credit recognized in the statement of profit and loss for a period represents the movement in
cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognized in employee benefits expense.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

- The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined
benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated, the management
considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality table . The mortality table tend to change only at interval in response to demographic
changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in note 33,

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active
markets, their fair value is measured using valuation. techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair
value of financial instruments,
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30. Business combinations
Acquisition during the year ended 31 March 2018

Acquisition of Carthero Technologies Private Limited

On Ist February 2018, the Group acquired 80.20% of the voting shares ol Carthero Technologies Private Limited., a non-listed company based in India and engaged in business of providing
the technology platform in order to provide a quick delivery service that would enable the local retailers to ship their products to customer directly with the help of mobile applications .

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Carthero Teclmologies Private Limited as at the date of acquisition were:

Balances
recognised on
acquisition
31 January 2018
Assets (T M)
Property, plant and equipment 6.79
Other Intangible Assets 1.53
Prepayments and other assets 40.72
Investments 3829
Trade receivables 337
Cash and cash equivalents 6.10
Other bank batances 1.70
Olher financial assets 3.04
Total Assets . 102.14
Liabilities
Borrowings 75.00
Trade payables 7.31
Other financial liabilities 12.97
Provisions 5.97
Other current liabilities ’ 116.73
Total Liabilities 217.97
Identifiable net assets at fair valuc - (115.83)
Fair Value of Intangible Assels
- Brand/Trade Mark 13.47
- Teehnology Platform . - 602.73
Total 500.37
Sharc in opening loss of the subsidiary 401.20
Share in equity share capital 0.12
Goodwill arising on acquisition 922.14
Purchase consideration transferred 1,323.46

The goodwil) of T 922.14 Mn comprises the value of expected synergies arising from the acquisition. None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

From the date of acquisition, Carthero Technologies Private Limited has contributed Z 227.84 Mn of revenue* and ¥ 124.87 Mn of loss* to the loss before tax from operations of the Group.
* Before inter-company eliminations

Purchase consideration (X Nn)
Shares issued, al fair value 0.41
Share premivm 1,293.62
Cash Consideration paid 29.43
Total consideration 1,323.46

Analysis of cash flows on acquisition:

Transaction costs of the acquisition (included in cash flows from operating activities) 1.29
Net cash acquired with the subsidiary (included in cash flows from investing activitics) 7.80
Net cash flow on acquisition

The Group issued 10,885 CCCPS and paid cash of ¥ 29.43 Mn as consideration for the 80.20% interest in Carthero Technologies Private Limited. The fair value of the shares is calculated
wilh reference to the valuation of the shares of the Company at the date of acquisition, which was INR 118,881 each. The fair value of the consideration piven is therefore INR 1,323.46.
Transaction costs of T Mn 1.29 lacs have been expensed and are included in other expenses.

All other disclosures as required under IND AS 103 are impracticable as:
i) fair valuation was not done of the total consideration transferred or each major class of consideration al the date of acquisition or thereafter,

ii) there were no contingent consideration arrangements entered into with the acquiree,
iii) no contingent liabilities have been recognised,

(iv).there are no such transactions that are recognized separately from the acquisition of assets and assumption of liabilities in (he business combination,
(v) the above business combination is not a bargain-purchase
(vi) the above business combination is not achieved in stages.

Acquisition of additional interest in Carthero Technologies Private Limited

On 26 March 2018, the Group acquired an additional 4.25% interest in the voting shares of Carthero Technologies Private Limited, increasing its ownership interest to 84.45
consideration of INR 479.43 Mun was paid to the non-controlling shareholders,
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30. Business combinations (contd.)
Acquisition during the year ended 31 March 2017
Acquisition of Delivery21 Inc., Philippines

On 30 June 2016, the Group acquired 52.2% of the voting shares of Delivery21, Inc., a non-listed company based in Philippines and engaged in online
ordering of food from select restaurants business, in exchange for acquisition of equity shares by Zomato Philippines, Inc. The Group acquired Delivery2 1
Inc. because it enlarges the range of products in the food ordering business that can be offered to its clients in Philippines.

Assets acquired and liabilitics assumed

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Delivery 21 Inc., Philippines as at the date of acquisition were:

Balances

recognised on

acquisition

31 March 2017

Assets (¥ Mn.)
Property, plant and equipment 3.28
Cash and cash cquivalents 11.66
Trade receivables 21.33
Prepayments and other assets 0.78
Total Assets 37.05

Liabilities

Trade payables 169.42
Total Liabilities 169.42
Identifiable net assets at fair value (132.36)
Equity share capital as at the date of acquisition (0.36)
Total (132.72)
Share in 6pelling loss of the subsidiary (69.28)
Share in equity share capital 0.37
Goodwill arising on acquisition 125.36
Purchase consideration transferred 56.45

The goodwill of T 125.36 Mn comprises the value of expected synergies arising from the acquisition. None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be

deductible for income tax purposes.

From the date of acquisition, Delivery 21, Inc has contributed ¥ 30.77 Mn of revenue and ¥ 17.08 Mn of loss to the loss before tax from operations of the

Group.

Purchase consideration Rs.
Shares issued, at fair value 0.37
Share premium 56.08
Total consideration 56.45

All other disclosures as required under IND AS 103 are impracticable as:

i) fair valuation was not done of the total consideration transferred or each major class of consideration at the date of acquisition or thereafter,
ii) there were no contingent consideration arrangements entered into with the acquiree,
iii) no contingent liabilities have been recognised,

(iv) there are no such transactions that are recognized separately from the acquisition of assets and assumption of liabilities in the business combination,
(v) the above business combination is not a bargain-purchase
(vi) the above business combination is not achieved in stages.
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31. Material partly-owned subsidiaries
Financial information of subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests is provided below:

Proportion of equity interest held by non-controlling interests;

Country of Ineorporation and

Name operation 31 March 2018 31 Mareh 2017
Delivery2 [ Inc. Philippines 47.80% 47.80%
Carthero Technologies Private Limited India 15.55% -
Information regarding non-controlling iuterest
& Mn)

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Accumulated balances of material non-controlling interest:
Delivery21 Inc. (48.73) (37.33)
Carthero Technologies Private Limited* 133.06 -
Profit/(Joss) allocated to material non-controlling interest:
Delivery21 Inc. (12.97) (8.16)
Carthero Technologies Private Limited (19.42) -

The summarised financial information of these subsidiaries are provided below. This information is based on amounts before inter-company climinations.

Summarised statement of profit and loss Carthero Technologies Private Limited (CTPL) Delivery 21 Ine
(X Mn.) (X Mn.)

Summarised statement of profit and loss for the year (In case of CTPL: Period is
Teb 01, 2018 to Mareh 31, 2018) ended: 31 Mareh 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Revenue from operations 230.48 - 28.54 30.77
Employee benefit expenses . 74.04 - 25.58 20.65
Depreciation and amortisation 1.04 - 1.38 1.51
Finance cosls 0.78 - 5.80 4.67
Other expenses 279.38 - 22.92 21.02
Total expenses 355.24 - 55.67 47.85
Profit before tax (124.76) - (27.14) (17.08)
Other Comprehensive Income (0.12) - 3.27 -
Total comprehensive ineome ) (124.87) - (23.87) (17.08)
Attributable to non-controlling interest (19.42) - (12.97) (8.16)

(X Mn.)
Summarized Balance Sheet as at: 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2018 31 Mareh 2017
Cash and cash equivalents (current) 32875 - 1.90 6.95
Other Bank Balances (current) 0.50 - - -
Property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets 740 - 1.21 2.65
Other Assets (current and non-current) 8.64 - 4,65 -
Trade and other receivables (current) 10.84 - 10.48 2657
Financial assets (current) 346 - - -
Current Tax Assets 10.43 - - -
Trade and other payable (current and non-current) (104.81) - (120.19) (114.26)
Provision ) (4.40) - - -
Total Equity 260.81 - {101.96) (78.09)
Attributable to:
Equity holders of parent 22025 - (53.22) (40.76)
Non-controlling interest 40.56 - (48.73) (37.33)

 Mn.)
Summarised cash flow information as at: 31 Mareh 2018 3t March 2017 -31 Mareh 2018 31 March 2017
Operating (219.07) - 0.68 (18.12)
Investing 8145 - 0.07 (0.86)
Financing 44781 - (5.80) 16.25
Net inerease/(decrease) in cash and eash equivalents 310.19 - (5.05) 2.73)

* The Accumulated balances of material non-controlling interest in case of Carthero Technologies Private Limited will not match with the above calculations because it does not

include the effect of Intangible Assets acquired at Fair Value at the time of acquisition i.e. Brand and Technology Platform.
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. 32 Intercst in Joint Venture Company (JVC)

The Group has a 49% interest in Zomato Media WLL, a joint venture involved in the General marketing services.
The Group’s interest in Zomato Media W1 is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements. Summarised financial information of the joint
venture, based on its Ind AS financial statements, and reconciliation with the carrying amount of the investment in consolidated financial statements are sel out helow:

Summarised balance sheel as at 31 March 2018:

(¥ Ma.)
Zomato Medin WLL Zomato Media WL
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Currenl assels, including cash and cash equivalents ¥ Mn. 11.80 (31 March
2017. ¥ Mn. 10.87) and prepayments ¥ Mn. 2.91 (31 March 2017: ¥ Mn. 2.03) 19.37 17.99
Non-current assets 1.06 1.98
Current liabilities (14.08) (7.32)
Non-current liabilities (42.44) (67.50)
Equity (36.09) (54.86)
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 49% 49%
Carrying amount of the investment (17.69) (26.88)
Summarised statement of profit and loss of Zomalo Media WLL:
(X Mn.)
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Revenue from operations 48.23 44.41
Other income 0.55 0.72
Employee benefits expense 4.72 37.38
Other expenses 24.80 14.39
Depreciation and amortization expense 0.85 1.24
Net (loss)/profit 18.42 (7.87)
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 49% 49%
Group’s share of profit for the year 9.02 (3.86)

The group had no conlingent liabilities or capital commitments relating to its interest in Zomato Media WLL as at 31 March 2018 and 2017.
The joint venture had no other contingent liabilities or capital commitments as at 31 March 2018, 31 March 2017.
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Zomato Media Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
CIN: U93030DL2010PTC198141

34 Share-based payments

General Employee Share-option Plan (GESP): Employee Stock Option Plan —-ESOP-2014

The Company instituted the Employee Stock Option Plan to grant equity based incentives to its eligible employees. The ESOP
scheme- FOODIEBAY Employee Stock Option Plan 2014 (“The Scheme™) has been approved by the Board of Directors of the
Company at their meeting held on 22 April 2014 (further amended at their board meeting held on 30 March 2017) and by the
shareholders of the Company by way of special resolution passed at their Annual General Meeting held on June 27, 2014 to grant
aggregating 27,089 options (not exceeding 2% of the issued, subscribed and paid up equity share capital of the Company as on March
31, 2014), representing one share for each option upon exercise by the employee of the Company at an exercise price determined by
the Board. The Scheme covers grant of options to the specified permanent employees of the Company and Directors of the Company.
The company further granted 14,677 options under the ESOP scheme at the extra ordinary general meeting held on September 07,
2015.

The options granted under the Scheme shall vest not less than one year and not more than four years from the date of grant of options.

Option can be exercised at the time of liquidity or upto 3 years from the date of ceasing of employment or upto 9 years from the date
of vesting, whichever is earlier. Once the options vest as per the Scheme, they would be exercisable by the Option Grantee at any
time and the equity shares arising on exercise ot such options shall not be subject to any lock-in period.

Movements during the year
The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and movements in, sharc options during

the year:
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-17
Number WAEP Number WAEP

Outstanding at 1 April 23,724 18?9% 23,334 INR 60,453
Granted during the year 8.901 INR 1 4,825 INR 4,161
Forfeited during the year - - - -
Exercised during the year - - - -
Expired during the year 5,759 INR 17,814 4,435 INR 53,501
Outstanding at 31 March 26,866 INR 13,217 23,724 INR 18,192
Exercisable at 31 March 13,847 INR 17,606 9,857 INR 21,352

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding as at 31 March 2018 was 5.27 years (31 March
2017: 5.16 years).

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was INR 80,598 (31 March 2017: INR 96,983).
The range of exercise prices for oplions outstanding at the end of the year was INR | (31 March 2017: INR 1 to INR 136,395).

The following tables list the inputs to the models used for the GESP plans for the years ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017,
respectively:

31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
GESP GESP

Dividend yield (%) 0.00% 0.00%
Expected volatility (%) 42.41% 44.69%
Risk—free interest rate (%) 7.50% 0.50%
Expected life of share options 5 to 6 years 5to 6 years
Weighted average share price (INR ) 80,598 96,983
Model used Black Scholes valuation model’

The expected life of the share options is based on historical data and current expectations and is not necessarily indicative of exercise
patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility over a period similar to the life of
the options is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Zomato Media Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for fhe vear ended 31 March 2018
CIN: U%3030DL.2010PTC198141

35, Commitments and Contingeucies
a. Leases

Operating lease commitments - Group as lessee

The Group has enlered into operating leases on certain premises, with lease term between one 1o nine years. There is escalation clause on the lease agreement, There are no restrictions
imposed by lease agreements. The tolal expense during the year is as follows:

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
& Mn.) (X Mn.)
Lease expense for the period
Lease payments for the year 277.12 316.23
27712 316.23
Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:
Not later than one year 17.11 148.77
Later than onc year but not later than five years 0.24 37.25
Later than five years - -
17.36 186.02

(This space has intentionally been left blank)




Zomao Media Irivate Linited
Nofes 1o consofidated financial stateents for (he vear ended 31 Murch 2018
CIN: L930J0DL2010PTC 98141

36.1 Fair vatues

Financhul instruments by entegory

The canying value and fair value of Tinancial instrumcnts by categorics as of March 31, 2018 were as follows:

R Mu)
Purtleulurs Amnartised cost Finnncinl assets/ linbilltfes al fair value Finam s at fnir vatue through © Total earrylng

through profit or loss value Tolul fair value

Equity instrninenty
Designnted upon designated upon initinl
Initlal recopnition Mandafory recognition Mayudatory
Assetss
Cash md cash equivalents {Refer Note ) 1,n03.95 - - - 1,003.93 1,003.95
Bank balance other (Relet Nole 93 1076.79 - - - - 107679 L076.79
Investments (cwrrent) (Refer Note 0) - - 8.196.63 - - B,106.63 8.196.63
Invcstments (uou-cuirent) (Reler Note 5) 95.66 - - - Y5.66 95.66
Thade eceivables {Reler Note 7) 26084 - - - - 260.84 260.84
1 vans (Refer note 10y 43.21 - - - 43.21 4321
Other fimancial wssets {Refer Note 113 58741 - - - 58741 387 41
Tatnl 3,067.86 - 8,196.63 - - 11,264.49 11,264.49
Liubilitfes:
“Trade pavables (Reler Note 17) 707.13 - - - 707.13 70713
Dormuwings (refer Note 13) 1325 - - - - 1225 13.25
Other finaueial linbililes (Reler Nolc 20) 0.89 - - - - 0.89 0.89
Totat ! 72127 - - - - 721,27 72127
The carrying value and fiir value of linaucial instrunents by calegaries as of Macel 31. 2017 were as follows:
(T Mn)

Financial nssets/ linbilities at fair valoe

Finnueinl assets/linbilities

at [air value through

Total carrying

Pardiculars Amoriised cnst through prolit or Inss ocr value Total fuir ynlue
Equity instruments
signated upon designated upon initial
recogniljon y recognilion Mandatory

Assets:

Cash and cash eauivalents (Refer Note 8) 477.63 - - - - 477.63 477.63
Bank balance other iRefer Nate ¢y 58695 - - - - 38695 586.95
fnvestments (eutrent) (Reler Note 63 B - 34193 - - 31,93 34193
Jevestmenls (nun-current) (Refer Note 53 Q66 - - - - .66 90.66
Trade receivables (Refer Note 7) 19107 - - - - 191.07 191.07
Louns (Refer note 107 62,30 - - - - 6230 63,30
Other finmeial assets (Reler Note 4 1) $85.61 - - - - 585.61 38561
Total 19494.23 - 341.93 -~ - 2336.15 2,336.J4
Liabilitics:

Trade payables (Refer Nute 17) 439.10 - - - - 439.10 43910
Borrwingzs (refer Note 15) 1325 - - - - 13.25 13.25
QOther financial iubilitics (Refer Nole 20) 0.55 - - - - 0.55 .55
Total 452,910 - - - - 452.90 45290

36.2 Fair value hiernrchy

The foliowing table provides the Mir value measurement hierarehy of the Group’s assets and liabilitics,

Level 1 - Quoled prices (voadiusted) in aclive markets for identical assets ur liabilities.

Level 2 — Inputs olher than quoted prices included witlin Level 1 that are ohservable Jor the asset or lability. either dircelly (r.c. as prices) or indirectly tix derived Jrom prices).

Level 3 - Inpnis for Uie assets or liabilities that are not based on obiservable market data (unobservable

The loMowng table prevents tair valne hierarchy ol assets and liabilities measnred af fai

:olue on a recuring hasis ds of March 31.2018:;

As of March 31,2018

Particulurs Fair value measurcment at end of the reporting period/year using
¥ M) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets .

Investments in liquid mutual fund units (Refer Noie 6) 8,196.63 8,196.63 - -

The following lable presents (i value liicrarchy of assels and labilities measuced at fair value on a recurting basis s of March 31, 2017:

As of March 31,2017

Particulars Fair value mensnrement at end of the repurtiug period/year using
@ Mny) Level | Level 2 Level 3

Assels

Investments in liyuid moteal fund wnits (Refer Note 6) 341.93 341.93 - -

(Thus space s mteatconally been lefi blank)




Zomnto Media Private Limited
Notey to consnlidated financink 1.
CIN: U9JIUDLOIOPTC198141

enr enled 30 March 2018

36.3 Finaneial risk ninnagement objectives and policies

‘The Company’

<enpose it 1o s vaniety ol linanctal ishs markel dsk, aedit sk ad ligwdi The Company’s [oeus is to foresee the unpredictability of linancial mackets

and seclk Lu winimize priential Company's exposare o credit sl is indlueuced muialy by the wdividual characteristi of cach customner

Murket rivk
Marletry
nisk, sneh a

k15 1he yisk that the faiv value of futnre eash tlows ol'a linancial instrument will Nuctuate because of changes in warke! prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk. loreign cnirency risk and viher price
cquity price nsk and conunoduy sk, Finanewl instruments alected by market visk inclnde loans and borrowings. deposits. Tle Compuny has in place appyopriate risk tnanagement policies 1o Tunil the impact of these

ot its financia) perfomnunce The Conpany ensores aptinuzation of casl throvgh fund planning and robust cash management practices.

8} Interest Rate Risle

Interest rate risk is the mish that the Guir vafue or ftue casly Hows of a Ginancwal instruwent will Ineluale because of changes in markel inlerest rates. As majorily of the fiancial assels and linhilities of the Company are citlier non-
interest hearing on Gyed infer cgligible

st bearing instuments, the Company s net expasure W interest i

ii) Fareiun currency rish
Foreign enrency risk is the risk thal the (sir value or furure cash dows ol an expasucs will (luclunte becanse ol changes in foreipn exchange rates. The proup's exposure to the risk of changes in fureign exchange rafes relates primarily
to the proup’s operating activities (when revenue or espensc is denomitited in a foreigu enrency). The Company operites infernationally and some portiou af the busines;
Conpany is exposed Lo forcipn exchange nsk through

s transacted in several correncics mid consequently the

imd serviees it the Middle East and elsewhere, and purchases [rem overseas supplicrs in various forcign cnrren

The following lable analyses oreign cutrency risk lrom Gnancial instruments as of March 31, 20(8: X Mu)
Particulars U.S. dollars Euro AED ZAR Other currencics Total
Investments 310.83 1.386.4) B - - 1,697.23
Cash and cash cynivalents 6d4.25 &2.26 269.14 7.15 106.47 §29.26
Trade reccivables 5133 %16 369 12 291 G649 499.20
Other finnnciats assets  inclnding loans) 2159 7533 14.98 1.25 30.64 163.80
Trade pavables 340 §74 14171 0.22 90.29 244.36
Other financiat liabilities 26.71 372 2809 0.75 21.69 80.96
Net assefs / (linbilities) 478.30 1,565.62 823.08 12,27 335.58 3,214.82
“The following Lable analyscs forcign currency risk from [inanciul insttuments us of Mavch 31, 2017: & Mu)
Purticulury U.S. dollars Eurv AED ZAR Other currenciey Total
Investmenls 260.51 LO91RI - . - 1,352.33
h and cash equivalents 1149 80.90 17944 4].24 1IR23 426.30
Trade receivables 30.57 476 11991 1.03 2025 176.52
Other financials assels ( inelnding loans) 2536 83.87 S44 4.06 14.90 133.62
“Trade payables 1.88 554 6332 1.53 3368 107.95
Other fmancial liabilities 055 - - - - 0.55
Net nssets / (Habilites) 3036 1,266.87 365,10 47.85 187.06 2,197.26

Creuit risk

Credit risk refers 1o the risk of default on its obligation by the counterparty resulting in a financial loss. The nnximim exposnre in the eredit risk al e weporting date is primarily [ror Wade receivables amaounting lo In T Mn.
1.861.028 and In T Mn. [76.52 as o March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017, respeetively. Trade receivables are typienlly onseenved and are derived frem tevenue camed (rom customers panaily located in ladia and Middle Fast.
Credit risk has nlways been managel by the group through credit approvals, cstablishing credit limits and enntinuonsly moniloring the erediworthiness o enstomers ta which the Comnpauy grants credit terms i the nonnal conrse of
husiness. On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the gmup uses expeeled credit lass modet ta assess the impairment loss or gain. The cumpany nscs a provisian malris to compute te espected credit loss allowance for trade

receivables. The provision matrix Lakes inlo account available esternal and intermal ercdil tisk [actors snch as the eompany’'s historical evperience tor customers

Credit risk exposure

The company has eslablished an allowance for impainuent that represents its expected eredit Insses i tespeel of rade and ather teecivables. The nses u simplified approach for (he purpose ol computalion of expected
credit loss or lrade receivables and 12 montls expeeted eredit Joss for other receivables. An impainnent analy: cls reporting dute on an judividoal basis for major parties. In additon. « lacge number of minor

s pet lormed at e

reccivables are eombined into categorics and asscssed for impaimuent colleetively. The ealuulation is based on historical dafa of actonl losses.
Liguidity risk
Ultimate ibifity For Viqnidity risk resls with the Board, which ias established an appropriate liquidity risk management [ramessnrk for the management of the Campany”s shiort. nedinm aud long-lerm linding andd

Tignidily management requirements. The company's principal souces ol lignidity ave cosh and cash cquivalents and the casl flow that is penerated [rom operations. The company hus uo outstanding bauk borrawings, The Compony
Tignidity risk by maintaining adeqnate cash reserves, by conlinnously monitoring foreeast amd actoal cash Nows, aud by matching the matwily profiles ol finaneial assets and labilities. Accordingly. no liquidity risk is
perecived.

As ol March 31, 201& and March 31, 2017, ihe outstonding compersated absences were In ¥ Mn. 16.97 and In TMn. 16.01 respectively

‘Ihe table below provides detls regarding the contracloal maturities of significant [aneial fiabilitics as of March 31, 2018:

& Mn)
feulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-d years 47 yeury Tutal
Trude puyables m7.A3 - - - 707.13
Other finaneial habilities .89 - - - 082
The lable below provides details rega 1 matnritics of significant linaneial fiabilitics as of March 31, 2017:
@ Mo
Particulars Lesy thun 1 year 1-2 years 2-d years 4-7 years Total

Trade payables . 38471 2859 12.2. 13.57 439.10
Other financial Liabilitics .55 - - - 05§




Zomato Mcdia Private Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2018

CIN: U93030D1L2010PTC198141

37 Related party transactions:
a) Names of related parties and related partv relationship:

R

ted parties under Ind AS 24:

Joint Venture

Associates

Joint Venture of

Subsidaries

Trust under control of the comoany

Step Down subsidiaries of Zomato Ireland Limited

Kev Management Personnel ("KMPY

Relative of KMP

Zomaro Media WLL

SCI Growth Investments 11

Sequoija Capital India Growth Investment Holdings |
es Lid.

Alipay Singapore Holding PTE. Lid

Info Edge (India) Limited ,

PT. Zomate Media Indonesia
Zomato Chile SoA

Zomato lnternet Pri
Zomato [reland Limited

Zomato Media (Private) Limited. Srilanka

Zomato Media Portugal. Unipessoal. Lda

Zomato Middle East FZ-LLC

Zomato Midia Brasil Lida

Zomato New Zeland Media Private Limited

Carthero Technologies Pi ted (w.e.f Feb 16.2018)

ited

Foodiebav ESOP Trust

Cibando UK Limited

Zomato Australia Pty Limited
Zomato Austria GmbH
Zomato Canada Inc.

Zomato Colombia SAS
Zomato Denmark ApS

Zomato Finland Ov

Zomato Gastronauci Sp Z.0.0
Zomato Hungary Korldtolt Feleldsséai Tarsasae
Zomato US Inc.

Zomato International RO SRL
Zomato Ireland Limited
Zomato Jordan

Zomato Malavsia SDN. BHD.
Zomato Media Private Limiited
Zomato Norwav AS

Zomaro Peru S.A.C.

Zomato Philiooines Inc.
Zomaro Slovakia S.R.O
Zomato South Africa (Ptv) Lid.
Zomalo UK Limiled

Zomato Vietnam Company Limited
Zomato Netherlands B.V.
Deliverv 21 INC

Zomato [nternet LLC

Nextable Jne.

Zomato USA LLC

Deepinder Goval (Director)

Pankaij Chaddah (Director)

Bhargava (Nominee Director) (resigned w.e.f. 14 June 2017)

Mohit Bhainazar { Direetor)

Ireena Vittal (Nominee Director) (resigned w.e.f. 23 Aoril 2018 )

Kaushik Durta (Norninee Director)

Chen Yan (Nominee Director) (aopointed from Feb 28. 2018)

Douclas Lehmanfearin (Nominee Director) (appointed from Feb 28.2018)

Zheng Liu (Alernate Direetor to Douglas Lehmanfeagin) (appointed from Mar 03. 2018)

Pooia Khanna (Wife of Director

Oet 13.2017)

(This space has intentionally been lef blank)




Zomato Media Private Limited
Notes to consolidated finaneial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
CIN: U93030DL2010PTC198141

37 Related Party Disclosures (conid,)

b)(i} Summary of balances with the above related parties is as follows:

(X Mn.)
Key Management Personnel Joint Venture of Associates Joint Venture Total
Nature of Transactions 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Remuneration to KMP *
Pankaj Chaddah
Short-Term Employee Benefils - Salary, bonus and contribution
to PF 6.39 3.50 - - - - - 6.39] 3.50
‘Termination Benelits - Graluity 1.92 - - - - - - 1.92 -
Deepinder Goyal - -
Short-Term Employee Benelils - Salary, bonus and
contribution to PF 5.83 - - - - . - 5.83 |
Pooja Khanna (Relative o KMP)
Shorl-Term Employee Benelits - Salary, bonus and contribution to
PF 2.95 0.50 - - - - - 2.95 0.50
LEquity share capital issued
Naukri Internet Services Limited - - - 0.03 - - 0.03 -
Sceuritics premium on eonversion of CCCPS into equity share
capital
Naukri Internet Ser - - -] 201.63 - - 201.63 -
Conversion of CCCPS into Equity share eapital issued
Naukri Internet Services Limited - - - 201.66 - - 201.66 -
CCCPS issued
Naukri Internet Services Limited - - - - 201.36 - - 201.36
Sequoia Capital India Growth [nvestment Holdings 1 - - B - 89.70 - - 89.70)
Alipay Singapore Holding PTE. Lid - - - 9.699.59 - - 9,699.59) -
Trade receivables
Zomato Media WLL - - - - - 10.65 0.65 10.65 0.65
Info Edge (India) Limited - - - 0.07 0.05 - 0.07 0.05
Loans
Zomalo Media WLL - - - - - 43.21 62.30 43.21 62.30
Other financial assets
Zomato Media WLL - - - - - 3.86 3.5 3.86 375

(This space has intentionally been lefi blank)




Zomato Media Private Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

CIN: U93030DL2010PTC 198141

b)(ii) Summary of transaction wich the above related parties is as follows:

X Mn.)

Key Management Personnel

Joint Venture of

Associates

Joint Venture

Total

Nature of Transactions

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

Revenue from operations
Zomato Media WLL

Other income
Interest income on Others
Zomato Media WLL

Recruitment Cost

Info Edge (India) Limited
Rent

Info Edge (India) Limited

0.85

0.02

1.81

0.02

10.65

W
~
v

10.65

2.5

0.85

0.02

0.65

1.81

0.02

* Remuneration to the key managerial personnel does not include the provisions made for gratuity and leave

wise valuation.

Note- During the current year 2.154 CCCPS (Series G) of Zomato Media Private Limited wete issued to Sequoia Capital India Investments IV as a result of' acuisition of Carthero Technologies Private Limited by the way of swap share. reter Note 14 for details.

encashment, as they are determined on an actuarial basis for the company as a whole. It also does not include share based payment transactions due to unavailability of employee

(This space has intentionally been left blank)




Zomato Media Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
CIN : U93030DL2010PTC198141

38. The consolidated financial statemenis of the Group includes subsidiavies listed in the table below:

. . 0 Bt §
S.No. Name of the Company Principal activitics . Country ?t @ Lapity interest
incorporation 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Operating internet
1 |Zomato Midia Brasil Ltda portal Brazil 100% 100%
Operating internet )
2 |Pt Zomato Media Indonesia portal Indonesia 100% 100%
. Operating internet
3 |Zomato NZ Media Private Limited portal New Zealand 100% 100%
Operating internet
4 |Zomato Media (Private) Limited portal Sri Lanka 100% 100%
Operating internet
5 |Zomato Portugal Media, Unipessoal Lda portal Portugal 100% 100%
Operating internet
6 |Zomato Chile Spa portal Chile 100% 100%
) Operating internet
7 |Zomato Middle East Fz - LLC portal Dubai 100% 100%
Operating internet
8 |Zomato Ireland Limited portal Ireland 100% 100%
Operating internet
9  |Zomato Intemnet Private Limited portal India 100% 100%
) Operating internet
10 |Zomato UK Limited portal United Kingdom 100% 100%
Operating internet
L1 |Zomato Canada lnc. portal Canada 100% 100%
Operating internet
12 |Zomato Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. portal Malaysia 100% 100%
Operating internet
13 |Zomato Slovakia S.R.O. portal Slovakia 100% 100%
Operating internet
14 |Zomato Colombia S.A.S portal Colombia 100% 100%
Operating internet
15 |Lunchtime.CzS.R.O. portal Czech Republic 100% 100%
Operating internet
16 [Gastronauci $p.Z.0.0. portal Poland 100% 100%
Operating internet
17 |Zomato Australia Pty Limited portal Australia 100% 100%
Operating internet
18 [Zomato Sweden Ab * portal Sweden 0% 100%
Operating internet
19 |Zomato Hungary Kft. portal Hungary 100% 100%
Operating internet
20 |Zomato International Ro S.R.L. portal Romania 100% 100%
Operating internet
21 |Zomato Finland Oy portal Finland 100% 100%
Operating internet
22 |Zomato Austria Gmbh portal Austria 100% 100%
Operating internet
23 |Zomato Peru S.A.C. portal Peru 100% 100%
Operating internet
24 [Zomato Netherlands B.V. portal Netherlands 100% 100%
Operating internet
25 |Cibando Ltd portal United Kingdom 100% 100%
Operating internet
26 |Zomato, Inc. portal USA 100% 100%
Operating internet
27 |Zomato Spain SL * portal Spain 0% 100%
Operating internet
28 |Zomato lreland Limited - Jordan portal Jordan 100% 100%
Operating internet
29 |Zomato Vietnam Company Limited portal Vietnam 100% 100%
Operating internet
30 [Zomato Philippines Inc. portal Philippines 100% 100%
Operating internet :
31 |Zomato South Africa (Pty) Ltd. portal South Alrica 100% 100%
Operating internet
32  |Zomato Denmark ApS portal Denmark 100% 100%
Operating internet
33 |Zomato Media Pvt. Ltd. portal Singapore 100% 100%
Operating internet
34 [Norway - Zomato Norway AS portal Norway 100% 100%
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Zomato Media Private Limited
Motes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
CIN : U93030DL2010PTC198141

38. The consolidated financial statements of the Group includes subsidiaries listed in the table below (contd):

Operating internel

35 |Zomato Internet Hizmetleri Ticaret Anonim Sirketi. portal Turkey 100% 100%
Operating internel

36 |Zomato USA, LLC portal USA 100% 100%
Operating miernet

37 [Nextable, Inc. portal USA 100% 100%
Operating intcrnet |

38 |Zomato Internet LLC portal Qatar 100% 100%
Operating internet

39 |Delivery21 Inc. portal Philippines 52.20% 52.20%

40 |Carthero Technologies Pvt. Lid Delivery India 84.45%
Operating internet

41 | Zomato Media WLL portal Qatar 49% 49%

* closed during the year
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Zowmato Media Private Limited
Notes to consolidaied financial siatements foe the vear ended 31 March 2018
CIN: U93030DL2010PTC198141

39, Segment information

For managemen purposes, the Group is organised into geographical units and has three reportable segments, as follows:

Operating segments are defined as components of an euterprise for which diswviete financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by the chiel operating decision maker, in deerding how Lo allocate
resources and assessing perforinance. The Group's chict operating deeision maker is the Chiel Executive Officer and Managing Director

‘The Group has ideutified geographieal segments as reportable segments. The geographical segments comprise:

1) India

2) United Arab Emirates (UAE)

3) Others sueh as Austialia, New Zealand, Philippines, Indonesia, Malaysia, UUSA, Lebanon, Turkey, Czech, Slovakia, Poland

Revenue and expenses direelly attributable to seyments are reported under eaeh reportable segment. All other expenses which are not attributable or allocable to segments have been disclosed as unallocable
expenses.

Assets and liabilities that are directly attributable or allocable to segments are disclosed under each reportable segment. All other assets and liabilities are disclosed as unallocable. Summarised segment information
for the years ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 201715 as follows:

Year ended 31 March 2018 {X_Mn,)
Adjustments and
Particulars India UAL ROW Total seg t: Eliminai Consolidated
Revenue

External eusiomers 293256 (11745 825.15 4.875.16 (222.18) 4,652.98

Inter-segment 45.80 - - 45.80 (35.14) 10.65
Tolal revenmie 2,978.36 1,117.45 825,15 4,920.96 {257.32) 4,663.63
Income/(Expenses)

Depreciation and amortisation 135.84 11.52 1280 160.24 - 160.24
Segment loss (1,269.83) 336,79 (305.53) (1,238.57) 175 46 (1,063.12)
Total assels 14,863 .59 652.70 2,051.80 17,568.08 {4,070.94) 13,497.16
Total liabilities 623.54 385.87 44421 1,453.62 {150.94) 1,302.68
Other disclosures

Investmeols in an associate and a joint venture 1.63 - - 1.63 - 1.63

Capita) expeaditure 35.00 6.17 2.89 44.07 1,564 91 1,608.98

Year ended 31 March 2017 (¥ Mn,)
Adjustments and
Particulars India UALR ROW Total segmenis Eliminations Consolidated
Revenue

External costoniers 1,682.87 74539 894.46 3,322.72 - 3.322.72

Tolal revenue 1,682.87 745.39 894.46 3,322.72 - 3.322.72

Income/(Expenses)

Depreciation and amortisatiou 150.85 200.32 757.90 1,109.07 - 1,109.00
Goodwill impairment - - - - 1,884.82 1,884.82
Segment loss (387.82) (1.99) (3,244.88) (3.634.69) (264.38) (3,899.07)
Total assets 1,939.15 325.12 59275 2,857.02 0.70 285772
Total labilities 424.87 169.93 258.48 853.28 - 853.28
Other disclosures
Investmeits (n an associate and a joint venture 1.63 - - 1.63 - 1.03
Capital expenditure 3976 9.73 134.62 184.12 - 184,12
Inter=segment revennes are elimi ! upon lide and reflected in the “adjusiments and elnminations’ colunm.
All other adj and elini s are part of detailed reconcili presented further below.
Adjustments and climinations
Finance income and costs, and fair value gains and losses on finaneial assels are not allocated to individual segments as the underlying instruinents are managed on a group basis.
Current taxes, deferred taxes and certain financial assels und liabililies are not allocated to those segments as they are also managed on a group basis.
Capital expenditure consists of addutions of properly, plaut and equif , infangible assets and inves properties including assets from the acquisition of subsidiaries.
Reconciliations to reflected in the financial statemnents (¥ Mn)
Reconciliation of loss 31 March 2017 31 Marvchi 2016
Sepment loss (1,238.58) (3.634.69)
Inter-segment sales (elimination) 175.46 (264.38)
Loss before tax (1,063.12) (3,899.07)

(This space has intentionally been left blank)




Zomato Media Private Limited

Noltes to ¢ lidated financial stat s for the vear ended 31 NMarch 2017

CIN: U93030DL2010PTC198141

39, Sczment information (contd.)
Reconciliation of nssels

Segment operating assets
Lonns (Note 10)

Adjustnients and Eliminations
Total assels

Recouciliation of liabilities

Segmeut operaling liabilities
Adjustinents and Eliminations
Total liabilities

Revenmue from external customers

India

Quiside India

Adjustinents and Eliminations

Total revenue per consolidated statement of profit or loss

Non-cirrent operafing assels:
India

Outside India

Adjustments and Eliminations
Total

(Thiy space has inentiondally been feft blank)

(X_Mn.)

31 March 2018

Al Mavcli 2017

11,142 50 223114

41210 62.30

(79.96) 0.70

[1,105.75 2,294.14

 Mn.)

31 March 2018 31 March 2017

1,453.62 853.28
(150.94) -

1,302.68 §53.28

@ Mn.)

31 March 2018 31 March 2017

2,978.34 1,682.88

1,942.61 1,639.84
(257.32) -

4,663.63 3,322,72

M)

31 March 2018 31 March 2017

4,737.65 397.79

1,644.74 165.79
(3.590.98) 5

239141 5§63.58




Zamato Media Private Limited
Notes to consolidaled financial statements far the veir ended 31 March 2018
CIN: U93030DL2010PTC198141

40. Details of dnes to micra and small as defived under MSMED Aet 2006

The gronp. has during the year. nol received any intimation from any: of ifs supplicrs regacding their stalus noder The Micro and Small Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and hence disclosures. il any, eelating to amounts unpaid as al (he year end

along wilh inlcrest paid/pavable as required under the said Act have not been given, Based on (lie information available with the Company: there ace no principal/interest amonnls duc o micro. small and nedivm cnlerpriscs.

4

. Capital and other commitmenis
{a) As al 31 March 2014, the group lias estimated amount of contract remaining (o be excented on eapilal account not provided for. net of advaices In T Mn. 0.69 (31 March 2017: [n T Mn. Nil)

(b) The company lias made long teru strategic iny in cerlain

which arc in lheic initial/developing stage of operation and would gencrate growth and relums over a penod of lime These subsidiarics/associales have

meurred significanl expenses for buildivg the brand and market share which lm\c added Lo Ihe losses of these culitics. The parent has commitled to provide supporl Lo cach of ils subsidiarics in the cvent they arc unable to meet their individual
liabilitics. Based on tlic potential of the business model of these entitics (o generale profils and paccut's support, management is of he opinion that considering the natnre of the industry and Lhe stage of operations of these enlities (here is no

indication of diminution in carrving value of the investments and therefore no nrovision is reauired at diis staec.

42. Contingent liahility not pravided for
As at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: T 0.01 Mn} dividend in respeet of 0,0001% aud 0.00000015% Isorilv converlible latiy in share not nrovided for Z 0.01 Mu,

As at the year ended on 31 March 2018. the group is having net deferred Lax assels primarily comprising of nnahsorbed Depreciation and carry forward Losses nnder tax laws. However in the absence of reasonahle certainty as to its realization of
Deferred Tax Assels (DTA), DTA has not been crented.

4

&

44, Derivatives
Embedded derivatives

In the ycar ended March 2016, the company issucd 28,460 CCCPS- Class D (refer note |3 (f) for more details). As per the tenus of the Class D CCCPS, the CCCPS shall be converled into snch nomber of ordinary shares at the initial conversion
price of Rs. (. 14 per share (the “Conversion Price™), subjcel to the eerlain ndjustments. in aceordance with Clause 78.6.1.3 of the Articles of Association. Accordingly, the CCCPS have cmbedded derivatives that are required (o be separated.

These embedded derivatives have been separated and are carried at fair valne through profit or loss until Marcli 31, 2017, As at March 31, 2017, tlie conversion price adjustment variability is extingnished and accordingly tlie financial liability and
cmbedded derivative is reclassified as equily, The carrying values of the financial liability and embedded derivatives at 31 March 2017 amounied to In T Mn. NIL (oiher financial liabilities - Note 20} The clTects on peofit or loss are reflected in
olher income, olher expenses aud finance costs.

45 Recend accownting proncuncements-
Ind AS L[5 Revenue fram Contracts with Cnstamers
Ind AS (13 was nofificd on 28 March 2018 and eslablishes a five-step model to account for revenuc arising from conltracts with customers. This standard is anplicable for ine periods beginning on or after
Ist April 2018. Under Ind AS |§5, revenuce is recopniscd at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expeets 1o be entitled in exchange for Iransferring poods or scrvices Lo a customer.
The new revenue standard will supersede all cwsrent revenuc recognition requirements under Ind AS. This new slandard requires revenue Lo be recopnized when promised goods or services are transferred Lo
customers in amotnts that reflect the consideration Lo which the Company: expeels to be entitled in exchange for those poods or services. Adoplion of the new milcs could afTect the timing of revenuc recognition lor
cerlain ransactions of the Company
The new standard perimits two methods of adoption: (i) retrospectively fo ench prior reporting period presenied in accordance wilh Ind AS § Accounling Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors, with the option to cleet certain practical expedicnls as defined within Ind AS 115 (the full retrospective method); or (ii} retrospeetively with the emnulative effect of initially applving Ind AS 115 recognized at the
dale ol initial application (1 April 2018) and providiug certain additional disclosurcs as defined in Ind AS 115 (the modificd retrospeclive melhod).
The Company continucs to cvaluate the available transitiou inethods and its contractual arranpements. The vltimate impacl on revenvie resulting from the anplication of Ind AS 115 will be subject to assessments {hat
are dependent on many variables, including, but no( limited to, the terms of the contractual arrangements and the mix of business. The Compauy’s considerations also include. bul are not limited to, the comparability
of its financial statcinents and the comparabilily within its industry from application of the new standard 1o its contractual arrapgeinents.
A rcliable cstimale ol the quantitative impact of Ind AS 115 o Ihe financial statcinents will only be possible onee the implemeatation projeel has been completed.
Appendix B to Ind as 2, foreign cnrrency transactions and advance consideration:
On March 28. 2018, Ministry of Corporate AlTairs ("MCA™) has notificd the companics (Indian Accounting standard) Amendrient rules. 2018 conlaining Appendix B lo Ind AS 2, Foreign Cameney iransactions and
advanec consideration which clarifies the date of the transaction for ili¢ purpose of delermuining the exchange rate (o usc on initial recogmition of e related assel, expense or incomce , when an enlity has reccived or
paid advanee consideration in a forcipn currency.
The ameudnient will comie into foree from April 1, 2018. The Company is still in the process of evalualing its impact on the financial staleinent,

46 In case of subsidiary comnanics audited by other anditors. following inatter of cmphasis was given in their anditors report.

(a) The Company Zomalo Midia Brasil Lida bad its operation reduecd since Augnst 2014. On 31 March 2018, the uegative balance of Ihe sharcholders cquity. also called Unsceured Liabilitics, registered in the culity’s financial stalcicols was [n
T M, L31(BRL [n Mn.0.08). The continnitv of (he production process depends on lic new contracts (o be marketed by the Corupany, Jeaving al risk ils conlinuily.

b) In the Company Zomalto Slovakia S.R.Q.- the audilors have drawn atlention lo the company’s balance sheet where the corupany presents its negative cquily,

¢} In the Company Gastronauci Sp.Z.0.0. - the anditors have drown attention to the coinpany's balance sheet where company is currently ferminating its business activitics.

d) In the Company Lunchtime.Cz S.R.O - the nudilors haye drawn allention Lo thic company’s balance sheet where cotnpany s currently terminating its business activities.

¢} In the Company Mekanisine! Infernet Hizmetleri Ticarel Anonim Sirketi- the auditors have drawn atfention lo the company”s balance sheet where recurring loss from operation is refleeted and based on the

slatutory financial stalemenls, two thirds of the sum ol thc capital and statntory reserves are unsecured which indicates a capilal loss as per Turkish Commereial Code Aricle 376.

As cxplained, managanent of holding company is fully commilted towards providing necessary financial and operational support to all the above conipanics on au ongoing basis,

(This space has intentionally heen left blank)
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